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Disclaimer

Forecasts provided in this report were compiled with reasonable care. These projections
were formed based on past figures, expectations, and factual data; but as with any forecast,
there are inherent uncertainty and forecasts are subject to known as well as unknown
factors that could cause significant deviations from expected outcomes. It may be noted
that, certain statements within this Annual Report such as the Management Discussion and
Analysis section might be deemed ‘forward-looking statements’ as per law. These statements
concern the Company’s objectives, projections, expectations, and estimates. Even though
these assumptions are realistic, the results may not always coincide with the projections.
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For a healthy

growing nation

The consumption pattern of Indian consumers has been undergoing a
rapid transformation.

With increasing incomes, consumers have been demanding quality
products resulting in a progressive shift to branded alternatives.

Even as the formalization of India's consumer sector has emerged 3s a
mega trend, the penetration of branded staple foods is still below 15%.

A large population of India can afford packaged foods for their quality
and convenience.

This places a large responsibility on India's food industry leaders to
enhance availability and serve the consumer demand.

A strong supply chain is a key imperative in addressing demand of
this magnitude and complexity: to move large volumes from farms
to grading to processing to trade partners to retail outlets, while
controlling costs, freshness and quality.

At Adani Wilmar Limited (AWL), we seek to be the most trusted brand
for our consumers, delivering safe, nutritious, and quality food from
state-of-art manufacturing plants, with the highest safety standards.

The Company is committed to the procurement of grain of the highest
quality, understand regional consumer preferences, and offer a
products portfolio extending from the premium to mass price points
with the objective to enhance the adoption of branded products.

This focus enables the Company to deliver quality products at scale to
address the needs of a healthy growing nation.

The agri-commodities segment holds immense potential to produce
value-added products, supported by RE&D, for nutrition, culinary
experiences, and essential ingredients for industrial applications.
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Our vision is to be a leading agribusiness company committed to sustainably deliver safe, nutritious and
quality agricultural commodity and food through innovation, highest standards of environmental, social
and governance practices, and the creation of livelihoods in communities in which we operate to deliver
long-term value to all our stakeholders.

AWLSs journey

In line with 8 Ruknamat
philosophy, the Company has
been growing and evolving with
a North Star mindset to keep
enhancing value unconstrained
by traditions but by walking new
paths.

The Company continuously
undertakes new business
development. It enters synergic
ventures. Its journey commenced
from the time it launched its
maiden edible oil product through
its Mundra refinery. Within a few
years, the Company emerged 3as a
leader in the space of edible oils
with its Fortune brand climbing
to leadership position before
extending across most edible oil
variants.

Driven by the objective to
enhance value to by-products
generated from edible oil refining,
the Company ventured into the
manufacture of oleochemicals.

Outcome

An established expertise in
oilseeds procurement, crushing
and oil extraction led the
Company to add castor oils and
derivatives to its portfolio. The
Company graduated to leadership
with a dominant market share in
these new segments.

Thereafter the Company
extended to the kitchen essential
products space where it climbed
to a position in the top three
across wheat, rice, besan (Bengal
gram flour) and soya nugget
products.

The Company's business is
integrated, marked by forward
and backward product or process
linkages, enhancing value and
moderating costs. The Company
encourages employees to operate
with an entrepreneurial mindset,
thinking big and empowers them
to take decisions.

The Company plays
at scale, remaining
committed to its
categories across
the long-term,
deepening expertise
and building tangible
infrastructure, It
aspires to leadership
positions in the
categories of its
presence, focused on
enhancing market
share.

By the virtue of expanding across
multiple areas, the Company has
diversified across geographies,

products, customers, and sales
channels. In less than a quarter
of a century, it has delivered one

of the largest revenues in India's
FMCG foods sector.
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The Adani Wilmar
customer value proposition:
Safe. Nutritious. Quality.

Adani Wilmar Limited (AWL) was founded in
1999 a5 3 50:50 joint venture between Adani
Group of India and Wilmar Group of Singapore,
The Company was listed on the Indian stock
exchanges - NSE and BSE - on 8™ February,

2022,

Brand

AWLls packaged products are
offered under a range of brands
across a broad price spectrum.
AWLs flagship brand Fortune is
one of the highest-selling brands
in India's foods category. Fortune
is 3 household name, built with

two decades of consumer trust.
The Company offers edible oils
and food products under this
brand. This premium brand is
trusted for its consistency, quality,
dependability, and superior
cooking outcomes.
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AWL is one of the largest food
FMCG companies in India.

The Company is one of the

few large, packaged food
companies in India to offer most
kitchen essential products. The
Company's products comprise
kitchen essentials like edible
oil, wheat flours, rice, pulses &
besan and sugar. Additionally,
it has branded Health &
Convenience product portfolio

AWLs unique business model
operated at scale to win in

a competitive business. The
Company'’s strategy is distinctive
when compared to most large
FMCG players: it is focused on
select products with a large
addressable market on the

one hand and high operational
synergy on the other,

Integrated Business model

The Company's integrated
manufacturing units produce
multiple products that share
common infrastructure and
manpower; forward integration
of products is done to enhance
value, widening the value chain.
The products draw on a common
supply chain and sales channel.
An operational synergy helps
moderate the cost structure. The
Company’s strategic entry into a
new product is usually adjacent
to this value chain or a part of the
kitchen essentials portfolio.

Sourcing

The Company has built on-the
ground partnerships related to
raw material sourcing of the right
quality at the right price; it has
implemented learnings related

to the right product blends to
optimise costs and address
regional tastes.

that includes Rice Bran oil,
Blended oil, soya nuggets, Chana
Sattu, biryani kit and khichdi
etc. The Company endeavors

to bring safe, nutritious, and
quality food to consumers.

In the edible oils space, the
Company captured a dominant
market share of more than 19%
in the refined oil consumer
pack (ROCP) segment in India.
Annual revenues from edible

Manufacturing

It commissioned large modern
manufacturing units for superior
product quality and economies
of scale; The Company comprises
a sprawling network of owned
and contracted manufacturing
facilities at 60+ locations
spread across India. These
manufacturing facilities have
been invested with the highest
quality standards. These plants
across strategic locations help
cover the vast breadth of India
with efficient logistic costs.

Sales & Distribution

It invested in an extensive
distribution network to service
a large part of the national
population. It reaches 1.8 Mn+
retailers and touches 114 Mn+
households. Its network of 91
depots enables proximity to
distributors, empowering the
Company to deliver on-time, in-
full fresh products.

Following a joint venture
between the Company’s two
promoter groups, the Company
has benefited from the best of
both worlds - know-how, market
intelligence related to globally
traded raw-materials, R&D
support and strategic Wilmar
Group insights by virtue of its

oils crossed 346,000 Crore in
FY 2022-23. The Food business,
that contributed around 34,000
Crore in sales in FY 2022-23,

is the next growth engine that
doubled its sales in the last two
years.

In industrial products,

AWL is one of the largest
manufacturers of oleochemicals
and a dominant player in castor
oil and derivatives.

global presence and 30+ years of
expertise in the agri-commodity
industry, coupled with the strong
on-ground Adani Group presence
ensuring strong execution. The
Company is one of the longest
serving joint ventures in India
between an Indian and foreign
partner.

AWL embraced sustainability
across its operations, covering
the functions of sourcing,
manufacturing, packaging and
supply chain etc.
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Qur distribution
network across India

13,600+

Depots Rural towns coverage

10,000+ 1.8

Distributors* Mn, Retail reach

100% 114

Urban towns coverage Mn, Household reach

A Depot *Note: The distributors count includes sub-distributors also.
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Our manufacturing
footprint in India

58

Owned plants Leased plants

*0.9 *5.0

Mn MT, Mn MT,
Food processing Refining
capacities capacity

® Owned plant

W Leased plant Note: Capacity figures only include own plant capacities.
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Qur leadership position

across key products wan @) renc@) rar @)

Edible oil

Food & EMGC Industry

essentials

#1
Edible oil
brand in

India

#1
Player in
Stearic acid,
glycerine &
soap noodles

#2
in Wheat
flour (atta)

#1
Soyabean oil,
mustard &
ricebran oil

#2

in Soya
nuggets

#1
Castor
exporter from
India

#1
in North,
East, West
& Central
markets

#3

in Basmati
rice

. #1 Among the
in Urban top 2 players in
& Rural besan
markets

#2

in Palm oil

Consistently
gaining market

share across key
categories

Among the
top 5 in South
India
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Our business segments
and key products

Edible oil

FY 2022-23 Revenue: 346,191 Crore* FY 2022-23 VVolume: 3.4 MN MT
Products

Sunflower Soyabean Mustard Palm Oil Blended Oils

Ricebran Cottonseed Groundnut VVanaspati  Specialty Fats

Food & FMGC

Brands

JUBILEE

Refined Sunflower Oil

FY 2022-23 Revenue: 34,046 Crore* FY 2022-23 Volume: 0.9 MN MT
Products

Atta Suji Rawa Maida Basmati Rice NonERbasmati
ice

Besan Pulses Sugar Poha Soya nuggets

Industry essentials

Brands

Rofunooy

al?fe? CHHWNHR"

e
' TROPHY]

FY 2022-23 Revenue: 37,992 Crore* FY 2022-23 Volume: 1.2 MN MT

Major products Key applications
Soap Glycerine Stearic HPC Paints & Pharma Agrochem-
noodles acid coatings icals
Distilled Castor oil Deoiled Polymers Lubricants Petro- Cattle feed
fatty acid cakes chemicals

*The above nos are before giving IND AS adjustments
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Business snapshot of what we
achieved in the last two years

Sales volume (in %)

9

® Edible oils ® Food & FMCG @ Industry essentials

Sales value (in %)

® Edible oils ® Food & FMCG @ Industry essentials

Sales value (in % Crore)
Year Edible oils Food & FMCG Industry essentials

Fy 23 46,104 4,053 8,028 58,185
FYy 22 45,342 2,621 6,192 54,155
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Edible Oil
FY 21

(%)
6.1
6.5

7.9*

*Includes Kohinoor's market share of 0.7% (Source: Nielson)

/7% /3%

Oils & Food - Alternate Channel Sales
~?2,7OO Crore

Fy 2022-23 FYy 2021-22

17% YoY Growth

Sales Mix: Urban vs Rural*

Edible Oil %) Food & FMCG (%)

® Rural @ Urban

*The urban-rural mix is on a standalone basis
Note: All figures are on a consolidated basis unless otherwise mentioned. Contribution mix are on sales values

Sales Mix: Geography

® Domestic ® Exports
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5-year business trends of
how we have grown

Segment volume

(in M MT / MMT)*

Edible Oil 7% CAGR Food & FMCG 31% CAGR
FY 19 — 2.6 FY 19 0.3
FY 20 — 2.8 FY 20 0.4
FY 21 — 3.0 FY 21 — 0.5
FY 22 - 3.3 FY 22 _ 0.6
FY 23 3.4 FY 23 0.9
Industry Essentials Total 7% CAGR
FY 19 1.2 FY 19 — 4.1
FY 20 — 1.1 FY 20 — 4.3
FY 21 — 1.0 FY 21 — 4.5
FY 22 — 0.9 FY 22 — 4.8
FY 23 1.2 FY 23 55
orore)
Edible Oil 21% CAGR Food & FMCG 28% CAGR
FY 19 21,540 FY 19 1,508
FY 20 23,477 FY 20 1,937
FY 21 —F 30819 FY 21 1,906
FY 22 - 45342 FY 22 — 2,621
FY 23 46,104 FY 23 4,053
Industry Essentials 11% CAGR Total 20% CAGR
FY 19 — 5,342 FY 19 28,390
FY 20 4,322 FY 20 29,736
FY 21 4,366 FY 21 - 37,090
FY 22 — 6,192 FY 22 — 54,155
FY 23 8,028 FY 23 58,185

FY'19, volume and revenue is excluding pass through sugar sales
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(Zcrore)
Gross Profit 13% CAGR EBITDA 10% CAGR
FY 19 — 3.661 FY 19 — 1,100
FY 20 — 4,281 FY 20 — 1304
FYy 21 — 4,601 FY 21 — 1325
FY 22 — 5,383 FY 22 1,736
FY 23 6,002 FY 23 1,661
Profit before Tax 8% CAGR Profit after Tax 11% CAGR
FY 19 571 FY 19 387
FY 20 — 603 FY 20 444
FY 21 — 755 FY 21 — 729
FY 22 1,059 FY 22 804
FY 23 789 FY 23 582
Earnings per share ) 8% CAGR
FY 19 3.4
FY 20 — 3.9
FY 21 — 6.4
FY 22 6.9
FY 23 4.5

Business KPIs (crore)

Branded Sales Value 23% CAGR
FY 21 — 24,030
FY 22 — 33,801

FYy 23 36,280

Branded %: VValue Share (%)

Branded (B2C) Edible Oils & Foods (ex. Industry)

FY 21 — 73
FY 22 — 73
FYy 23 77



CORPORATE OVERVIEW
STATUTORY REPORTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 13
(x times)
Asset Turns Fixed Asset Turnover Gearing (TOL/ TNW)
FY 19 8.2 FY 19 4.4
FY 20 7.3 FY 20 3.6
FY 21 8.8 FY 21 3.0
FY 22 — 1.0 FY 22 1.8
FY 23 1.8 FY 23 16

Interest Interest Coverage
FY 19 23
FY 20 23
FY 21 3.3
FY 22 — 3.2
FY 23 2.1

(%)
Return Return on Equity
FY 19 20
FY 20 19
FY 21 25
FY 22 15
FY 23 7

Note: All figures are on consolidated basis.
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Board of Directors

Dorab Erach Mistry
Chairman and Independent Director

Mr. Dorab Erach Mistry, OBE, 70, is

the non-executive Chairman of our
Company. He joined our Board in June
2021 as an Independent Director and
was also appointed as Chairman of
the Board in November 2022. He is

a renowned commodity expert and
acknowledged as the world’'s foremost
analyst of palm oil price behavior.
Since 1997 he is a regular speaker and
presenter at most important commodity
conferences and is often interviewed
on Bloomberg and other business TV
channels.

Kuok Khoon Hong
Vice Chairman

Mr. Kuok Khoon Hong, 73, is the
non-executive Vice Chairman of the
board. Mr. Kuok is also the founder,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Wilmar Group. He has extensive
experience of around 50 years in the
agribusiness industry and has been
involved in the grains, edible oils and
oilseeds businesses since 1973. With his
deep experience in the sector, he has
been guiding AWL with his strategic
vision. It was his vision to set up a
port-based refinery in Mundra (India),
AWLs first project, and he has been

Angshu Mallick
MD and CEO

Angshu Mallick is the Chief Executive
Officer and Managing Director of our
Company since April 2021 and has been
working with our Company since March
1999. Previously, he worked at National
Dairy Development Board (NDDB) and
Gujarat Co-operative Milk Marketing
Federation Limited(Amul) in Marketing
and Distribution function. He has over

He has been working with Godrej Group
since 1976 and has over 4 decades

of experience. Dorab is a Director of
Godrej International Limited as well

as several other overseas subsidiary
companies of the Godrej group. He
holds a Bachelor's degree in commerce
from the University of Bombay and

is also a Chartered Accountant. He

has served as Vice President of the
International Association of Seed
Crushers 2006-08. In June 2013 in Her
Majesty The Late Queen Elizabeth I
Diamond Jubilee Honours List, Dorab
Mistry was conferred an OBE ( Officer
of the Order of the British Empire ).

instrumental in building AWL to become
a leading market player in India today.

He holds directorships in other listed
companies, namely Wilmar International
Limited, Shree Renuka Sugars Limited
and Yihai Kerry Arawana Holdings

Co., Ltd. He graduated from the then
University of Singapore with a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree.

35 years of experience in marketing and
sales in the food industry.

He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in dairy
technology from Dairy Science College,
National Dairy Research Institute,
Karnal and a post graduate diploma

in rural management from Institute of
Rural Management, Anand.



Pranav Adani
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pranav Adani, 44, is a non-
executive, non-independent Director
of the Company. He was appointed to
our Board in April 2008. He has been
instrumental in initiating & building
numerous new business opportunities
across multiple sectors. He is also
associated with our Company since
1999. He spearheaded the Joint
Venture with the Wilmar Group of
Singapore and transformed it from a
single refinery edible oil business into a
pan-India food company. He also leads
the Qil & Gas, City Gas Distribution &

Malay Mahadevia
Non-Executive Director

Dr Malay Mahadevia, 59, is a non-
executive, non-independent director

of our Company and was appointed to
the Board in June 2019. He has been
associated with Adani Group since 1992
and has contributed significantly to the

Anup Pravin Shah
Independent Director

Dr. Anup Pravin Shah, 47, is an
Independent Director of our Company
and was appointed to the board in
July 2021. Dr. Shah is a Chartered
Accountant by profession and is
senior partner at M/s. Pravin P

Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants,
Mumbai. He has over 25 years

of experience in the areas of tax
advisory, business restructuring,
capital markets regulations, foreign
investments, international tax, PE
investments, real estate structuring,
management consultancy, valuations,
property matters and accounting.
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Agri Infrastructure businesses of the
Group. His astute understanding of the
economic environment has helped the
Company and Adani Group in scaling
the business multi fold.

Mr. Adani is a Bachelor of Science

in Business Administration from the
Boston University, USA. He is also

an alumnus of the Owners/President
Management Program of the Harvard
Business School, USA. Mr. Adani has
been conferred several awards, Globoil
Man of the Year Award 2009 being one
of them.

development of the Mundra Port since
its conceptualization.

He holds a Bachelor's and Master’s
degree in dental surgery from University
of Bombay and Ph.D. in coastal ecology
from Gujarat University.

He has contributed articles / papers

to several publications, newspapers
and at conferences, delivered talks at
seminars and workshops across India
and published books and articles on the
above-mentioned subjects.

He is also serving on the Board of
Claris Limited, JM Financial Capital
Limited, JM Financial Services Limited,
JM Financial Credit Solutions Limited
and JM Financial Home Loans Limited.
He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in
commerce and also a degree of Doctor
of Philosophy (Commerce) from the
University of Mumbai.
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Madhu Rao
Independent Director

Mr. Madhu Ramachandra Rao, 72 years,
is an Independent Director of our
Company and was appointed to the
Board in June 2021.

He served as a partner in N M Raiji

& Co., a Chartered Accountants

firm, where he was responsible for
consultancy services of the firm and
gained valuable experience across
industries. Thereafter, he joined
Shangri-La Hotels & Resorts (now a part
of Shangri-La Asia Ltd.) in 1988, served
it for around 30 years and handled

Dipali Sheth
Independent Director

Mrs. Dipali H Sheth, 58 years, is an
Independent Director of our Company
and was appointed to the Board in June
2021. She has 30 years of experience

in IT, FMCG and MNC banks, across
diverse roles like marketing, sales, HR
and strategy. Dipali worked for Procter
& Gamble India Ltd for 6 years in sales
and marketing, category/brands and
training functions. She worked for 12
years in Standard Chartered Bank in her
last role as Head HR, South Asia, and
gained valuable strategy and change
management experience in several
acquisitions like the Grindlays business
in India, and American Express Bank.
From 2008 to 2017, Dipali was the

several responsibilities such as CFO,
President and Vice Chairman. He was
appointed to the Board of Shangri-La
Asia Ltd. in December 2008 and was 3
member of the Executive Committee of
the Board. He retired from the Board on
371t December, 2017. He has expertise in
business valuation, commercial & legal
aspects of business, relationships with
business partners and Investors and
entire finance functions.

He holds a Bachelor's degree in
commerce from University of Bombay
and is a Chartered Accountant.

Country Head of Human Resources at
ABN Amro and Royal Bank of Scotland,
India (RBS) with responsibilities for
front office bank branches and all
global offshore verticals , where she
led a team of 230 HR professionals and
15,000 employees.

She is a coach with Gallup Organisation
and an accredited ACC Coach with
International Coaching Federation,
USA. Mrs. Sheth is also an Independent
Director on the Boards of UTI AMC, UTI
RSL, Latent View Analytics, DFM Foods
Ltd and Bharat FoxConn India Ltd.. She
is an Economics Honours alumnus from
Lady Shri Ram College, Delhi.



Our Leadersnip Team

Angshu Mallick
MD and CEO

Angshu Mallick is the Chief Executive
Officer and Managing Director of our
Company since April 2021 and has been
working with our Company since March
1999. Previously, he worked at National
Dairy Development Board (NDDB) and
Gujarat Co-operative Milk Marketing
Federation Limited (Amul) in the
Marketing and Distribution functions.
He has over 35 years of experience

Saumin Sheth
Chief Operating Officer (CO0)

Mr. Saumin Sheth is the Chief
Operating Officer of our Company.

He has been associated with the
Company since inception and leads
various verticals like procurement and
risk management of VVegetable Qils,
Oleochemicals, Castor, Soya Crush

and value-added products like Besan,
Pulses and Poha. He has over 23 years
of experience in sourcing, international

Shrikant Kanhere
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Mr. Shrikant Kanhere is the Chief
Financial Officer of our Company. He
has been associated with our Company
since May 2013. He has over 25 years
of experience across the finance
function including financial planning

& analysis, corporate finance, treasury
& risk management. Prior to joining

our Company, he worked at Vodafone

Mukesh Kumar Mishra
Business Head - Edible Oils & Fats

Mukesh Kumar Mishra is the Business
Head for Edible Oils & Fats business. He
joined our Company in September 2021,
Additionally, he also leads the marketing
(edible oils) and GTM & distribution
activities. Prior to joining our Company,
Mr. Mishra was associated with Dabur
India Limited for 25 years, where he
joined as a Management Trainee.

He handled various positions across
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in marketing and sales in the food
industry.

He holds a Bachelor's degree in dairy
technology from Dairy Science College,
National Dairy Research Institute,
Karnal and a post graduate diploma

in rural management from Institute of
Rural Management, Anand.

trade, risk management, B2B sales,
commercial operations and marketing.
He has been instrumental in building
key strategies for the Company and
contributing to the bottomline, apart
from setting up the sourcing team and
robust risk management policies. He
is also a key contributor in ESG policy
design and implementation for the
Company. He holds a Bachelor’'s degree
in commerce from Gujarat University.

DigiLink Limited, Reliance Industries
Limited and Adani Exports Limited.
Mr. Kanhere has been instrumental in
setting up and streamlining the entire
finance function at Adani Wilmar.

He passed the Bachelor's degree in
commerce from Vikram University,
Ujjain. He is a fellow member of
Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

verticals & geographies like Sales Head
— South and Business Head — West in
Dabur and last served as Vice President
— Marketing at Dabur. .

Mr. Mishra holds a Bachelor's degree
in engineering from NIT, Rourkela. He
also holds Master's degree in business
administration (M.B.A.) from Faculty
of Management Studies (FMS), Delhi
University.
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Vineeth Viswambharan

Business Head — Wheat Flour, Premium
Oils, NPD & Personal Care

Mr. Vineeth Viswambharan is the
Marketing Head (Food & FMCG) and
Business Head for Wheat Products. He
joined our Company in February 2022.
Additionally, he also leads the business
for Premium Oils, New Products &
Personal Care. Mr. Viswambharan has
over 23 years of experience in FMCG,
Food, e-Commerce, New Enterprise,
Hospitality and Apparel. Prior to joining
our Company, he was Business Head
for Food & Private Brands at Udaan.
Earlier, Vineeth was associated with
ITC Limited for 17 years, where he

Rajiv Sharma
Business Head - Rice

Mr. Rajiv Sharma is the Business

Head for Rice business. He joined our
Company in June 2021. Mr. Sharma has
23 years of experience in FMCG, Food
& Grocery Retail and Agri commodities.
Prior to joining our Company, he was
associated with Future Group for 20
years, where he got associated as a

Ravindra Kumar Singh
Head - Technical

Mr. Ravindra Kumar Singh is the Head
— Technical and Operations of our
Company. He holds a Bachelor's degree
in chemical technology (oil technology)
from Kanpur University. He joined our
Company with effect from 14 July,
2003. He has 30 years of experience

in the field of food business. Prior to

Rajneesh Bansal

Head - Supply Chain

Mr. Rajneesh Bansal joined Adani
Wilmar Limited in May 2004 and is
presently working as Head —Supply
Chain of the Company. He is responsible
for managing the entire supply chain,
including the Sales and Operational
Planning function and 3P operations.

joined as a Management Trainee and
last served as Head of Marketing of
New Categories.. At ITC, he worked

in business, marketing, sales & supply
chain through 9 different assignments,
ranging from leading a 2,000+ sales
team to launching new product
categories. Vineeth co-founded a
hospitality venture Cranganor and a
D2C apparel venture Seamstress.

Vineeth completed his Masters in
Business Management from XLRI-
Jamshedpur, specializing in Marketing
& Sales. He is a Physics graduate from
University of Calicut.

Managing Partner for Big Bazaar's
Foods business and last served as
Business Head for Staples Commodity
for all its retail formats.

An entrepreneur turned professional,
Mr. Sharma has done International
Executive Masters in business with a
specialization in Design Management
from SDA Bocconi Asia Center.

joining our Company, he worked at the
National Dairy Development Board.

Mr. Bansal has more than 29 years of
experience in various fields including
strategy, business development and
corporate communication. Prior to
joining our Company, he worked at
Adani Ports Limited and with Adani
Enterprises and Indian Space Research
Organization.



He holds a Bachelor's degree in
engineering (mechanical) from
Karnatak University, Dharwad and

a Master's degree in industrial
engineering from Thapar Institute of

Siddhartha Ghosh
Chief Human Resource Officer (CHRO)

Mr. Siddhartha Ghosh is the Chief
Human Resource Officer of our
Company. He joined our Company with
effect from June 2019. Mr. Ghosh has
the experience of over 30 years in the
field of human resources (HR) and
worked in sectors such as Coal, Mines,
Steel, Chemical, Fertiliser, Insulator,
Oil & Gas and Hydrocarbons. Prior to
joining our Company, he worked at
Reliance Industries Limited as Senior
Vice President in the role of Cluster/

Venkata Rao Damera
Chief Information Officer (CIO)

Mr. Venkata Rao Damera is the Chief
Information Officer of our Company.
He joined our Company with effect
from April 2021. Mr. Rao is a seasoned
IT professional with over 24 years'
experience in the areas of IT infra,
new technology, ERP — SAP, hybrid
cloud models & digital initiatives. He
has worked across diverse industries
such as FMCG, manufacturing and

Vidyashankar Satyakumar
Head - Research & Development

Dr. Vidyashankar Satyakumar is the
Head of Research & Development at
our Company. He joined our Company in
March 2023. He leads our R&D efforts
to develop new products and process
improvement pertaining to product
quality. Dr. Satyakumar has about 22
years of experience in active ingredient
development, product development
and Commercialization, Clinical &
pre-clinical expertise, and laboratory
analytics related to Food & FMCG
industry. Prior to joining our Company,
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Engineering and Technology, Patiala.
Further, he completed a post graduate
diploma in management from Indian
Institute of Management, Kozhikode.

Sector Industrial Relations Head. He
also worked in leadership roles at
Aditya Birla Insulators, Jindal Steel &
Power Limited and Coal India Limited.

Mr. Ghosh has done his Bachelor’s in
science (1982) from Ranchi University
and also holds a postgraduate
diploma in Personnel Management
and Industrial Relations from Xavier
Institute of Social Service (XISS),
Ranchi.

agri-businesses. Prior to joining our
Company, he was associated with
Emami Limited as CIO. He also worked
at LG Polymers India Private Limited,
ITC Infotech and Godfrey Phillips India
Limited.

He holds a Bachelor's degree in
science from Andhra University and
passed a Master’'s degree in computer
applications (MCA) from Osmania
University, Hyderabad.

Mr. Satyakumar was associated with
Britannia as Head — R&D Excellence &
Capability Building. He has also worked
at Marico Limited and Himalaya Drug
Company.

Dr. Satyakumar holds a Ph.D. in
Biochemistry from Central Food
Technological Research Institute
(CFTRI), Mysore and has completed
MBA from KSOU, Mysore. He has
published more than 25 scientific
papers in the journals of national and
international repute and has also filed 2
patents.
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Chairman’s letter
to shareholders

| would first like to thank Mr. Kuok
Khoon Hong for his outstanding
stewardship to the Board as the
Chairman of the Board from June
2019 to November 2022, He has
taken the role of Vice Chairman
(Non-executive) of the Board,
paving the way for an Independent
Director to assume the role of
Chairman, | also thank the Board for
posing faith in me to serve 3s the
Chairman of Board.

| am pleased to present to your
Company's second Annual Report
after a successful listing last year.
Today, we are the number one
edible oil company in the country,
with a dominant market share

of 19.5%. Our foods business is
registering a high double-digit
growth, and we will play a key role
in India's foods sector.

As India races to become the third
largest economy in the world by
2030, | expect an increasing rise
in the consumer’s purchasing
power. This presents a huge
opportunity to cater to a steeply
rising demand in the foods
sector. This belief has guided
your Company in its endeavors to
scale its reach, invest in its food
processing capacity and expand
its product portfolio to more food
products to address the growing
demand of Indian consumers.

Over the years, your Company
created one of India's most
trusted food brands 'Fortune’,
deep sourcing capabilities,
state-of-the-art manufacturing
facilities, extensive supply chain
and robust distribution network
for its edible oil business.

These strengths are helping
your Company in scaling the
foods business rapidly towards
achieving its vision of providing
most of the essential needs of
household kitchens across India.

We are witnessing the
transformation of India, marked



by rapid economic growth, increased adoption of
technology, enhanced literacy levels and active
workforce participation by women. These realities
are translating into consumers making informed
decisions, purchasing quality & hygienic products,
providing us a great scope to drive the conversion
of unbranded to branded. At the same time, the
incidence of out-of-home consumption is on the
rise, contributing to a significant proportion of the
total food consumed. The HoReCa segment is value
conscious, making it imperative that this segment
is also serviced with quality ingredients at an
affordable price, for a healthy growing nation.

The organised food industry has an excellent
opportunity to address the nutritional needs of
young India at scale and at low cost through
fortification of the kitchen essentials with vitamins,
minerals, and other essential nutrients, making a
significant difference in the health and wellness

of the population. Plant-based proteins like soya
derivative products and pulses are a sustainable way
to improve the protein intake of the large population
of 1.4 Bn people in India.

| am proud that Adani Wilmar has been able to create
a positive impact in the lives of people by delivering
products that promise uncompromising quality,
taste, and good health. The Company is making rapid
strides in bringing essential staple foods at scale to
consumers across the staple food categories.

Adani Wilmar has consciously chosen to be present
in select products, with range of offerings and

can easily serve all kinds of customers, even with
customised offerings, given our product expertise.
This focus on few products is enabling the
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Company to manage the complexity that comes
with size and a wide presence across markets and
customer segments - from household to HoReCa to
Institutional buyers to exports.

It has been only 24 years since the inception of
your Company. The Company has now reached a
point where it has stitched together its significant
capabilities to deliver a wider impact across the food
basket. A momentous journey has just commenced,
and we have a long way to go to transform this
important industry.

The Company will continue to deliver safe, nutritious
and quality products by bringing together its state-
of-art manufacturing assets, quality processes and
team commitment. The Adani Wilmar team will
continue to extend its geographical reach and go
deeper into markets, while exploring avenues in more
food categories, addressing the needs of a healthy
growing nation.

With the continued dedication of our trusted
partners, colleagues and shareholders, Adani
Wilmar will continue to evolve into a stronger entity,
surpassing all our expectations and continue to
create value for all its stakeholders.

Dorab Mistry
Chairman & Independent Director,

Your Company has
created one of India's
most trusted food brands
‘Fortune’, deep sourcing
capabilities, state-of-the-

Adani Wilmar's Fortune
brand is present in
around 33% of all
Indian households.

19.5%

AWLs market share
in India's edible oil
segment

art manufacturing facilities,
extensive supply chain and

robust distribution network
for its edible oil business.




ADANI WILMAR LIMITED
22 ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

Managing Director’s letter

to shareholders

It is 8 pleasure to present the
Annual Report of your Company.
Adani Wilmar Limited. In the
financial year 2022-23, your
Company maintained its growth
trajectory even when the world
Was witnessing inflationary
challenges

Founded in 1999, AWL is one of the youngest FMCG
companies in India. Being the leading player in edible
oil and amongst the large Companies in wheat and
rice, Adani Wilmar has become one of the largest
FMCG player in revenue terms in India.

The Company has been focused on growing its
EBITDA at an industry-leading pace. In the FY'23,
the Company delivered a strong EBITDA of 31,661
Crore. Food & FMCG segment is currently in an
investment phase and this segment is also expected
to contribute meaningfully to Company's EBITDA in
the coming years as this business too scales up.

In the edible oil segment, the year was marked

by unprecedented volatility. This was due to a
convergence of multiple forces that impacted the
supply situation of various edible oils globally. This
volatility had a large bearing on the profitability of
our overall edible oil business.

The first supply shock of the year started with the
onset of the Russia-Ukraine war. As Ukraine and
Russia are key exporters of Sunflower oil, disruptions
constrained Sunflower oils supply. On a separate
note, in April 2022, the Indonesian government
imposed an export ban on palm oil and its
derivatives, which further strengthened rising edible
oil prices.

This was however soon followed by a sudden
reversal. In May 2022, Indonesian government
lifted the ban on palm oil exports. The Sunflower
oil situation normalised with the Black Sea grain
initiative agreement between Russia and Ukraine
signed in July 2022. The easing supply situation in
Sunflower and Palm oil led to a decline in edible ail
prices from July 2022, a trend that sustained till the
end of the financial year.

The sharp decline in edible oil prices led to a high
inventory cost in our hands, impacting profitability.
Moreover, in the high price environment, consumers
generally resort to downtrading to lower price

point brands, which resulted in a slightly higher

mix of value-for-money brands as against the
premium ones. The rural towns are contributing
around 30% sales of our packaged oil & foods; the
inflationary pressures were higher, where consumers
downgraded to lower price brands and lower size
packs. The year was also marked by inflation leading
to a sharp increase in operating expenses. Central
banks across the world increased interest rates to
counter inflation, which resulted in a significantly
higher interest expense for our Company.

The Company faced an unfavorable Tariff Rate Quota
that was implemented in June 2022 for the duty-free
imports of crude soyabean oil and crude sunflower
oil by importers. The Company was allocated only
10% quota of the total duty-free imports allowed

in soyabean oil and sunflower oil. This was against
our actual imports of around 30% and 15% of total
imports of soyabean and sunflower oils respectively
in India. This led to higher import duties for the
Company relative to the rest of the industry.



Your Company minimised the impact of the

price decline to a large extent through its risk
management framework. The strength of the
Fortune brand helped hold on to higher prices and
retain consumers reducing the impact of headwinds.
However, the Company's profitability was lower as
compared to the previous year.

In FY 2022-23, in the edible oil space, sales growth
was satisfactory with 3% YoY volume growth. Out-of-
home consumption demand was low in H1, impacted
by third wave of covid. Packaged oil volume growth
was ahead at 8% YoY. The demand of non-packaged
oil was low from the baking and frying industry. The
edible oil category is still quite fragmented with
numerous small brands, providing enough headroom
for continued volume growth.

Your Company is focused on improving the mix of
premium brand and value-added oils around a health
positioning to drive improvement in profitability.
Your Company possesses adequate capacity in the
segment, reducing the need for additional capital
expenditure. The segment is expected to generate
healthy free cash flows.

Your Company offers most of the kitchen essential
products. Only few pan-India players are present
in these products and that too with few of the
products. The Company has in place necessary
infrastructure, capabilities, and scale to navigate
the complexities of the Food business and grow
profitably.

The large packaged foods opportunity translated
into 39% YoY volume growth for the Foods & FMCG
segment. This strong growth demonstrated that the
Company’s value proposition has been accepted by
customers, paving the way for us to scale our foods
business. Your Company believes that it has just
begun this journey and there is a long way to go in
playing a key role in helping transition India's food
industry to a branded form as was done in the edible
oils segment across the last two decades.

This year, we added a premium brand ‘Kohinoor’
to our brand portfolio through the acquisition of
domestic rights for the brand. We added ‘Kohinoor
Hyderabadi Biryani kit' to our growing ‘Health and
Convenience’ food portfolio.

Your Company is transforming its sales and
distribution function with technology enablement
and better processes. It is expanding its distribution
network with a higher outlet reach in existing towns
and getting almost all the 5000-plus population
clusters under direct coverage. As a young Company,
our retail reach is relatively low compared to other
FMCG players; however, we possess a good presence
across all States with a strong brand equity and it
will only be a matter of time that we catch up with
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the overall FMCG sector in increasing penetration
across category-relevant retail outlets.

It has been apparent to us that with the scale we
manage, ambitions we possess, and agility the

food business demands, we need to deeply embed
technology across functions, particularly sales and
distribution, supply chain, and manufacturing. We
have been partnering the best technology providers
to create relevant solutions, resulting in tremendous
progress in recent years. We will embrace new
technologies to enhance our operational efficiency
and stakeholder experience.

As we have expanded into the broader foods
category, we have been hiring and strengthening
teams. We have a range of training programs in place
to foster continuous learning. We will continue to
nurture talent and provide opportunities to excel.

Our sustainability processes have always been
strong, as a result of an ESG emphasis by our co-
promoters. We use 98% recycled plastics, have
installed zero liquid discharge in seven plants and
are engaged in responsible palm sourcing. Our
CSR project Fortune SuPoshan, a mission against
malnutrition and anemia, achieved creditable
results by moving 27,181 children from the Acute
Malnutrition to healthy stage. We will continue to
work with similar enthusiasm towards building a
healthy growing nation by reaching new locations.
During the year the project covered more than a
15 Lakh population across 351,000 households,
reaching 1,081 villages and 177 slums through 535
SuPoshan Sanginis.

Despite the multiple challenges during the year
under review, the Company strengthened its core
capability in manufacturing, sales & distribution,
supply chain and brands and continued the launch
of new products and variants. As a result, the
Company finished in a stronger position over the
previous year.

In 2023 as well, we will continue to expand our
offerings for the needs of a healthy growing
nation. We look forward to making next year even
more fruitful for our stakeholders, employees, and
customers.

Angshu Mallick
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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Our product

categories

At Adani Wilmar, we provide a range of
products, encompassing food and non-
edible items that are produced from an
agri-commodity raw material base,

Kitchen essentials

Our foods business comprises a
comprehensive range of products,
encompassing five of six essential
kitchen commodities. Our
portfolio addresses around 66% of
the kitchen essentials market.

The Company’s food offerings
cater to a wide customer base,

including households, HoReCa
establishments, food processing
companies, bakery industry

and traders. These products

are sold directly or distributed
through an extensive network of
channel partners or facilitated by
intermediaries.

VValue-added food
products

We offer value-added products
primarily in the health &
convenience category and other
staple products.

Kitchen Essentials

Edible oil

Industry essentials

Our industrial products range
of Oleochemicals and Castor
Oil & derivatives represent

vital ingredients in industrial

applications. De-oiled cakes, the
by-product, derived from our

oilseed crushing, are utilised in
the production of animal feeds.



OuUr business
segments
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adani
wilmar

fortune

edible oils and foods

[o]

—dible olls

Adani Wilmar engages in the
crushing and processing of
oilseeds to extract crude oil. The

cottonseed oil, blended oil,
vanaspati and specialty fats. The
Company is a market leader in

crude oil, sourced externally or
obtained through the crushing
process within, undergoes
refinement or filtration,
depending on the specific oil
type. The Company procures
oilseeds from domestic sources;
crude edible oil is sourced from
domestic suppliers or imported.
The end products are sold as
packaged and bulk.

Adani Wilmar possesses a product
offering across a majority of

oil seed types - soyabean oil,

palm oil, sunflower oil, rice bran
oil, mustard oil, groundnut oil,

the ROCP (Refined Oil Consumer
Pack) segment with 19%+ market
share captured through its
portfolio of brand. The Company's
total domestic edible oil sales

in all forms, represents around
12% of the overall domestic
consumption.

In the edible oils portfolio, the
Company offers a series of
products possessing distinctive
health benefits.

The Company is also the largest
manufacturer of lauric fat in
India.

Market Share

B AWL
@I m®E Others

W19.5% MW13.2% 6.4%
W59% M45% 51%

Source: Nielsen ROCP MAT - March 2023
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Leading in most markets

The Company’s brand portfolio
comprehensively caters to the
entire spectrum of consumer
demand, spanning the super-
premium, premium, and popular
segments. Our flagship and
premium brand is Fortune. In
the value-for-money segment,
we provide King's, Aadhar Avsar,
Bullet, Raag, Alpha, and Golden
Chef brands to address the
masstige segment.

No. 1 I >50% MS
No. 1 EEEE30-50% MS
No. T [C1<30% MS
Top 3 [C1<30% MS
Top 5 EEEEE <30% MS

For baking, and frying
applications, we offer prominent
brands including Jubilee and
Fryola. Our dedication to meeting
evolving demands in the bakery
and frying segments is evident

in customization, marketed in
bulk for business-to-business
transactions. We also export

Fortune branded consumer packs.

The Company procures crude
edible oil directly from producers
that is shipped to India. We
import edible oil only in crude
form and refine it in our refineries.
We import Soyabean Oil from
South America, Palm oil from
Southeast Asia, and Sunflower

oil from the Black Sea region.
Rice bran Qil, Groundnut Qil, and
Mustard Oil are sourced locally.
As a significant portion of the oil
demand is met through imports,
the majority of our manufacturing
facilities are located at ports
across South, West, and East
India.

As India's largest importer of
crude edible oil, we play a vital
role in satisfying approximately
20% of the country's total import
volume.

Our Mundra plant is the largest
refinery in India with a capacity
of approximately 5,000 Tonnes
per day.

In FY'23, edible oils contributed
around 45,000 Crore, with

both Soyabean oil and Palm oil
contributing over 15,000 Crore.
Sunflower oil and Mustard oil are
other two big contributors to our
edible oil sales.




Healthy edible oil portfolio

Fortune Xpert Total Balance

Oil: Our healthy cooking oil is
produced by blending three oils
to achieve an optimal balance

of SAFA (saturated fatty acids),
MUFA (monounsaturated

fatty acids), and PUFA
(polyunsaturated fatty acids).
This unique combination is
expertly formulated to promote
consumer well-being through

a nutrient balance. Our oil

offers an ideal ratio of Omega

3 and Omega 6 fatty acids,

with essential nutrients that
contribute to maintaining normal
cholesterol levels. The result is
that our blended oil is one of

the best blended in the market.
Blended edible oils lead to better
health outcomes, and commands
better pricing.

Rice Bran Qil (RBO): In 2013,
we introduced Fortune Rice
Bran Health Qil in the super-
premium segment to address
the growing demand for health-
oriented edible oils. We are

in an advantageous position
as it is a forward-integration
of rice milling process. The
brand’s focus was to highlight
unmatched product purity,

Fortune Xpert Pro Immunity Oil:
This oil blend is rich in more than
100 antioxidants, along with
essential vitamins A, D, and E. It
harnesses the potency of Omega
6 fatty acids. This empowers

the Immunity Booster Oil to
offer benefits for cardiovascular
health in moderating

harmful cholesterol.

positioning it as a 100% Rice
Bran Oil offering. RBO stands
out as the healthiest option,

with minimal absorption into
food, making meals healthier
and enhancing high-density

lipoprotein levels.

Rice Bran Qil (RBO) has

been gaining popularity

over traditional cooking oils,
thanks to superior cooking
outcomes, extended shelf

life, and a balanced fatty acid
composition. Its distinctive
attribute lies in the presence
of numerous antioxidant
components. A lower viscosity

and relatively high smoke point

make it a healthy cooking oil.

The consumption of RBO offers

benefits like boosting the

Bakery fat portfolio

The Company's specialty fats portfolio comprises a diverse range of products
tailored to specific industry needs. This includes industrial margarine, bakery
shortening, and vanaspati, supplied to restaurants, cafes, and bakeries. We
offer lauric fats that serve as substitutes for milk fat, as well as cocoa butter
substitutes for use in ice cream and confectionery products. These specialised
fats cater to unique requirements. We provide bulk packaging options for
frying oil, catering to businesses that require large oil quantities for frying.
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Fortune Xpert Pro Sugar
Conscious Oil: This oil blend
comprises select unrefined
sesame oil and premium
physically refined rice bran

oil. Our specialised oil blend
regulates sugar levels, addressing
diabetes, while maintaining a
healthy cholesterol balance.

immune system, prevention
of premature aging or age-
related neurodegenerative
diseases. Its composition

is rich in phytochemicals
beneficial for cardiovascular
health, alongside its potent
antioxidant properties. RBO
is classified as healthy for
consumption, earning the
status of a ‘heart-healthy oil".
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Foods: In the Foods segment,
the Company offers kitchen
essentials in branded form
wheat flour, rice, besan, pulses
and sugar. The staple foods
offered by the Company
comprises variants. For
example, the wheat flour
portfolio includes suji, rawa
and maida (SRM). The rice
segment offers basmati and
non-basmati rice variants.

~00d & FMCG

The Company addresses
staple foods fortification
with science-based nutrients,
an attractive opportunity

to enhance food-based
health and wellness across
India's population.

Besides, the Company's
objective is to enhance the
price-value proposition; it
offers consumers a choice of
premium variants.

AWL is the second largest player
in India's branded wheat flour
market. Our product range
encompasses consumer and bulk
packs, serving diverse customer
segments, including branded
sales and institutional clients.

Our primary offerings revolve
around key wheat flour variants
such as Atta (basic wheat flour),
Maida (refined wheat flour),
Rawa & Suji (granulated wheat).
Each variant addresses distinct
applications in Indian cuisine,
catering to diverse culinary
needs.

In FY'23, Food & FMCG
segment contributed around
34,000 Crore of revenue. Both
of our key product categories -
Wheat Flours and Rice, crossed
%1,000 Crore of revenue. Other
key contributors to the sales
were Pulses & Besan and Soya
products.

At our state-of-the-art wheat
flour mills, we employ stone
grinding machines, embracing
traditional wheat processing.
This commitment ensures the
retention of the authentic flavor
and quality of wheat flour.

Branded Consumer Pack
Market Share

Atta (%)
FY 21 3.5
FY 22 4.7
FY 23 5.0



Rice

Adani Wilmar markets branded
basmati rice under the Fortune
brand. Following the acquisition

of the prominent Kohinoor brand
(domestic) and sub-brands
during the year under review,
the Company marketed premium
Basmati rice under the Kohinoor
brand, affordable rice under

the Charminar sub-brand and
addressed the HoReCa segment
with the Trophy sub-brand.

Since foods business warrants
3 local approach addressing
regional palate preference, the
Company added regional rice
varieties to its portfolio. In West
Bengal, the Company marketed
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regional non-basmati rice
through the premium Miniket and
Banskanthi varieties. Besides,

the Company marketed rice to
institutional and international
buyers as well.

Branded Consumer Pack
Market Share

Basmati Rice (%)
FY 21 6.1
FY 22 6.5
FY 23 7.9*

*Includes Kohinoor market share of 0.7%
(Source: Nielsen)

Pulses and besan

The Company offers diverse
pulses, as per regional
preferences, setting it apart in the
marketplace. Our distinctiveness

lies in a commitment to offer
and promote unpolished pulses,
driven by health benefits. Our
products include Masoor, Arhar,
Chana Dal, Kabuli Chana, Rajma
Chitra, Moong Dal, Desi Masoor,
Kala Chana, and Sona Moong
Dal, ensuring that we cater to
widening consumer needs.

The Company established milling
plants to ensure consistent
quality, an aspect desired by
customers. We will expand our
manufacturing capacities to meet
growing demand.

As consumers become
increasingly conscious about the
quality of products they consume,
the acceptance of packed and
clean commodities is increasing,
particularly in Tier | and Tier Il
cities.

In the Brand Track report of the
third quarter of FY 2022-23,
Fortune Besan climbed to the
number one all-India position
for Top of Mind recall with
100% awareness, validating the
strength of the brand.

Sugar]

In fiscal year 2021, we introduced
sugar under the ‘Fortune’ brand.

Valued-added and other

food products

The Company expanded offerings
to include other select food
products. Value-added products
are produced through further

processing intermediate products.
They add to the premium portfolio
and enhance profitability.

Through the utilization of by-
products from our soybean
crushing process, we engage in
further processing to create a
range of value-added products.
This includes the production of
soya chunks, soya flour, soya grits,
soya flakes, soya bari, lecithin
and soya sauce. These products
possess a rich protein content,
positioning them as exceptional
sources of plant-based protein.

Some of the soya products
are highly sought afterin
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international markets, where their
non-GMO origin is appreciated.
Lecithin and its derivatives, in

particular, enjoy demand among
pharmaceutical and cosmetic
industries.

Fortune Poha

We launched Fortune Poha in
2022. We offer two distinctive
products - Indori Poha and Thick
Poha. Leveraging the trusted
Fortune brand, we ensure the
highest quality, source the

finest paddy, employ superior
manufacturing technologies that
minimise the incidence of broken

material and deliver a chemical-
free product.

A standout in our product
lineup is Fortune Indori Poha,
distinguished by its exceptional
softness — a key differentiating
factor. As we develop its market,
we are generating more trials
through consumer promotions
and marketing activities.

Branded health and convenience foods

Fortune Soya Badi
(Nuggets)

In 2015, we introduced Soya
Nuggets under the trusted
Fortune brand. Soya Nugget,
also recognised as soyabean
badi, soya wadi and soya bari, is

available in three variants - Soya
Chunks, Soya Mini Chunks and
Soya Granules - each differing in
size and texture. Fortune Soya
Chunk, is an established product
and enjoys customer awareness
across cities, affirmed by a recent
Food Dipstick survey. As a key
player, the brand stands second
by market share.

Fortune Soya Chunk comprises
an impressive protein content

of 52%, making it an excellent
plant-based source of essential
amino acids, crucial for immunity
development. They also possess
good fiber, essential vitamins,

and minerals such as iron and
calcium. These chunks are low
in fat and calories, reinforcing
their appeal as a healthy dietary
option.

In recent years, there has been a
shift from loose to packaged soya
nuggets, particularly during the
pandemic. Health consciousness
has also contributed to the
increased adoption of this
nutritious alternative.



Fortune Soya Chunkies (RTC)

We launched Soya Chunkies in 2021.
We provide the nutritional benefits

of soya in a convenient ready-to-cook
format, allowing for easy preparation
in five minutes. This offering combines
the advantages of convenience and

Khichdi (RTC)

In 2020, the Company introduced
ready-to-cook khichdi, a delectable
blend of rice, pulses, and other grains.
This innovative offering included three
flavors, each crafted around the culinary
preferences of different regions. By
incorporating a variety of flavors, we

Kohinoor Biryani Kit (RTC)

In March 2023, we introduced the
Kohinoor Hyderabadi Biryani Kit as

part of our Kohinoor brand'’s premium
lineup in the ready-to-cook category.
This strategic launch signifies our
commitment to delivering exceptional
culinary experiences. We plan to
introduce the Lucknowi variant, widening
our offerings.

Fortune Chana Sattu

In 2021, we introduced Fortune Chana
Sattu to our product portfolio. This
unique offering is crafted from carefully
sourced roasted chickpeas, known

as ‘chana’, which are also utilised for
our renowned ‘Besan’. Chana Sattu
holds a cherished place in traditional
Indian households, particularly in Bihar
and Jharkhand, where it is consumed

FMCG

The Company is one of the largest soap
noodle manufacturers in India, marketed
to industrial clients. It is a forward
integration of our soap noodles. This
product was offered to retail consumers
under the Alife brand during FY 2019-20.
Soap sales volume under the Alife brand
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wholesome nutrition. Our ready-to-cook
soya products are available in three
flavors - Chinese Manchurian, Mexican
Salsa, and African Peri Peri.

not only addressed the nutritional and
wholesome aspects of khichdi but also
enhanced the overall taste experience,
aligning with our commitment to culinary
excellence.

The Kohinoor Hyderabadi Biryani

Kit has been designed to simplify

the preparation while ensuring the
authenticity and quality. With this
product, we aim to provide our customers
with the convenience they desire without
compromising the traditional flavour and
richness associated with Hyderabadi
Biryani.

extensively during the summer to
counter heat and maintain hydration.

This remarkable superfood contains an
abundance of protein, fiber, iron, calcium,
and a range of essential minerals and
vitamins. It is a versatile ingredient for
creating high-protein meals, snacks, and
nutritious beverages.

have been growing fast and crossed
%100 Crore in revenues in FY 2022-23.
The Company plans to integrate other
products forward in a similar way.
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INndustry essentials

The Company offers products
to institutional customers

for industrial. These are key
ingredients for the FMCG
industry in the manufacture of
s0aps, detergents and paints
etc. The manufacture of these
products is synergic with food
processing operations. These
products are margins-accretive
for the Company'’s business.
The Company became one of
the largest players in these
products, demonstrating
commitment towards focused
categories.

Oleochemicals and de-oiled
cakes are derived from the
processing of by-products from
the edible oil business.

The Company entered the
castor oil business on the
back of an expertise in seed
procurement, crushing,
processing, risk management
and institutional customer
relationships.

In FY 2022-23, the Company
had sales of around 38,000
Crore in Industry essentials
segment, and oleo & castor
businesses contributed around
36,000 Crore.



Oleochemicals

At AWL, oleochemicals are
manufactured from palm stearin
generated from palm oil refining.
The key products from this
process comprise stearic acid,
soap noodles, palmitic acid,
oleic acid and glycerin. These
byproducts comprise primary
ingredients for home and
personal care products like soaps,
detergents, cosmetics, polymer,
pharmaceuticals and industrial
rubber.

In 2014, the Company
commenced production at its
state-of-the-art oleochemical
manufacturing complex

at Mundra. Following the

commissioning of additional
Oleochemicals capacity in
the third quarter of FY 21, the
Company is now one of the
largest oleo manufacturers in
India.

The forward integration of

the Company's Oleochemical
business into specialty chemicals
progressed during the year. The
Company received approvals for
certain products from marquee
customers. The state-of-art

R&D and applications laboratory
in Mundra continues to focus
on innovation and customer-
centricity.
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Castor oil and
derivatives

Castoris a green product

with a range of industrial
applications. The key derived
products comprise stearic acid
and ricinoleic acid that are used
in medical, pharmaceutical,
cosmetic, and aeronautical
applications.

AWL acquired its first castor oil
plant in 2008 with a capacity of
600 MT/Day; this was expanded
by 500 MT/Day through a

new facility in Mundra. The
Company moved to a position
of prominence in the castor oil
and derivative business following
the addition of a low moisture
oil production facility and the
introduction of pharma grade
castor oil. The Company is the
largest exporter of castor oil,

castor oil derivatives and castor
meal from India.

AWL is a global company in castor
oil and derivatives and is the only
Indian manufacturer company
with storage facilities outside
India. The Company possesses

a castor oil storage facility oil in
Rotterdam, The Netherlands, that
addresses demand in Northern
Europe; the facility in Marseille,
France, addresses demand in
Southern Europe; it possesses

a storage facility for castor
derivatives at Meer in Belgium.

The Company is the largest
exporter of castor oil. It received
an award as the highest castor
oil exporter from India for

2022 during the Global Castor
Conference organised by the
Solvent Extractors’ Association of
India in February 2023.

By the virtue of a strong presence
in raw material procurement and
3 global market presence, AWL is
attractively placed in the castor
oil business for the long-term.

De-oiled cakes (DOC)

De-oiled cakes are by-products
following oil extraction from
soybeans, mustard seeds and
castor seeds, and sold as livestock
feed.
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Qur Product
Portfolio

Edible oils

Premium portfolio

Fortune Soya Health Oil Fortune Refined Fortune Kachi Ghani Fortune Cottonlite Oil
Sunflower Oil Mustard Oil
Fortune Refined Fortune Soya plus Oil

Groundnut oil

Premium health-focused oils

Fortune Rice Bran Fortune Xpert Pro Fortune Xpert Pro Sugar-  Fortune Xpert Total
Health Qil Immunity Oil conscious Qil Balance Oil
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Popular edible oils

Kings Soyabean oil Kings Sunflower oil Kings Mustard oil Bullet Lite Mustard oil

Raag gold refined palm oil Aadhar refined sunflower oil

Vanaspati Institutional frying oil

Raag vanaspati Avsar vanaspati Fryola



Specialty fats
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Willshort

Fryola

Besschoc

Jubilee Masterchef

Willcake

Ultrachoco

Alpha Cookwell

Willpuff

Bessice

Willarine

Wilkote

Wilkrim
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Wheat Flours

Fortune Chakki fresh Atta Fortune Maida

Fortune Suji

Fortune Rawa

Rice
Basmati Rice - ‘Fortune’ brand

Fortune Biryani Classic Fortune Biryani Special
Rice Rice

Fortune Dubar Basmati Fortune Rozana Basmati
Rice Rice

Fortune Biryani Special
Rice

Fortune Super Basmati
Rice

Fortune Hamesha
Basmati Rice

Fortune Everyday Basmati
Rice

Fortune Biryani Classic
Rice



Basmati Rice - ‘Kohinoor’ Brand

Kohinoor Royale
Authentic Basmati rice

Kohinoor Authentic
Basmati Rice

CORPORATE OVERVIEW
STATUTORY REPORTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basmati Rice - Horeca brand

Trophy Royale Finest
Extra Long Basmati Rice

41

Non-Basmati Rice

Fortune Sona Masoori
Supreme Rice

Jubilee Rice

Fortune Sona Masoori
Regular Rice

Fortune Wada Kolam Rice Fortune Banskathi
Rice
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Pulses & Besan

Fortune Arhar Dal

Masoor Dal

Sona Moong Dal

Sugar

Fortune Sugar

Chana Dal Kabuli Chana whole

Masoor Malka Moong Dal

Fortune Chana Besan

Poha

Fortune Indori Poha Fortune Thick Poha

Kala Chana

Rajma Chitra



Health & Convenience Food Portfolio
Soya-based products

Fortune Soya Chunks Fortune Mini Soya Chunks Fortune Soya Granules
Fortune Soya Chunkies Fortune Soya Chunkies
Mexican Salsa African Peri Peri

Khichdi (RTC)

Fortune Achaari Khichdi Fortune Gujarati Khichdi

Fortune Pav Bhaji Khichdi Fortune Mexican Salsa
Khichdi

Fortune Bengali Bhog
Khichuri

Chana Sattu

Fortune Chana Sattu
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Fortune Soya Chunkies
Chinese Manchurian

Fortune Punjabi Khichdi

Biryani Kit (RTC)

Kohinoor Biryani kit
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FMCG (Personal Care)

Soap & Handwash

Alife Soap Alife Handwash
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Our integrated
business model

Overview

At AWL, our business model is Downstream value-addition: Logistics integration: Shared

integrated with the objective to At AWL, we enhance value transportation allows to ship

enhance profitability. from products through multiple products that has small
downstream processing. volumes, along with a product

The principal elements of the that has large volumes. Thus, it

Company’s business model Manufacturing integration: At :
) ) ; makes shipment of low-volume
integration comprise the AWL, co-located plants help . !

. . ; products economically viable and
following: moderate administration costs

Il fr nt replenishment.
and shared utilities (steam and allows frequent replenishment

warehouses etc.) and logistics.

Integrated oil setup

Edible oil
‘> (refining) 4‘
v v

Deoiled cakes Branded oil

Oleochemicals Vanasapati Bakery fats Lauric fats

Soaps
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Qur customer
segments
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At AWL, we are primarily in the branded business.

We service the entire gamut of customers, widening our addressable market. This benefits our cost
structure as higher volumes provide economies of scale, with superior asset utilization in manufacturing,

storage & logistics and a lower cost of per unit production.

Customer segments

_ Households HoReCa

Institutional

Exports

Emerging Opportunity

Products = Branded = Branded =
= Consumer & Bulk Packs | = Consumer & Bulk Packs | =

Loose oil = Branded
Bulk pack in foods | = Private Label

= Bulk

Households

As a prominent branded foods
company, our primary focus is
to cater to the diverse needs
of Indian households. We
established our presence in
one of three Indian households.
Through our extensive omni-
channel approach, we ensure
wide accessibility, making
products available on major

e-commerce platforms. We have
been strategically expanding our
retail outlet coverage to enhance
our reach and drive household
penetration.

While the adoption of packaged
food remains relatively low

in Indian households, rising
incomes have led to an increased
preference for branded food

products. This trend is prominent
in nuclear families where time
constraints limit the ability to
process grains at home.

As a result, there is a growing
demand for convenient, ready-to-
use branded food products that
offer ease in primary processing
and food preparation.

A large number of Hotels, Restaurants

and flexibility benefits. The Company

& Caterers (HoReCa) need trusted

food brands. In addition to dependable
product quality, they need superior and
flexible service to address unpredictable
demand and commodity prices. This
commercial segment provides the
Company with a large and growing
demand coupled with diversification

markets products directly to religious
and institutional caterers, quick service
restaurants, hotel chains, food franchise
and schools.

Institutions

The Company enjoys long- bakery fats to institutional

and commodity prices. It sells to

standing relationships with
prominent institutional customers
in the food processing industry.

It has marketed edible oils and

customers for long, leveraging
relationships to grow foods sales.
It provides flexible service to
address unpredictable demand

traders who are intermediaries
with a wide network of smaller
customers.



The Company serves a range
of markets with a diversified
portfolio of branded edible ail
products, foods, oleochemicals,
and castor oil derivatives. Its
products are exported to more
than 50 countries. In a recent

move, the Company expanded its
footprint by introducing branded
edible oil products to the Middle
East.

The Company emerged as the
largest exporter of castor oil
from India. Its leadership extends
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to the export of oleochemicals,
reinforcing its position among
leading Indian exporters. Through
extensive export capabilities, it
caters to markets worldwide.

SEYCHELLES

g MAURITIUS
MADAGASCAR

5,004

Crore, Export Revenues

®

50+

Export destinations
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Branding

and marketing

At AWL, effective branding and
marketing have been designed
to create a strong brand identity
and engagement with targeted
consumers.

AWL achieved a successful brand
extension of its flagship brand

Fortune - from edible oils to
edible oils and foods, catering to
almost the entire range of food
products.

By creating a flagship brand-
centric approach across
categories and products,

the Company has enhanced
consumer confidence,
accelerated offtake, and
moderated marketing spends
for its emerging food products
portfolio.

Brand architecture

The Company employs a price
laddering approach in each
product category, addressing the
premium to the mass market.
The premium brand is adequately
supported by other brands to
retain market share across
customer segments and evolving
consumer preferences.

Premium brands

Fortune, the Company'’s flagship
premium brand, is leveraged

for almost all packaged food
products. The use of a common
brand identity across multiple
categories has optimised
marketing costs and enhance
brand equity.

The Company introduced the
prominent Kohinoor food brand

following the acquisition of its
India brand rights. Kohinoor
enjoys an extensive recall in

the basmati rice category as a
premium brand, which should
help premiumise the rice business
further.

Popular brands

The Company has scaled popular
brands for its packaged edible oils
and foods segments.

Presence across the price spectrum

Super premium

Premium

Popular

fortune,
Jpert

total balance

I<eifimeer

Katinoor”

fortune TRVO‘;“

KING'S q|{fe BuniEr

I

CHARMINAR

A healthy mix of premium and popular brands
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Strong brands built on basis of trust and quality over last 2 decades
[ Value j [ Brands j [ Segment j
7
Edible oil & fats+
320,000 Crore+ Food & FMCG
®
34,000 Crore+ Edible oil & fats
J
Edible oil & fats+
~%1,000 Crore+ Food & EMCG
N
500 Crore+ Edible oil & fats
J
2100 Crore+ Avsar  I<dfueer wurr @ alife Edible oil & fats

Marketing channels

The Company deploys all mass
media like television, print,
billboards and digital to promote
its brand. It has been increasingly
using the digital medium for
organic and paid engagements.

It utilises influencer marketing to
build trust and attract customers.
It leverages vernacular social
media platforms to deepen

its regional connect based on

its understanding of regional
consumers. It has been steadily
increasing its digital promotional
spending, creating youth-centric

content to connect with a new
age target group. It uses new
age platforms like WhatsApp
Chatbot and Fortune Online
App to widen its customer reach
and engagement. The Company
leverages the power of social
media to deepen customer
engagements leveraging trends
and topical posts.

Brand communication

The Company’s product-centric
content, recipe videos, interactive
campaigns, and search engine
optimization have enhanced
recall.

The Company's marketing
campaigns highlight an
overarching commitment to
quality food that celebrates the
wholesome experience of ‘Ghar
ka Khana' (home-cooked food).

Brand ambassadors

Fortune Foods has also partnered
celebrity brand ambassadors like
Akshay Kumar, Twinkle Khanng,
Samantha Ruth Prabhu and
Sourav Ganguly, in addition to
prominent chefs and social media
influencers.
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Our brand ambassadors

Samantha Prabhu Sourav Ganguly

Akshay Kumar and Twinkle Khanna
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fortune

Staying Healthy Every
Day is Now a Certainty!
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Sales and

distribution

Overview

An efficient cum extensive
distribution system and channel
partnerships are key to the
building of a wide consumer base.

The Company serves households
through the General Trade,
alternate channels like Modern
Trade, E-commerce and e-B2B.
HoReCa demand is addressed

indirectly through household
channels and directly through
dedicated sales teams.
Institutional and exports are
addressed through direct B2B
relationships.

Unlike many other edible oil
companies that rely on trading
routes, AWL has prioritised direct

General Trade channel

The Company comprises more
than 10,000+ distributors
(including sub-distributors),
directly addressing around
600,000 retail outlets. The
Company'’s total reach, which
includes indirect reach through
the wholesalers, is around 1.8

distribution. This distribution
platform has been instrumental in
the success of our Food & FMCG
business.

The Company's large product
range of edible oils and foods
translates into a high throughput
for distributors and other
partners.

Mn outlets. The Company has a
complete coverage of all urban
towns with a population of more
than 100,000. The Company'’s
coverage of rural towns, with a
sub-100,000 population, was
13,000+,

The Company is leveraging the
edible oil distribution network
to reach retail outlets for food



products. As the foods business
has scaled, the Company has
segregated edible oils and
foods distribution in urban
areas to enhance salesperson
focus. In most rural regions,

the Company uses a combined
distribution network. It has a
separate distribution network for
premium and popular products,
strengthening focus.

Network expansion: Strategic
focus on increasing direct retail
coverage from 0.6 Mn retail
outlets to 1 Mn outlets in the
foreseeable future.

Rural priority: The Company
focuses on rural and ‘urban’ towns
that are under-indexed compared
to other FMCG companies.
Around 75% of India’'s population
is residing in the rural towns

and is increasingly consuming
packaged foods. This segment
contributes around 30% of the
Company'’s sales of packaged
edible oils and food. The Company
aims to directly cover clusters of
more than 20,000 population and
deepen its reach to clusters with
a population of less than 20,000
through sub distributors and
wholesale routes. The Company
strengthened its rural sales team
to address this opportunity.

Technology enhancement: The
Company deploys technology
in the sales function to manage
scale and enhance sales

team productivity:

= Tracks and prompts
salespersons to enhance outlet
productivity

= Enabled the sales team with
Distributor Management Systems
and handheld electronic tools

= S4 Hana for the primary billing
to all channel partners

= Distributor Management
System for billing to all retailers;
introduced a light version app for
rural distributors

= Automated salesman activities
and frontline sales processes,
salesforce automation for
salesperson to take orders from
all types of retailers; automated
sales team activities through
the installation of the sales
application in smartphones,
enhancing day-to-day planning,
performance monitoring and
timely reports generation

Data analytics in sales and
distribution: The Company
is taking informed decisions
through the following
analytics initiatives:

Distributor segmentation:
Classification of existing
distributors based on buying
patterns and financial
parameters; identification of
distributors at risk leading to
retention initiatives

Outlet level insights:
Identification of similar potential
outlet purchase patterns

Route optimization: Optimizing
the daily market route through a
determined sales beat.

Go-to-market enhancement: The

Company strengthened its market

presence through the following
initiatives: superior resource
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management, comprising talent
and network; periodic service

of meaningful outlets; weekly
salesman engagement with
outlets ensure that majority
outlets buy at least once a month;
periodic sales team training in the
sales process, behavioral aspects,
products and technology.

Alternate channel

The Company markets products
to Modern Trade, E-commerce,
Quick commerce and e-B2B
players; its D2C channel services
Fortune Online. To enhance sales
to digitally savvy customers, the
Company connects with the
audience through digital and new
age media.

D2C channel: The Company
services customers online
through Fortune Mart (33
outlets) and Fortune Online (25
cities) that made it possible

to order products from home.
The Company's exclusive
website — www.fortunefoods.
com - showcases the entire
product basket.
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Manufacturing

23

Owned units

58

Leased units

5.5

Mn Tonnes, Refining capacity
per annum

0.9

Mn Tonnes, Food capacity per
annum

Overview

The Company deploys state-of-
the-art, hands-free technologies
in oil refining and packaging.
These technologies were selected
to generate consistent quality
with optimum costing, while
moderating colour and FFA (Free
Fatty Acids). The edible oils and
fats specification were developed
to address statutory requirements
laid down by FSSAI and Agmark
(wherever applicable) and are
significantly better compared to
other producers. The Company's
plants received numerous awards
for quality and food safety
standards.

The Company's refinery in Mundra
is the one of the largest at any
single location in India with a
designed capacity of around
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5,000 Tonnes per day. It also
comprises an integrated state-
of-the-art carton manufacturing
facility.
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Integrated
Manufacturing Units

The Company operates an
integrated manufacturing
infrastructure and supply
chain, ensuring efficient and
well-managed operations. The
manufacturing set-up has been
designed to deliver multiple
cost synergies across the
supply chain, with backward
and forward linkages as well
as the co-manufacturing of
different products at the same
facility. Such an integrated
set-up enables the utilization
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of a common supply chain,
storage facilities, distribution
network and manpower to
maximise cost optimization.
Forinstance, in the recent
years, the Company added food
capacities at existing refineries
to benefit from the established
infrastructure of edible oils. It
will continue to invest in best-in-
class integrated infrastructure
that drives efficiencies and offers
the highest quality of packaged
edible oils and foods.

Strategic manufacturing
locations

At AWL, manufacturing units

are either located close to raw
materials or customers, helping
minimise logistics and handling
costs on the one and enhancing
responsiveness to market realities
on the other. The Company'’s
units located proximate to
customers ensure timely product
replenishment, higher product
freshness and direct delivery to
distributors, saving transshipment
and depot storage costs. All

the Company's imported crude
edible oil is refined in one of

its seven port-based refineries;
other refineries are located in

the hinterland, proximate to raw
materials.

Best-in-class global
technologies

AWL invested in the best
technologies, enhancing product
quality, safety standards,
automation and asset life.

The Company invested in Swiss
technology in its food factories;
for the manufacture of nuggets,
it deployed an American
extruder with double screw
technology; its oil extraction
from mustard seeds was derived
from Chillex technology that
helps retain all unique mustard

oil characteristics. The Company
invested in Belgian technology
for the production of oleo; the
beading of stearic acid was
supplied from Taiwan; its high-
speed bagging machine was
imported from Austria.

The Company deployed servo-
based tin manufacturing to
maintain quality consistency and
safety. In all effluents treatment,
the Company uses zero liquid
discharge with the latest
technology (EDI, MBR and SUF) to
increase effluents management
efficiency and reduce rejects
compared to the conventional
system.

Automation and
efficiency

The Company strives for
enhanced automation to manage
operations:

= Process Information
Management System (PIMS) for
real-time OEE and KPIs

= Continuous process with
SCADA and PLC controls in the
process plant and utilities.

= State-of-the-art automated
packing and filling lines

= Robots for secondary packing
activities

= Tech Systems for estimating
real-time crude and refined oil
inventories

= Automated Steam and Water
Analysis System in the boiler to

improve boiler life and moderate
downtime.

= Computerised warehouse
management system in
manufacturing facilities and
depots.

= PLC-based synchronization of
the air compressor to optimise
power consumption

= Robotic solar panel cleaning
system

Safe working
environment

The Company enhances safety at
its manufacturing plants through
the following initiatives:

= The Company invested in

fall arrestors across all loading
points, 360-degree machine
guarding, storage tank health
check, hexane unloading safety
system by monitoring hexane
pump earthing and the digital
monitoring of fire protection
systems.

= The Company adopted robotic
palletizing, improving safety

Environment friendly

The Company strives to reduce
the impact of its operations

on environment through the
following initiatives:

= Water conservation and
recycling through the adoption
of the zero liquid discharge
technology in effluent treatment

= Solar power generation for
electricity

= Energy-efficient vacuum
system with ice condensation/
chilled water.
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~00d safety

and quality policy

Overview

At AWL, we are committed to the
highest food safety standards.

In view of this, we put a priority
on the adoption of all food safety
measures and controls certified
by Indian statutory bodies and
renowned international agencies
like American Institute of Bakery.

The senior AWL management
assumed responsibility for the
effective implementation of

3 Food Safety Management
System in accordance with ISO
22000:2018 guidelines. Besides,
the Company has designated
responsibilities, accountability
and authority across the
organization.

The Company is committed to the
highest standards, marked by a
commitment to:

= Manufacture, produce and
pack edible oils & fats, atta,
besan, maida, suji, soya, nuggets,
rice, pulses, sugar etc. in modern
plants in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations

with respect to product quality,
food safety and other customer
priorities.

= Achieve continuous
improvement and lead the
deployment of state-of-the-
art technologies, marked by
sustainable innovations in
food safety quality that make
it possible to win stakeholder
confidence

= Formulate measurable
objectives and assurance of team
competence requirements in a
time-bound manner

= Review periodically food safety
and quality management systems
that enhance suitability

= Communicate the Food Safety
Policy across all relevant internal
and external stakeholders.



F00d safety
and quality

Overview

At AWL, robust Food Safety
Management System, GMP and
Food Safety practices resulted

in @ preventive manufacturing
approach to address issues
related to quality and food
safety. These proactive initiatives
moderate food safety and quality
market complaints, zero market
recall or withdrawal, while
enhancing customer faith in the
product and brand.

Certifications

= All plants are certified for
Food Safety System Certification
ISO 22000

= Packing operations are
audited and recognised by
American Institute of Baking
with 'Prerequisite & Food Safety
Programs'’

Affiliations

= Training Partner to Food Safety
& Standard Authority of India,
Government of India, New Delhi.

Quality assurance

At AWL, the quality assurance
specifications laid down are
more stringent than those
recommended by FSSAI. The
Company comprises food safety-
trained officers and those
representing FSSAI (Food Safety
and Standard Authority of India).
All food handlers are trained to
prioritise food safety.

Calibration: The Company
engages in calibration initiatives
that enhance confidence in

the analytical accuracy of all
physicochemical perspectives
of incoming goods and finished
products. The reproducibility
and repeatability results of
internal laboratory analyses are
calibrated through an NABL
external laboratory results as per
a planner.

The Company engages in
periodic retail (competitor)
sample analysis and internal
ring test with reproducibility
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and reproductivity inputs that
enhance confidence on analytical
compliance

Supplier quality assurance:

The Company engages in an
integrated site assessment
matrix and incoming material
compliance planner that assess
development and changes at the
supplier end.

At AWL, there is a focus on
supplier quality assurance
through communication and
knowledge sharing. Periodic
planned site food safety

and quality assessments are
conducted by qualified AWL
professionals. The Company
monitors integrated information
through questionnaires,
enhancing compliance visibility.

Value chain initiative: The
Company has taken initiatives,
and conducts periodic reviews,
across the value chain in product
handling and storage practices
of finished goods, enhancing
product stability.
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Research

and Development

Overview

Our Company'’s Research and
Development (R&D) center
comprise a state-of-art facility
and a team of experts. The
primary objective of our R&D
department is to maintain our
leadership in the edible oil
category while expanding in
new business verticals. With a
strong emphasis on quality and
customer preferences, our R&D
team is dedicated to developing

Edible oils

Continuous R&D advancements
have significantly enhanced the
edible oil refining processes,
ensuring consistent taste and
quality that meet consumer
preferences across all our
refineries. Through dedicated
R&D efforts, we have successfully
eliminated undesirable
compounds from palm and
soybean oil. These refined oils
and fats now offer best-in-class

quality products that cater to the
needs of retail and institutional
customers.

We recognise the potential of
derivative products derived from
agricultural commaodities, which
can be utilised in food and non-
food applications. Our Company
has demonstrated this potential
through the development of
bakery fats, soy derivatives, and

quality for industrial and non-
industrial applications.

Healthy edible oils

The RE&D team implemented a
strategic initiative to promote
the benefits of rice bran oil (RBO)
and harness the goodness of
oryzanol and vitamins. Through
innovative enzymatic degumming
technology for refining, an
authentic-colored RBO of
superior quality was developed.

oleo products. Our R&D team

is committed to exploring and
commercializing these derivative
products, unlocking new
opportunities for growth.

AWLs R&D leverages capabilities
of Wilmar International's R&D
division to stay at the forefront of
technological advancements.

This premium RBO is marketed
under the Fortune brand.

The RED department formulated
a3 range of nutritious and
pro-health edible oil blends

that cater to the optimal and
essential fatty acid requirements,
without compromising taste

and aesthetics. The product line
is marketed under the Fortune
Xpert brand.



Bakery fats

The Company possesses a
significant R&D capability
focused on palm oil and its
derivatives. Through extensive
capability in technology
understanding related to
lauric, stearic, olein and super
olein fats, the R&D team has
developed customised fats for
confectionery, bakery, and ice
cream applications.

The entire lauric fats (derived
from palm kernel oil) business

is a result of the Company'’s
R&D efforts. These fats serve as
excellent substitutes, replacers,
and equivalents to cocoa butter,
and are sought in the B2B
confectionery markets.

The RED department achieved
the successful commercialization
of frying oils under the brand
name Fryola specifically designed
for the bakery and frying

industry. Fryola stands out for

its exceptional functionality in
maintaining oil stability during
long hours of continuous frying
operations. It creates low frothing
and ensures the generation of low
levels of total polar compounds,

a key quality parameter that
indicates frying deterioration.

Food products

The Company's RED capabilities,
combined with its extensive
knowledge of grain science
technology, have enabled the
development of tailored blends
for new products. Throughout
the process, the focus remains
on ensuring the highest levels
of food safety, product quality,
optimised material blend and
competitive pricing by design.

The R&D team works
continuously in creating unique

and innovative products that
offer a combination of taste,
convenience, nutritional value
and superior quality. This
includes the development of
kitchen essentials and ready-to-
eat products. Leveraging their
expertise in sensory science,
product applications, and
analytical capabilities, as well
as their deep understanding of
consumer preferences, the R&D
department drives agile and
nimble innovation.

The R&D has played a pivotal
role in the swift comprehension
and establishment of operational
efficiencies for the successful
launch of the Kohinoor rice
products following the brand
rights acquisition.

Health & convenience
food products

The RED team is dedicated to
enhancing the nutritional value
of its products by incorporating
beneficial nutrients. They have
successfully developed products
that are rich in protein, dietary
fiber, and have a well-balanced
fatty acid composition, promoting
health and fitness.

In addition, the R&D team
developed the capability for using
whole grains and millets in their
product portfolio, addressing
taste barriers to ensure consumer
acceptance and desirability.

The R&D department played a
crucial role in driving innovation
in the ready-to-cook category.

It successfully developed and
launched products such as Millet
Mix Khichadi, Soya Chunkies,
and Hydrating Protein Mix-Sattu
under the Fortune brand. These
products cater to consumer
preferences for convenience
while offering nutritious options.
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Reducing environmental
footprint

The RED department is actively
contributing to AWL's efforts

to minimise its environmental
footprint by embracing

the principles of reduce,

reuse, and recycle (3R) in its
packaging operations through
optimised design. With a strong
commitment to sustainability,
R&D aims to make all packaging
materials 100% recyclable or
reusable in the near future.

ESG

AWL made a strong commitment
to tackle the issue of plastic
waste by implementing an
extensive Extended Producer
Responsibility (EPR) initiative
across India. This initiative
focuses on the collection and
energy recovery of multilayer
and plastic packaging waste
in collaboration with PROs
(Producer Responsibility
Organizations).

AWL is determined to achieve
plastic neutrality by 2023-24.
This means that the Company
aims to retrieve and offset the
same amount of plastic from
the environment as it uses in
its packaging, neutralizing the
plastic footprint.
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SUpply chain

management

Overview

Adani Wilmar manages an
integrated supply chain for
2000+ SKUs produced in 60+
manufacturing locations, supplied
to 90+ fulfillment centers

and 13,000+ towns through

a scientific approach. The

Digitization and
streamlined processes

The Company deployed a
customised end-to-end process
on a single platform; this
comprises the full integration

of SAP with the Manufacturing
and Logistics Planning tool. The
Company's end-to-end integrated
logistics model comprises freight
service buying till payment,
including vehicle-in vehicle-out
movements from the factory and
vehicle tracking throughout the
delivery journey. The Company's
supply chain workflow is digitised,
resulting in paperless processes,
data availability, truck movement

Company's network model has
been scientifically derived using a
mathematical model on demand
and supply scenarios.

The function’s objective is to
deliver products to consumers

visibility and faster payments to
vendors.

Digitization has helped create

3 state-of-the-art supply chain
control tower in Ahmedabad

to centrally manage the entire
supply chain. This resulted in
operational excellence across
the supply chain, unlocking
significant benefits, including
enhanced data-driven efficiency,
advanced monitoring, enhanced
compliance, streamlined
processes, and benefits of scale
in moderating procurement costs
and effort.

The Company invested in
monitoring systems for better

fresh and on time, optimise
delivery costs, moderate inventory
at the fulfillment centers, reduce
lost sale and optimise cost-to-
serve levels.

control over operations, marked
by a monitoring of all exceptions
and ‘what if’ scenarios based on
an Al and ML-driven approach.
The Company possess the
capability to track SKU-wise stock
of each vehicle that goes to the
rake point, wagon-wise loading at
the origin, wagon-wise unloading
at the destination and the final
movement till the customer.

Demand forecasting,
production & dispatch
plan

The Company's robust planning
process commences from
demand estimation, using
statistical forecasts coupled



with an optimization engine,
that guides the supply network
towards optimised service. Some
key process elements comprise:

= Demand estimation accuracy
target of 90%+ across business
lines coupled with 95%-plus on-
time and in-full (OTIF) delivery

= Townwise distribution
forecasting is aggregated to the
nearest depot level forecast.

= Optimised production plans
and dispatch plans are generated
as per demand

= Least cost optimization
programme is run on parameters
like raw material prices, logistic
costs and plant utilization etc.

= Distribution centers’
replenishment is based on pre-
defined inventory norms

= External causal factors
(commodities and derivatives
market) are integrated in the
forecast

Logistics

The Company's integrated
logistics IT solution is paperless
and provides real-time visibility.

To optimise overall logistic costs
and moderate carbon footprint,
the Company uses a complement
of logistical modes (road, rakes
and coastal).

Efficient procurement of logistic services

All truck hiring is done through
online reverse auctions that
help secure the best rates and
enhance process integrity

The Company implemented a
GPS tracking system to enable
real-time monitoring and vehicle
fleet tracking. This technology
comprises an accuracy exceeding
90%.

In 3 commitment to sustainable
and environmentally friendly
practices, the Company embarked
on hiring compressed natural

gas (CNG) vehicles starting

in FY 2022-23. The Company
incentivised its vendors to
embrace this eco-friendly
alternative.

In FY 2022-23, 23% (22% in

FY 2021-22) of packaged edible
oil was dispatched through

the multi-modal mode (larger
distance covered by rail or water,
only first & last mile is transported
through roads)

The Company earned 22,574
Rail Green points for the use of
railway in cargo movement

Warehouses and
secondary distribution

The Company comprises ~2
Mn sq. ft. of storage space
with a presence in 24 States.
It comprises experienced and
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dedicated fulfilment centre
teams. It widened its retail
footprint by opening fulfillment
centers that widened its rural
town coverage. It developed
Distribution Centers that serves
as hubs to service customers in
addition to quicker fulfilment
centre re-filling at a shorter
notice.

The Company has a well-

defined food safety program; it
conducts continuous training and
development for its fulfilment
centre team and monitors ISO
compliances. The Company
remains fully compliant with the
ISO 22000-2018 certification.

It maintains 100% compliance
with FSSAI norms and State and
Central Laws monitoring through
the technology driven portal.

The Company has developed a
centralised billing and banking
process with stringent credit
checks as per the credit policy,
with 100% payment receipt
through the electronic mode.

The Company benchmarks high
service standards, reflected in its
ability to serve distributors within
24 hours in towns located within
100 km and within 48 hours in
towns located across more than
100 kms.

Comprehensive controls on every element of supply chain

Monitoring vehicle movement: Ensuring on-time delivery

Warehouse capacity management



ADANI WILMAR LIMITED
70 ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

Procurememt and
risk management

Overview

At AWL, our procurement
comprises a mix of imports and
domestic sourcing, depending

on the raw material. The salient
features of AWLs sourcing
discipline comprise the following:

The Company invests in strong
relationships with suppliers,
helping secure raw materials
during the leanest periods and
enhancing logistical flexibility

The Company is a preferred
customer for all major global
and domestic suppliers due to
its long-standing track record,
procurement consistency and
procurement scale.

The Company has developed
multiple suppliers; the
redundancy moderates
concentration risk of suppliers.

The Company leverages
relationships with suppliers in

the edible oil value chain to
access first-hand information of
the supply demand dynamics of
commodities in the international
markets and related price
movements, resulting in proactive
commodity price risk mitigation.

The Company has established
systems to procure quality seeds
from market yards/traders/
stockists; it is a preferred buyer
due to transparent systems.

The Company checks seed quality
before each truck is unloaded in
its factories.

The Company possesses
adequate inventory stocking
capacity to capitalise on seasonal
arbitrage opportunities.

The Company has a robust risk
management policy that hedges
exposure to commodity prices
and export contracts.

Imports

= The Company is the largest
Indian edible oils player;
correspondingly, it is the largest
edible oils importer as well.

= Wilmar Group, the Company's
parent, is the largest palm oil
player in the world, de-risking
its dependence on third-party
suppliers.

Domestic procurement

= The Company sources soya
beans, crude soya oil, mustard
seed, mustard oil, groundnut oil,
cotton seed oil and rice bran oil
from local markets

= The domestic procurement
strategy is customised around
regional availability and large
channel partner network

= The Company works with a
large channel partner network
(traders, adatiyas, market yard
players, commission agents
and brokers) spread across key
producing belts

= On the back of long-term
relationships, the Company
commands the trust and support
of traders and channel partners,
making it possible to source
quality produce at fair prices

= The Company leverages the
knowledge and network of the
same team to procure multiple

commodities throughout the year.

= The Company procures
domestic food grain from major
foodgrain producing states

= The Company has exclusive
sourcing agents in more than 30
APMCs in Gujarat (traditionally
the largest castor producing

region), with a longstanding
castor sector experience

Risk management

The Company's edible oil business
is exposed to volatile prices of
raw materials, influenced by
currency movements, interest
rates, global supply and demand
dynamics, weather conditions,
crop yields, governmental
regulations, geo-political factors.
Commodity price risks generally
extend from the placement of
purchase orders to the fixing of
selling prices.

To mitigate these risks, the
Company implemented a
comprehensive risk management
policy.

Commodity risks are minimised
through hedging strategies,
either through direct sales of
similar commodities or through
futures contracts on commodity
exchanges. Risk assessment

is conducted at the individual
commodity level.

Commadity risk hedging is
accomplished through exchanges,
over-the-counter (OTC) hedging
with overseas suppliers and
through firm commitment
contracts.

Risk control is achieved by
maintaining internal controls

on risk management activities
and segregation of front, middle,
and back-office functions.
Regular reporting to the Board
of Directors through the Audit
Committee provides oversight on
a periodic basis.



HuMan
capital

Overview

Our philosophy is to provide
the talent working with us with
a thriving work environment,
guidance, training, and cross-

HR policies

The Company formulated
comprehensive policies to
enhance employee well-being.
The policies are directed towards
development and growth -
financial, physical and social
wellbeing as well as a need to
promote diversity and inclusion.
The Company offers all employees
equal wages, opportunities and
benefits.

functional opportunities for their
development.

The result has been superior
talent retention over the

Talent acquisition: The Company
assures that all job applicants
are treated fairly and equally,
regardless of their race, ethnicity,
gender, age, sexual orientation,
religion or any other legally
protected status. The Company
provided hiring managers and
recruiters awareness on diversity,
inclusion, unconscious prejudice
and other relevant subjects.
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years and the Company being
recognised as a Great Place to
Work by the GPTW Institute for
SiX consecutive years.

Talent management: The
Company'’s talent strategy is
aligned with business goals.
The Company comprises
multiple initiatives to develop
potential employees into
leaders through structured
developmental programmes.

71
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Adani Wilmar Competency
Framework (2021): At AWL,

the process of creating leaders
starts with defining a successful
leader in the Company's context.
The Company re-articulated this
in 2021, highlighting success
behaviors and using this to
design development programs.
Leadership Development
Programs are planned and
organised with reputed
consultants and educational
institutions to build employee
skills and create a talent
succession pipeline.

POLARIS is the Company'’s
flagship leadership development
program, directed to create

a succession pipeline in the
upper mid-management and
senior management levels.

This programme empowers
employees to see a clear career
path. The programme facilitates
an interaction amongst the

high potential employees across
functions in the Company. Some
69 employees across the mid-to-
senior levels have been a part of

this journey for more than a year.

2,409

FYy 2021-22

2,600

FY 2022-23

Talent retention
85%

FYy 2021-22

85%

FY 2022-23

STRIDE - Carving Leaders in
Sales: This program provides a
career path to sales employees
across levels, making the
progression transparent and free
of bias. The Company partnered
an external agency to assess
and develop sales talent for the
next level.

Abhyudaya, Young Leaders
Acceleration Program:

Fresh graduate trainees and
management trainees are taken
through a structured learning
program from their joining day
and extending for a year. They are
provided mentors and buddies;
their learning was enhanced
through rotation and special
cross-functional projects.

SEEDS internship: SEEDS
Internship Program provides
students with hands-on, real-
world learning. A key aspect of
the SEEDS Internship Program

is the focus on personalised
mentorship. Mentors work

with each intern to identify
strengths, improvement areas and
career goals.

The Knowledge Café: There are
pockets of excellence across the

organization at multiple locations.

The Company recognised the
need to bring this knowledge
onto a single platform, providing
opportunities to all employees
to share their knowledge and
experience - a cross-functional
platform to share tips, ideas,
updates and expertise.

Product training: The Company
seeks to extend knowledge on
product features & specifications,
market conditions, unique

selling propositions, competitive
scenario, and sourcing &
manufacturing practices through
classroom and the virtual
medium. The Company coaches
employees with a teaching flair
to facilitate product training

sessions for the frontline
salesforce (top-contributing
trainers being certified and
empaneled).

Mentoring: The Company allots
each new employee with a
mentor and buddy.

Induction programme: Lateral
joiners undergo week-long
induction in the zonal office
through an ACCESSION program
and seven-day immersion
induction through the GENESIS
programme. This structured
induction provides new recruits
with a business overview.

Role enhancement: The
Company ensures that employees
recommended for promotion by
their managers (mid-management
and senior management cadre)
undergo a comprehensive
psychometric and competency-
based assessment. The
assessment results enable the
management in taking informed
decisions on the individuals.
Promotions are accompanied
with role enhancements to
ensure on-the-job capability
development alongside off-the-
job developmental interventions
by the HR Department. This
structured intervention helps
gauge talent and plan succession
for critical roles.

The Company's employee
wellness programmes support the
physical, mental, and emotional
well-being of employees. These
comprise fitness programs,
mental health support, and
flexible work arrangements

and help employees maintain a
healthy work-life balance leading
to enhanced productivity and job
satisfaction.



Digitization

and technology

Overview

At AWL, technology drives it
towards digital transformation,
data-based decision-making

and investing in the latest
technologies to stay ahead of the
industry.

The Company's technology team
follows an agile methodology
that enhances responsiveness
to changes in the business
environment and adoption of
new technologies. The Company
engages several reputed

Key technology focus
areas:

Modernization: Invested in cloud-
based infrastructure, processes,
and operations, enhancing
efficiency, agility and scalability;
90% workload has been migrated
to public cloud

technology partners as an integral
part of its IT strategy; they play

3 critical role in providing the
necessary expertise and support
to implement and maintain IT
systems. The Company enters
long-term service contracts with
partners, marked by defined
Service Level Agreements.

The Company invested in digital
transformation initiatives
comprising cloud migration,
advanced analytics and process

Governance: Implementing a
strong governance framework
to ensure that resources are
used efficiently and effectively,
and that processes and
operations are aligned with
organizational objectives.

Security: Strengthening the
organization's security through
the implementation of new tools
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automation. This empowered the
Company to optimise operations,
reduce costs, and improve
process efficiency. Besides, the
Company has a strong focus

on data security and privacy,
marked by robust cybersecurity
measures to protect against data
breaches and cyber-attacks. This
intervention is critical given the
sensitive nature of the data we
handle, including customer and
financial information.

and technologies; this helps
maintain data confidentiality,
integrity, and availability.

Digitization: Identifying

potential digitization areas and
implementing digital technologies
such as automation and analytics,
which helps optimise processes,
reduce errors, and enhance
customer engagement.
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BUSINESS DRIVER

Our joint ventures
and subsidiaries

Overview

The Company has two joint
ventures - KTV Health Food Pvt.
Ltd., Chennai, and Vishakha
Polyfab Pvt Ltd., Ahmedabad.
The joint ventures enhance

the Company’'s manufacturing
capacity.

The Company has a wholly owned
step-down subsidiary Bangladesh
Edible Qil Limited (BEOL) and
Shun Shing Edible Oil Limited
(SSEOL), which AWL acquired in
June 2021.

KTV: A regional edible oil refiner
with a presence in the branded
edible oil market through

the prominent ROOBINI and
SUNLAND brands in Tamil Nadu.
KTV has a plant in Tuticorin
with a capacity of 400 TPD and

two units in Gummidipoondi,
Tamil Nadu, with a plant refining
capacity 16,000 MT per month.

Visakha Polyfab: A manufacturer
of poly films in India for
pouch packing.

Bangladesh Operations: Acquired
this company in 2021 with
operations in Bangladesh. Its
RUPCHANDA brand is the leading
edible oil Iabel in Bangladesh.
Comprises refineries in Rupshi,
Narayanganj and Mongla with

an aggregate refining capacity
of 1,600 TPD. An integrated unit
in Bogra has a rice processing
capacity of 20,000 MT/month
and Rice Bran Qil producing
capacity of 2,400 MT/month.
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CI-business Adani Group Is

one of the most dynamic industrial

conglomerates in India.

To be a world-class leader in businesses that
enrich lives and contributes to nations in building
infrastructure through sustainable value creation,

Who are we

The Adani Group is a portfolio
of diversified businesses

in India with interests in
numerous business sectors,
comprising ten publicly traded
companies. The Group's
extensive business interests
across India's infrastructure and
consumer sectors — transport

& logistics, energy & utilities,
direct to consumer and primary
industries — possess a proven
track record of excellence

in business development,
construction and maintenance.
The Group comprises among
the largest infrastructure and
utility portfolios in the world.
There has been a gradual shift
in the business mix from B2B to
B2C with the Group engaged in
agro commodities and ancillary
industries gas distribution across
geographies in India, electricity
distribution that powers the
financial capital of India and the

airports business that will manage
and develop eight airports in
India. The Group is also engaged
in the digital, road building, water
and data centre businesses.

Scale

Most of the Group's businesses
are among the largest in India,
generating attractive economies
of scale. Adani Green Energy
Limited is among the largest
renewable energy businesses

in India. Adani Power Ltd. is the
largest private sector thermal
power producer in India.

Adani Total Gas Limited is the
largest city gas distribution
business in India. Adani Ports &
Special Economic Zone Limited

is the largest private sector port
operator in India. Adani Wilmar
Limited is the largest edible oils
brand in India. Adani Transmission
Limited is the largest private

sector transmission and
distribution company in India.

The positioning

The Adani Group has positioned
itself as a leader in the transport
logistics and energy utility
portfolio businesses in India. The
Group has focused on sizable
infrastructure development

in India with operations and
maintenance (O&M) practices
benchmarked to global standards.

The core philosophy

The core philosophy of Adani
Group is ‘Nation Building’

driven by ‘Growth with

Goodness' - keystones for steady
development. The Adani Group is
broadening its ESG footprint with
a focus on climate protection and
community welfare through CSR
programmes.

The credibility

The Adani Group comprises four
|IG-rated businesses and is the
only Infrastructure Investment
Grade bond issuer from India.
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adani

Flagship <«————— Infrastructure & Utility Core Portfolio ———>  Primary Industry Emerging B2C
. o Materials, Direct to
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(%): Promoter equity stake in Adani Portfolio companies | (%): AEL equity stake in its subsidiaries

Competitive advantage

At the Adani Group, we believe
that the ability to make a
significant national contribution
can only be derived from a broad-
based competitive advantage
that is not dependent on any

one factor but is the result

of an overarching culture of
excellence — the coming together
of adjacent business presence,
rich sectorial experience, timely
project implementation, ability to
commission projects faster than
the sectorial curve, competence
to do so at a cost lower than the
industry average, foresight to not
merely service the market but

to grow it, establish a decisive
sustainable leadership and evolve
the Company’s position into a
generic name within the sector of
its presence.

Technology advancement

Independent power plant

The Adani Group invests in the
best technology standards of
the day that could generate
precious additional basis points
in profitability and help more
than recover the additional
cost (if at all) paid within a
short tenure. This superior
technology standard evolves
into the Company's sustainable
competitive advantage, respect,
talent traction and profitability.
Technology-led innovations not
only boosted operational cost-

effectiveness but also moderated

the carbon footprint.

Establishing benchmarks

= The Adani Group established
a commercial port at Mundra,
India's largest private sector
ports company.

= Established India's largest

single location private thermal

(Mundra)

Established one of the world’s
largest ultra-mega solar power
plants of 648 MW at Kamuthi

(Tamil Nadu)

Adani Ports and Special
Economic Zone Limited enjoys
the highest EBITDA margin
among peers

Adani Group provides the
highest transmission line
capacity utilisation available in
India

The 648 MW solar power
Kamuthi plant was
commissioned in only nine
months, the quickest of all
such global projects.

The Group commissioned
the longest private HVDC
line in Asia (Mundra to
Mahendragarh)



[he Wilmar Group

Asia's leading agri-business group

Wilmar's Core Values

In its commitment to excellence,
Wilmar is guided by a set of
values.

Integrity: Wilmar values honesty,
trustworthiness and high
ethical standards.

Excellence: Wilmar strives
for excellent performance in
everything it does.

About the Wilmar Group

Wilmar International

Limited, founded in 1991

and headquartered in
Singapore, is Asia’s leading
agri-business group. Wilmar
is ranked amongst the largest
listed companies by market

capitalisation on the Singapore

Stock Exchange.

At the core of Wilmar's strategy

is an integrated agribusiness
model that encompasses
the entire value chain of

the agricultural commodity

Global Operations

Wilmar is a global leader in the
processing and merchandising
of edible oils, oilseed crushing,
sugar merchandising, milling
and refining, production of
oleochemicals, specialty fats,
palm biodiesel, flour milling, rice
milling and consumer pack oils.

It has an extensive distribution
network in China, India, Indonesia
and some 50 other countries and
regions.

It has @ multinational workforce
of about 100,000 staff globally.

Passion: Wilmar is
passionate about growing its
business globally.

Innovation: Wilmar values
innovative efforts, ideas and
methods to continually improve
business processes.

Teamwork: Wilmar works as one
team to achieve corporate goals.

business — from cultivation
and milling of palm oil and
sugarcane, to processing,
branding and distribution

of a wide range of edible
food products in consumer,
medium and bulk packaging,
animal feeds and industrial
agri-products such as
oleochemicals and biodiesel.
It has over 500 manufacturing
plants and an extensive
distribution network covering
China, India, Indonesia and
some 50 other countries

Europe
= Leading tropical oils refiner

China

= Largest edible oils refiner and
specialty fats and oleochemical
manufacturers

= Leading oilseed crusher,
producer of branded consumer
pack oils, rice and flour

= One of the largest flour and
rice millers
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Safety: Wilmar pays a careful
consideration to the health
and safety of employees at
the workplace.

and regions. Through scale,
integration and the logistical
advantages of its business
model, Wilmar is able to
extract margins at every step
of the value chain, reaping
operational synergies and cost
efficiencies.

Supported by a multinational
workforce of about 100,000
people, Wilmar embraces
sustainability in its global
operations, supply chain and
communities.

Vietnam

Largest edible oils refiner and
specialty fats manufacturer
and oilseeds crusher

Leading flour miller and value-
added grains processor

Leading producer of consumer
pack oils, rice, flour, sauces and
condiments
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Africa

= One of the largest investors in
oil palm plantations

= One of the largest edible oil
refiners and producers of
consumer pack oils, soaps and
detergents

= Third largest sugar producer

Indonesia and Malaysia

= One of the largest palm
plantation owners and the
largest palm oil refiner, palm
kernel and copra crusher,
flour miller, specialty fats,
oleochemicals and biodiesel
manufacturer

= Largest producer of branded
consumer pack oils and the
third largest rice miller in
Indonesia

Australia
= Largest raw sugar producer
and refiner

= Leading consumer brand in the
sugar and sweetener market

= Top 10 global raw sugar
producers

Vertically Integrated Business Model

Wilmar's strategy is to build an integrated model encompassing the entire value chain of the agricultural
commodity business - from origination to processing, trading, merchandising branded products and

distribution.

Origination

Plantation and
sugar milling

Oil palm plantation and
sugar milling activities,
which include the
cultivation and
milling of palm oil and
sugarcane.

Oil Palm Sugar

Milling

Plantation

Tropical

Processing

Feed and industrial
products

Processing, merchandising and
distribution of products which
include animal feeds, non-
edible palm and lauric products,
agricultural commodities,
oleochemicals, gas oil and
biodiesel.

‘ Oil seeds & ‘ Sugar

oils grains

Trading,
merchandising
& distribution

Products

Food products

Processing, branding and
distribution of a wide range of
edible food products, which
include vegetable oil produced
from palm and oil seeds, sugar,
flour, rice, noodles, specially
fats, snacks, bakery and dairy
products. These food products
are sold in either consumer
and medium packaging orin
bulk depending on consumer
requirements.

Consumer
products

Medium pack
and bulk

Customers

Logistics

Liquid bulk vessels
38

Dry bulk vessels
16

Ports in Indonesia
9

Ports in China
7

Port in Myanmar
1

FFB Volume
4.4m MT 3.2m MT

Revenue
USS$ 4.74 Bn

Results
US$ 569.3 Mn

MT: Metric Tonnes
Bn: Billion
Mn: Million

Volume
22.2m MT

Volume Volume

21.4m MT
Revenue
US$ 44.55 Bn

Results
US$ 1.56 Bn

12.1m MT

Volume
20.6m MT

Volume
8.5m MT

Revenue
US$ 31.52 Bn

Results
US$ 723.5 Mn

Note: All figures as of CY22
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Profit before tax by business segment

9%

19%

FY
2021-22

49%

@ Food products

Feed & industrial
products

Plantation and
sugar milling

@ Others

Associates and
joint ventures

19%

x 8%
FY

2020-21

46%

Note: Segmental breakdown calculation excludes unallocated expenses, gains from biological assets revaluation and impairment

of property, plant and equipment.

Research & Development

Wilmar's research and
development (R&D) activities
catalyse our manufacturing
processes, consistency,

quality and innovative product
development. R&D work is carried

out by scientists and researchers
in various locations like Singapore,
China, Indonesia, India, Malaysia,
Australia and New Zealand. In

line with the Group's integrated
and sustainable approach, R&D

teams engage in cross-border
collaborations as well as with
external organisations to share
knowledge and resources.
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ENVIRONMENT-SOCIAL-GOVERNANCE

Our deep

ESG commitment

The world has seen a paradigm
shift across business models
across the last decade, with
environmental, social and
governance (ESG) commitment
emerging as the bedrock

of business existence. The
transforming landscape is marked
by businesses moving towards
holistic growth underpinned
ESG commitment leading to
sustainable long-term value
creation.

Sustainability at Adani
Wilmar

Sustainability is embedded in
AWLs business. Primarily, the
Company's vision is to deliver
safe, nutritious, and quality
packaged foods. The Company
has integrated ESG practices to
create long-term stakeholder
value in line with its mission to
build a 'Healthy Growing Nation',

The Company has invested in
green manufacturing processes
and moderating the potentially
negative impact on the
environment. The Company has
drawn inspiration from Wilmar's
No Deforestation, No Peat, No
Exploitation (NDPE) Policy and
other sustainability-related
commitments. The Company's
sustainability has been driven by
three principles of Responsible
sourcing, responsible operations
and responsible business.

v v v
v v v v v v

Traceability Certifications

Health and
safety

Environment

Consumer
recycling

Community
outreach
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These principles have been chosen considering ESG values (our key priorities) around responsibility towards
environment, health & safety of our employees & workers, and society at large.

|

ESG values

|

v v v

Sustainable sourcing

Efforts towards clean energy

Water conservation

Recyclable packaging

Favourable labour
conditions

Initiative to address
malnutrition and anaemia

Responsible sourcing

As a responsible business with
a vast sourcing, manufacturing,
and distribution structure,

we have integrated different
sustainability aspects into our

business approach. We endeavour

to environmentally responsible
sourcing, marked by a pioneering
track record in sustainable edible
oils sourcing, especially in the
area of resource traceability.

AWLs supplier screening
process is guided by Wilmar's

No Deforestation, No Peat, No
Exploitation (NDPE) policy that
screens suppliers following
responsible sourcing and
manufacturing practices. This
policy helps streamline AWLs
process of onboarding suppliers
and sustainable procurement.

The three pillars of Wilmar's NDPE policy

No deforestation No new development on peat o @pleltten ef peeple and
local communities

= Avoid any kind of
development or procurement
activity on areas that are
High Carbon Stock (HCS)
Forests or High Conservation
Value (HCV).

= Protect native species of
plants and animals especially
vulnerable and support the
local authorities in doing so

= Discourage any type
of burning activity in the
forest for new plantation,
re-plantation or changing
land use

= Progressively reduce
the GHG emissions of

our operations by regular
monitoring and evaluation

= Avoid any kind of
development activity on
peatland regardless of the
depth of the peat

= Ensure best management
practices where plantations
are already established on
peat

= Work with expert
stakeholders to restore peat
wherever possible

= Respect, support and
recognise the rights of all
workers as well as Human
Rights

= Avoid any kind of child
labour abuse or exploitation

= |Include small holders into
the supply chain

= Respect land tenure rights

= Respect and protect the
rights of indigenous people
and local communities

= Take corrective actions
where the operations has
caused negative impacts
human rights.
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Onboarding new
suppliers

Wilmar's sustainability team
undertakes a comprehensive
appraisal while onboarding new
suppliers. This due diligence
identifies any potential risk to
the NDPE policy and based on
the following environmental and
social criteria:

= |nformation on non-compliance
available in public domain

= Legal compliance and
traceability data

= Operations in HCV and HCS
areas

= Operations in areas close to
forests or vulnerable pockets

RSPO certification of
refineries

AWL has nine port-based palm
oil refineries in Mundra, Hazira,

Mangalore, Krishnapatnam-1,
Krishnapatnam-2, Kakinada,
Paradip, Haldia-1 and Haldia-2. All
the Company’s palm oil refineries
are RSPO-certified; they can
handle palm oils classified as
sustainable by Roundtable on
Sustainable Palm Qil (RSPO). The
Company is the only Indian player
that procures more than 90%
edible oil that is traceable to the
mills. Below is a summary of the
plant level detail of traceability:

Traceability of palm oil CY 2022

Palm oil

N o AW =

Lauric (derived from palm)
1
2

Haldia
Hazira
Kakinada
Krishnapatnam
Mangaluru
Mundra
Paradip

Kakinada
Mundra

98.3%
95.8%
99.4%
94.3%
100.0%
97.3%
100.0%

87.4%
97.2%

The Company prioritises
sustainable sourcing and supply
chain transformation as key
goals; it is committed to develop

3 traceable and transparent
supply chain. In the long run, the
Company will endeavor to ensure
sustainability across the value

chain of its operations - from
sourcing, manufacture, supply
chain and logistics, to distribution
to consumers.

Responsible operations

The Company's business
utilises water, energy, and other
resources and is committed

to their efficient use. It
acknowledges the important
role it plays in minimizing

the environmental footprint

of operations. It implements
efficiency measures to reduce
energy and water use; wherever
possible, it reuses, recovers and
recycles waste; it responsibly
allocates waste, effluents, and
chemicals.

Water: Committed to sustainable
sourcing and water re-use

The Company is committed

to lower water consumption,
reduced waste and maximised
re-use. The Company'’s focus is to
reduce freshwater abstraction,
implement water recycling

and invest in technological
improvements that maximise
water reuse. Its focused water
conservation has limited
freshwater drawal and increased
water recycling.

The Company commissioned
effluent treatment plants across
all its 23 manufacturing facilities.
These ETPs enable us to minimise

wastage and enhance water re-
use. The water reclaimed through
this initiative is used in gardening,
cooling towers and boilers. The
Company adheres to all standards
prescribed by Central Pollution
Control Board and State Pollution
Control Board for the disposal of
solid waste effluents at the end
of wastewater treatment.

The Company installed Zero
Liquid Discharge (ZLD) at nine
manufacturing facilities. This
initiative is helping the Company
extend its water conservation
beyond operations, ensuring that



no industrially polluted water is
discharged into any natural body.
The Company also commissioned
a rainwater harvesting facility at
four plants and will widen this
coverage across other plants. It
plans to fulfill its water-related
goal through rainwater harvesting
and wastewater recycling.

Out of the total water
used about 27.32% of
water was obtained from

recycling water from ETPs _FY 2

in the reporting year.
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Treated water from ZLD and
ETP reused ('O00 KL)

Fy 20 655.82
911.98
Fy 22 935.74

Solarizing our
sustainable journey

The Company commenced its
clean energy journey with the
installation of solar power at

the Bundi facility in 2016 with a
capacity of 540 kWp. The pilot
project provided an insight into
how GHG emissions could be
moderated through solar power;
the result is that solar energy has
been extended to seven of 23
manufacturing facilities and this
is expected to widen.

Supply chain

With more countries appraising
different options towards low

and zero carbon emissions,
natural gas could play a major
role. With an increase in CNG
infrastructure and ever-increasing
fuel prices, CNG has become
popular with commercial and
private vehicle buyers. India’s
Ministry of Transport incentivised
commercial CNG vehicles by
exempting them from permits,
which includes goods carrier
permits, cab permits, contract
carriage bus permits etc. India
lacks gas pipelines that penetrate
rural areas or refuelling stations.
In view of this, the Ministry

of Petroleum and Natural Gas
unveiled an ambitious Natural
Gas Infrastructure Development
Plan to establish 10,000 CNG

gas stations by 2030. More than
%70,000 Crore will be invested

in commissioning city gas
distribution networks, which will
help in the expansion from 1400+
stations to 10,000 stations in
India, enhancing supply.

AWL is increasing the share of
CNG vehicles in its primary and
secondary transportation. It is
incentivizing operators (60 per
Tonne additional payment over
diesel vehicles) in addition to
CNG vehicle preference during
operations (green lanes' for
vehicles at loading and unloading
points). The Company obtained
ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System certification
for 14 of its 23 plants.

Responsible business

Recyclable packaging: AWL
embarked on the initiative to shift
its edible oil packaging entirely
from virgin material packaging
to recyclable alternatives in
2016. Recyclable packaging

has since been introduced
across the board for edible oils
& food products. Today, ~98%

of the Company’s packaging

is recyclable. The first-mover
sustainable packaging initiative
is a testament to the Company’s
sustainability commitment.

A Mission Against Malnutrition & Anemia

The Company endeavours to bring about a behavioural change

in communities. Its solutions are remedial and precautionary; it
seeks to create holistic change through interventions in the areas
of health, education, women's empowerment and sustainable

livelihoods.

Fortune SuPoshan

Malnourishment is a

growing societal concern - a
malnourished mother is likely to
give birth to an undernourished
child. More than half of India’s
women (between 15 to 49)
suffer from iron deficiency. In
view of this reality and mission
of 'Healthy Growing Nation, the
Fortune SuPoshan project was
launched.

Fortune SuPoshan is a
community-based initiative at
the village/community level;

it addresses malnutrition and
anaemia among children of
0-5 years, adolescent girls, and
women in the reproductive
age. The project commenced in
2016 with across 10 sites, 276
villages and a household reach
of 86,304; today, the project is
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Touched over 1.6 Mn lives across India till date

FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23
10 14 20 22 14 20
Sites Sites Sites Sites Sites Sites
276 309 1209 1263 1065 1081
villages villages Villages & Villages & Villages & Villages &
85 105 129 177
slums slums slums slums
462 501 1400 2179 1875 1979
AWC AWC AWC AWC AWC AWC
86,304 90,565 3,00,750 324,064 2,66,821 3,51,985
HH HH HH HH HH HH
188 215 588 634 455 535
Sanginis Sanginis Sanginis Sanginis Sanginis Sanginis

AWC: Anganwadi Centre; HH: Household; Sanginis: Our village volunteers



present across 14 sites (after
successfully exiting 16 sites since
inception of the project). At
present, the project is reaching to
1081 villages, 177 slums, 3,51,985
households and touched the

lives 0f 1,29,982 children, 83,745
adolescent girls and 2,25,952
women in the reproductive age.

The project works with
Government of India's Mission
Poshan 2.0 and the Integrated
Child Development Scheme
(ICDS), which seeks to end
malnutrition and anaemia.
The project is operational in
two aspirational districts in
Gujarat and Madhya Pradesh
in collaboration with the
Government of India's Poshan
Abhiyan and Adani Foundation.
The project covers all five
Narmada blocks, touching 617
villages.

SuPoshan Sangini: A SuPoshan
Sangini is a village health
volunteer, trained as a part of

the Fortune SuPoshan project
and who works with government
schemes like the Integrated Child
development Scheme. Through
capacity building and training,
community women can become
Sanginis. The Company provides
Sanginis with a voice and
opportunity to become financially
independent. Some Sanginis have
been able to fight patriarchy;
others have overcome domestic

abuse in addition to successfully
addressing personal battles.

Sanginis are empowered to
identify malnourished and
anaemic children, girls, and
women across villages. They

are trained to become their
guides and confidantes. Their
role entails timely identification,
referral of severe-to-moderate
malnutrition cases to hospitals
and rehabilitation centres, regular
follow up, counselling, cooking
demonstrations, and support in
building a nutritional garden in
their homes. The Sanginis are
also responsible for sensitising
communities about relevant
government-linked schemes.

Digitalising Fortune SuPoshan:
The SuPoshan software has
been designed to monitor and
track initiatives. The Sanginis
are trained on Information,
Education, and Communication
material (IEC); they use tablets
to input ground-level data with
accuracy. Moreover, the Sanginis
show issue-based videos to
communities using these tablets.
The software is equipped with
data processing functionality
which is further used to analyse
the progress as well as forms a
growth trajectory. The software
is also enabled with payment
processing functionality.
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Governance and
monitoring

To govern CSR projects, the
Company created a CSR
committee, headed by an
Independent Director who
monitors activities, expenditure
and compliances. The Committee
meets at least twice a year

and has been authorised to
modify the CSR plan and review
applicability every two years. To
assess Fortune SuPoshan project
progress, an advisory committee
comprises representatives of
Adani Foundation and Adani
Wilmar. This committee meets
every quarter to review progress.

Employee volunteering
programme

The Company’'s CSR initiatives
motivate employees and their
families to volunteer time. Their
participation is recognised with

a token of appreciation and
featuring their success stories

on the Company’'s website.

To promote volunteering, the
Company provides transportation
to the activity site. In locations,
where CSR activities have not yet
been implemented, the HR team
is encouraged to explore different
ways in which volunteers can
support communities.

SDGs aligned with
Fortune SuPoshan
programme

ZERO GOOD HEALTH
HUNGER AND WELL-BEING

GENDER
EQUALITY

$|+|¢
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How we have made a difference

Sarita: From mother to
super mother

In a remote Raigarh district
village (Chattisgarh) lived Sarita
Rajpoot (32). She had two

young sons and her family was
dependent on agriculture. Her
husband Anil (35) barely earned
37000 per month before the
pandemic, was an alcoholic and
the family could barely get two
meals a day. A SuPoshan Sangini
Poornima discovered that Sarita's
younger child, classified as
‘healthy’ in her last screening, was
now Severe Acute Malnourished,
marked by appetite loss and
inability to stand erect at the
age of 2 years. Sarita's husband
denied that there was anything
deficient about the child and
denied external support.

Sangini Poornima persisted even
as the child stopped responding
to food intake. Anil, meanwhile,
turned to a local faith healer

for treatment. The Sangini
approached the local panchayat
leader and anganwadi worker
for help; the husband refused

to budge. One day, Sarita took a
bold step: she left home to take
her child for treatment without
informing anyone (I don't want to
lose my child").

The SuPoshan Sangini took an
apprehensive Sarita and her two
kids for treatment. The Nutrition
Rehabilitation Centre (NRC)
counsellors explained the process
of treatment; the children were
referred to a medical college for
diagnosis. The required test was
done; the children returned to
NRC. Within 15 days, the child
weight and became free from all
medical complications. When she
returned, the family appreciated
her decisiveness, helping save the
lives of her children.

A confident Sarita says, "l am
thankful to Sangini didi who
motivated me to step out from
my limited scope of just being

a wife and mother of two kids. |
took the right decision to save
my children.” Her husband Anil
realises his mistake: "I thank
Fortune SuPoshan in saving the
life of my child Rishab.”

SuPoshan Sangini:
The empowered as
empowerer

28-year-old Suchitra Majhi from
Dhanakuta village in Odisha has
been a SuPoshan Sangini for
three years. Recently, her family
suffered farming losses; since
feeding six family members

was challenging, she turned to
agriculture-related CSR activities
of Adani Foundation. Under

the aegis of the Foundation's
Sustainable Livelihood
Development initiatives and
Odisha Livelihood Mission,
Suchitra motivated 80 village
women to create a producer’s
group for mushroom farming

and snack making. This group
was trained; they now earn up to
34,000 per month. Owing to her
experience as a Sangini, Suchitra
was instrumental in dealing with
the resistance the women faced
from their families. The result:
Suchitra is the first person to be
approached in her village when
any problem or crisis occurs. She
is now known as ‘Super Sangini'.



Management

discussion and analysis

Industry context

Global economy

The global economic growth

was estimated at a slower 3.2%

in 2022, compared to 6% in

2021 (which was on a smaller
base of 2020 on account of the
pandemic effect). The relatively
slow global growth of 2022 was
marked by the Russian invasion of
Ukraine, unprecedented inflation,
pandemic-induced slowdown in

China, higher interest rates, global
liquidity squeeze and quantitative
tightening by the US Federal
Reserve.

The challenges of 2022 translated
into moderated spending,
disrupted trade and increased
energy costs. Global inflation was
8.7% in 2022, among the highest
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in decades. US consumer prices
increased about 6.5% in 2022,

the highest in four decades.

The Federal Reserve raised its
benchmark interest rate to its
highest in 15 years. The result

is that the world ended in 2022
concerned that the following year
would be slower.

Indian economy

Even as the global conflict
remained geographically distant
from India, ripples comprised
increased oil import bills, inflation,
cautious government and a
sluggish equity market. India’s

Growth of the Indian economy

economic growth was 7.2% in
FY 2022-23. India emerged as
the second fastest-growing G20
economy in FY 2022-23. India
overtook UK to become the fifth-
largest global economy. India

surpassed China to become the
world’s most populous nation.

(Source: IMF, World Bank)

] 20 FY 21 2 o2

Real GDP growth(%)

-6.6

Growth of the Indian economy quarter by quarter, FY 2022-23

) 7 N N M TS Qi 23

Real GDP growth (%)

131

(Source: Budget FY 2023-24; Economy Projections, RBI projections)
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According to the India
Meteorological Department, the
year 2022 delivered 8% higher
rainfall over the long-period
average. Due to unseasonal
rains, India's wheat harvest was
expected to fall to around 102
Mn Metric Tonnes (MMT) in

FY 2022-23 from 107 MMT in the
preceding year. Rice production
at 132 Mn Metric Tonnes (MMT)
was almost at par with the
previous year. Pulses acreage
grew to 31 Mn hectares from 28
Mn hectares. Due to a renewed
focus, oilseeds area increased
7.31% from 102.36 Lakh hectares

in FY 2021-22 to 109.84 Lakh
hectares in FY 2022-23.

The country’s retail inflation,
measured by the consumer price
index (CPI), eased to 5.66% in
March 2023. Inflation data on
the Wholesale Price Index, WPI
(calculates the overall price of
goods before retail) eased to 1.3%
during the period. In 2022, CPI hit
its highest of 7.79% in April; WPI
reached its highest of 15.88% in
May 2022, By the close of the
year under review, inflation had
begun trending down and in

Indian packaged food market overview

The Indian packaged food retail
market, estimated at ~¥6,00,000
Crore in FY 2019-20 contributes
only 15% to the total food and
grocery retail market estimated
at ¥39,45,000 Crore in FY 2019-
20. While the Indian food retail
remains dominated by unbranded
products such as fresh fruits and
vegetables, loose staples, fresh
unpackaged dairy and meat, the

Indian edible oils industry

The branded edible oil market is
estimated to be around %1,56,000
cr and is expected to grow faster
than the overall category gaining
a lion’s share of close to 90% of
the total market in terms of value
in the coming five years. It is
estimated that close to 75% of the
total edible oil available in terms
of volume is retailed as a branded
product.,

The edible oil industry in India is
fragmented wherein 13% of oil

is sold as loose/unbranded and
the consumers are shifting to
branded oils, which bodes well for
the organised players.

The four key edible oils, palm,
soya, mustard and sunflower
constitute 85-88% of the total

packaged food market is growing
at almost double the pace of the
overall category and is expected
to gain a market share of 17% by
FY 2024-25 from a share of 14%
in FY 2014-15. Health concerns
and limitation in movement due
to COVID -19 have accelerated
the growth of packaged food
products which offer consistent
and assured quality along with

consumption in India in terms

of volume. Palm oil is primarily
used by the large-scale food
processing enterprises. It is also
used in blended oils for domestic
consumption. Palm and soybean
are also being used by the
HoReCa segment. India imports
most of its palm oil consumption.

Soybean oil, mustard oil and
sunflower oil is largely used for
domestic consumption. The other
oils include sesame oil, coconut
oil, groundnut oil, rice bran oil
amongst others.

A gradual shift is being witnessed
in favour of soft oils such as
soyabean oil, sunflower oil,
mustard oil.

April 2023 declined below 5%, its
lowest in months.

Per capita income almost doubled
in nine years to 3172,000 during
the year under review, a rise of
15.8% over the previous year.
India's GDP per capita was US$
2,320 (March 2023), close to

the magic figure of US$ 2500
when consumption spikes across
countries. Despite headline
inflation, private consumption

in India witnessed continued
momentum and was estimated to
have grown 7.3% in FY 2022-23.

convenience. However, the
penetration of packaged food is
limited in the Indian households.
Annual per capita spend on all
categories of packaged food in
India is estimated to be ~3¥4,650,
much lesser as compared to
China at ~%16,000 and the USA at
more than ¥1,12,500.

(Source: Technopak)

Consumption in rural India
constitutes almost 50% of
the total consumption in this
category by volume..

Under-penetrated market:

India's per capita consumption

of edible oil is relatively low at
19-19.80 kg per year, compared
to the global average of 24 kg per
year. However, with a growing
population and increasing per
capita consumption, demand

for edible oils is expected

to increase.

(Source: Technopak).



Specialty fats and oil market in India

Specialty fats and oils are
products with distinct
characteristics and functional
properties as compared to
traditional fats and oils. The
category includes margarine and
bakery shortenings, lauric fats,
interesterified fats, high stability

frying oils and CBE (Cocoa Butter
Equivalents). The customised
properties of specialty oils

and fats make them ideal for
application in bakeries, biscuit,
confectionary and other snacks.

In FY 2019-20, the Indian
specialty fats and oil industry size

Indian soya chunk retail market

The size of the soya chunks retail
market in India is estimated to

be at 32000 Crore comprising
branded and unbranded
segments with almost equal
share in terms of value. The total
market for branded soya chunks is
%1,000 Crore nationally with West
Bengal having a market share of
more than one third of total size.

The growth in branded market

is expected to outpace the
growth of the overall category.
With a CAGR of 14%, the market
estimated to be 31000 Crore in
FY 2019-20 is expected to almost
double in 5 years.

The growth in soya chunks is

led by the eastern and northern
regions of India which contribute
80% sales to the total market

Indian wheat flour retail market

Before the late-90s, wheat flour
(aata) was mainly milled through
local chakki mills in India. Even
now, the wheat flour market

is largely dominated by local
chakki mills in India. However
the branded packaged wheat
flour has emerged rapidly in the
country in the past fifteen years
capitalizing on hygiene and
convenience factors.

Wheat is the staple food for most
Indians in the wheat growing
areas (North and West India)

Rice market

The rice retail market in India
was estimated to grow at a CAGR
of 3% from 1,30,000 Crore in
FY'20 to %1,53,700 Crore in FY'25.
India packaged rice market is
estimated to be 15,000 Crore

Indian pulses market

Pulses Retail Market in India was
estimated to grow at a3 CAGR of
3% from %1,50,000 Crore in FY'20
to ¥1,77,000 Crore in FY'25.

and is consumed in the form of
chapattis or rotis (unleavened flat
bread).

Wheat grain milled to flour form
at home chakkis or small chakkis
is referred to as unbranded form
of wheat flour. This unpackaged
and unbranded form of wheat
flour dominates the consumption
in rural and semi-urban areas.

Wheat flour retail market in India
was estimated to grow at a CAGR

in FY 2019-20 and is projected
to grow at a CAGR of ~7.5% to
reach 321,500 Crore in FY 2024-
25 on the back of growing urban
population and rising demand for
fine quality products. Moreover,

The share of branded products in
pulses stands lower as compared
to other that of other staples

such as wheat flour, rice and oils.
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was estimated at 9 Lakh MT and
growing at a CAGR of ~8%.

Indian specialty fats and oil
market is divided into popular
fats, premium bakery fats, frying
oils and confectionary fats.

of soya chunks (branded and
unbranded) as recipes such as
soya chunks, dry soya granules
bhurji, soya chaps, soya pulao and
many others have been a part of
regular diet in these regions since
the 1990s. Soya chunks provide
an alternative to cottage cheese
in the north and to meat in the
eastern region.

of 5.5% from 396,000 Crore in
FY'20 to %1,27,000 Crore in FY'25.

The branded wheat flour is
estimated to be at 314,500
Crore, growing at a CAGR of

15%, projected to double itself in
the coming 5 years. The growth
opportunities in Indian packaged
wheat flour market are attributed
to overall mindset shift in favour
of packaged products, growing
urbanization and associated
convenience factors..

growing per capita income

is further contributing to the
growing demand for packaged
rice.

Branded Pulse Retail Market in

India was estimated to grow at a
CAGR of 7% from 8,500 Crore in
FY'20 to 12,000 Crore in FY'25.
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Overview of Packaged Besan (Bengal Gram Flour) in India

Besan (Bengal gram flour) is a
milled product obtained out of
Bengal gram. It is widely used

in Indian cooking and is an
important ingredient for the
HoReCa segment and savoury
snack manufacturers (namkeens).
With a monthly consumption of
500-750 grams per household, it
is estimated to be around 327,000
Crore in FY 2019-20. Expected to

grow at a rate of 6%, it is poised
to register 336,000 Crore market
by FY 2024-25. Out of 10 Mn MT
Bengal gram produced in India,
almost 40-50% is milled into the
flour form. While it remained
largely unbranded until a few
years ago, the transition of this
unbranded market to branded
play is now outpacing the growth
of the overall category. Growth

of modern retail and preferences
changing in favour of packaged
food has been driving growth in
this category.

Branded Bengal Gram Flour
Market in India is estimated to
grow a CAGR of 12% from 4,750
Crore in FY'20 to%8,250 Crore in
FY 2024-25.

Ready to cook & ready to eat segments in India

The market for both the segments
put together is estimated to

be approximately 34,200 Crore
in FY 2019-20 and is expected

to grow at a high CAGR of 16%
doubling itself by FY 2024-25.

Market for castor oil and derivatives

Castor oil is @ multi-purpose
vegetable oil obtained from
castor found mainly in tropical
Africa and Asia. India is the single
largest producer of castor seeds
and accounts for 85% of the total
global castor oil seeds production,
followed by China and Brazil. The
production of castor oilseed in

FY 2020-21 was at 1.9 Mn Tonnes.
Castor seed is primarily used

for oil extraction. In FY 2019-

20, Indian players extracted an
estimated 0.83 Min MT of castor
oil. The castor oil production in
India is estimated to grow at a
CAGR of 7% in the next few years.

India is the largest manufacturer
and exporter of castor oil in the
world and is responsible for 88%
of total global exports. The major
trading partners in this sector are
China, Europe, Thailand, Japan
and USA. China has been one of
the biggest importers for castor
oil due to its demand for sebacic
acid (a basic industrial chemical
compound) which is developed
from castor oil.

Manufacturers of castor oil
derivatives based in India
consume 20% of the total castor
oil produced in the country and

convert it into derivatives like 12
- Hydroxy stearic Acid (12HSA),
Ricinoleic Acid (RA) and Sabacic
Acid to fulfil the demand of the
global market.

Castor seed and its derivatives

in India are mainly consumed in
the cosmetic, pharmaceutical,
plastics manufacturing,
lubricants, paint and printing ink
sectors. Castor meal/cake, the by-
product of oil extraction is mainly
used as a fertiliser.

Indian oleochemical market

The oleochemical market in
India is primarily driven by
rising consumerism, favorable
government regulations, growth
in the personal care sector,

and an increasing demand

for ecofriendly chemicals.
Oleochemicals are widely used

in the production of FDA-
approved food packaging and
surface sanitisers in the food
industry. Triple pressed stearic
acid derived from oleochemicals
is also used as a mold-release
agent in the food and beverage
industry. The expanding

utilization of oleochemicals in
the food industry, as well as the
growth of the food industry in
developing countries, is expected
to create opportunities for the
oleochemical market in India.

(Source: Allied Market Research)

Wheat Market share % (MAT)

March 22 4.7%
March 23 5.0%

Rice Market share % (MAT)

March 22 6.5%
March 23 7.9%



Edible oil

The first half of the year
witnessed price volatility in the
edible oil market, leading to
decreased demand for edible

oil and impacting our volume
growth. However, in the second
half, we successfully revived

our business volumes. This was
attributed to a decline in edible
oil prices, increased out-of-home
consumption during festivals and
weddings, and improved direct
coverage in both urban and rural
areas.

The inflationary trend in edible
oil prices resulted in consumers
downtrading from premium
products, affecting our margins.
Nevertheless, we focused on
expanding the distribution
reach of our Kings brand of

oils, capturing the demand at
more affordable price points.
Our communication for Kings
emphasises the benefits offered
at a lower cost. To cater to the
mass segment of consumers in
the Rice Bran Oil category, we
introduced Kings Rice bran Oil
during the year.

Mustard oil has been gaining
significant traction among
consumers post-Covid due to its
health benefits, and its domestic

Food and FMCG

In July 2022, a significant
development occurred in the
form of the Goods and Services
Tax (GST) Council’s decision to
eliminate GST exemption on
packaged food items sold under
unregistered brands. As a result,
these items are now subject to a
5% tax rate, the same as branded
food products. This change

has leveled the playing field for
branded players and contributed
to the industry's progress
towards greater organization and
increased penetration of branded
food that adheres to food safety
standards. The 5% GST is now

production has increased as
the Indian government policies
prioritised reducing import
dependency on edible oils.

This trend benefitted AWL

and Mustard oil emerged

as a major growth driver for

us this year, experiencing a
significant increase in volumes.
In the fragmented mustard oil
market, we hold an undisputed
market leadership position

with a market share of 12.9%.
Being the only organised player
with a nationwide presence

in this category, our brand
communication revolves around
purity, differentiating ourselves
from the unorganised players
selling adulterated mustard oil.
Through our integrated sales and
marketing initiatives, we focused
on expanding distribution in rural
areas and creating consumer
demand among urban consumers
by leveraging the strong brand
equity of Fortune.

To foster business growth, we
focused on several key areas:

= Marketing communication
to maintain top-of-mind recall
among consumers

applicable to all branded or
unbranded SKUs weighing up to
25 Kag.

We continued our growth
trajectory through the acquisition
of the renowned domestic brand,
Kohinoor, from McCormick
Switzerland GMBH. This
acquisition has positioned us as a
dominant player in three distinct
market segments: Kohinoor for
premium Basmati rice, Charminar
for affordable rice, and Trophy for
the HoReCa segment.

In the Wheat branded consumer
pack sales, our market share
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= Improved direct rural coverage:
During the year, we doubled our
direct reach of retail outlets in
rural towns.

= |Leveraged technology to
enhance the efficiency of our
sales force.

= Enhanced sales in the fast-
growing channels of modern
trade and e-commerce

Moving forward, our plan includes
the continuation of aggressive
expansion initiatives in both
urban and rural areas to improve
availability and reach of our
products to end consumers.
Additionally, we have designed an
ambitious brand campaign across
traditional, digital, and outdoor
media platforms for all major
products, with a particular focus
on enhancing brand recall in rural
regions of India. These initiatives
aim to establish a stronger brand
presence, drive consumer pull,
and increase market share.

To enhance offerings in the
Health & Convenience portfolio,
the Company launched Fortune
Xpert Total Balance, a new
product featuring three blended
oils.

has increased to 5.0% in MAT
Mar'23 versus 4.7% in MAT
Mar'22. (MAT is Moving average
Twelve months). In Rice, branded
consumer pack sales has
increased to 7.9% (incl. Kohinoor)
in MAT Mar'23 versus 6.5% in MAT
Mar'22.

Expanding our presence in the
West Bengal market, Adani Wilmar
introduced its premium regional
rice, leveraging our state-of-the-
art facility in Burdwan. Operating
at full capacity, this facility caters
to the demand for regional rice
throughout the entire eastern
zone. The launch of Miniket
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and Banskanthi variants has
established Adani Wilmar as one
of the key national brand offering
regional rice variants.

To expand our Health &
Convenience product portfolio,

Industry essentials

Oleochemicals

We have added oleo-derivatives
with application in Polymer
additives, Lubricants, Home and

Manufacturing

Adani Wilmar has successfully
commissioned a state-of-the-art
wheat flour manufacturing unit
in Bundi. Additionally, a 1.3 MW
at Hazira and 0.9 MW at Kadi
solar power plant with advanced
robotics cleaning arrangements
has been commissioned at
Hazira, expanding our installed
capacity to 4.3 MW. Continual
improvements of plant efficiency
is a key focus at Adani Wilmar.
Forinstance, in FY 2022-23,

we identified and addressed

an untapped energy source

by installing micro turbines

at our Hazira plant, utilizing
high-pressure steam energy to
generate power. Through our lean
Six Sigma project, we enhanced
power factor by 4% at the 66-
kW substation in the Mundra
refinery by replacing degraded
components.

During the year under review,
we made investments of 3673
Crore in capacity addition and
technological advancements.
Some major additions are
highlighted below:

= We commissioned a state-of-
the-art wheat milling plant at
Bundi, Rajasthan. This consists of
350 Tonnes per day (TPD) refined
flour mill to produce maida, suji,
rawa, and a 150 TPD chakki/
stone mill to produce chakki atta
to meet the growing consumer
and institutional demand with
matching packing lines. It also

Kohinoor Hyderabadi Biryani Kit
was launched in ready-to-cook
category. The initial response
has been good. This product
will increase the household
penetration of 'Kohinoor’ brand.

Personal care, Agrochemicals
and Food additives. The business
intends to grow deeper into
value added products creating

consists of 15,000 MT wheat
storage facility.

= The Company augmented the
refining capacity of rice bran oil
at Mantralayam from 70 TPD to
100 TPD to meet the growing
market demand. It has also
expanded the refining capacity
of sunflower oil at Kakinada from
300 TPD to 450 TPD.

= At the oleochemical plantin
Mundra, a8 Multipurpose Reactor
of 8 KL capacity was installed to
produce various oleo chemical
derivatives. It also expanded the
hydrogenation capacity by adding
a new 300 TPD continuous
hydrogenation plant.

= At Bundi, the soya silos were
not fully utilised. To optimise the
asset utilization, we converted
two of them to store wheat and
mustard by adding the desired
conveying equipment. This has
helped to meet the wheat flour
mill and oil mill raw material
storge demand.

= At the castor plant located at
Pragapar, Mundra, we installed
a bulk container loading system
to load the castor meal. This
system consists of one Electrical
Overhead Travelling Crane
(EQT) crane which picks up the
container from truck and puts it
in a platform and this platform
tilts it vertically and dumps

the material from the top. This
has reduced manual effort and
increased efficiency.

We introduced two new variants
of Khichdi. Additionally, we
launched two variants of Poha,
namely Indori Poha and Thick
Poha

synergistic products for the same
customer segments.

= We invested in automating its
pouch filling line at its refineries
in Alwar and Hazira by installing
robotic arms and carton erector.
to automate the secondary filling.
This will enable automation of
the secondary filling and reduce
dependency on labour.

= Safety and the environment
are paramount to the Company.
We upgraded our existing
firefighting system at Mundra
Oleo plant by putting a foam-
based fire suppression system
which is more effective and
environment friendly.

= During the financial year,

we commissioned Process
Information Management
System (PIMS) in nine of our
plants. The PIMS dashboard
shows the real time Overall
Equipment Effectiveness (OEE)
and Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs) such as per MT steam,
water, power and chemical
consumption, control loops, etc.

= |n continuation of its efforts
to improve operational efficiency,
integrity, and reliability, we have
installed tech systems to show
real-time inventories of crude oil,
refined oil and by products.

= As an organization, we are
committed to reducing our
carbon footprint. To achieve

this, this year we commissioned
one 1.3 MW solar power plant at
Hazira and another 0.2 MW solar
plant at Kadi.



= We also installed a zero
liquid discharge (ZLD) plant at
our refinery in Saoner, Nagpur.

IPO projects

As part of our journey towards
building best-in-class integrated
plants, we identified multiple
projects (capital expenditure /
IPO projects) aggregating 32,220
Crore for expansion. These
projects will primarily focus on
augmenting our food capacities
and reducing dependence on

Sales channels

Following the impact of

the Covid-19 pandemic, we
experienced substantial growth
in the Modern Retail and

Sales and distribution

The Company has been

making strategic go-to-market
interventions and expanding in
both urban and rural markets to
realise the full potential of its
products. Our decision-making
process is driven by data. We
closely monitor market coverage
through secondary sales and
improvements.

Fulfillment centers

The Company undertook detailed
cost-effective and optimised
secondary distribution system by
engaging in a viability analysis
of each fulfillment center.

Branding and marketing

Our branding and marketing
efforts remained steadfast as
we aimed to enhance brand
awareness and strengthen
consumer recall. To establish

a strong association of our
brand with superior culinary
experiences, we partnered
MasterChef India. We executed

The recovered water shall be
used in plant operations and

third-party leased units. 1,900
Crore will be utilised from the
earmarked funds for capex in IPO
(out of 3,600 Crore raised in the
IPO), whereas the balance will

be funded from the Company'’s
internal accruals.

E-commerce sectors. In FY 23,
we observed remarkable volume
growth in these alternative
channels, leading to an increased

In addition, we successfully
implemented sales force
automation and expanded our
network to over 13,000 rural
towns. Each outlet has been
geotagged and is serviced by a
dedicated rural sales force. This
strategic approach has facilitated
the growth of our rural markets
and enabled us to establish direct
connections with rural dealers.

During the year under review,
the Company implemented
Warehouse Management System
that facilitate superior storage
and retrieval. It upgraded the

digital marketing campaigns
during Holi and Diwali and
regional festivities such as Durga
Puja, establishing a regional
connect with consumers

and expand our presence in
households where regional
players have a strong foothold.
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consequently help in reducing the
overall water consumption.

The work across all locations
has commenced. As on 31t
March, 2023, we spent ~%320
Crore towards these and have
committed about 35% of the
overall budget. We expect most
of the projects to commence
operations in FY 2024-25.

contribution to the overall
category sales and recorded
32,700 Crore of sales in packaged
oil & foods for the year

By bypassing wholesalers who
promote multiple brands, we
now have better control over
distribution of our products

to ensure the stocking of our
products by rural dealers. As

the productivity of these new
outlets continues to improve, we
anticipate sustained growth in
the coming years.

fulfilment centre infrastructure
with modern stock handling tools
and equipment that enhanced
labour productivity.

Furthermore, we successfully
launched two impactful television
commercials featuring renowned
personalities. One showcased
Akshay Kumar endorsing Fortune
soybean ail, while the other
featured Samantha endorsing
Fortune Sunlite sunflower oil.
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Major promotional campaigns, FY 2022-23

Pet Pujo campaign

Durga Puja is the most
celebrated festival

in West Bengal. The
market enjoys a strong
Fortune KGMO (Kacchi
Ghani Mustard Oil)
loyalty. The Company's
campaign was the

sixth instalment in

the Pet Pujo series. In
2022, Fortune Foods
focused on inspiring
the Bengali community
across the world who
had missed festivities
during the pandemic
to reminisce about

the Pujo festivities.

The brand showcased
Durga Pujo through the
lens of three friends
reminiscing about the
past while highlighting
celebratory nuances
with respect to the
preparation, cuisine and
reverence.

Sounds of the Kitchen
(Diwali campaign)
Diwali is about
celebrating together

- with loved ones and
food. While diyas,
rangolis, and fireworks
are visible motifs of the
festival, food inevitably
takes center stage.
Fortune Foods leaned
into this narrative and
brought out the joy of
home cooking during
Diwali. The brand

inspired Indians to
celebrate Diwali with
the sounds of cooking
- reimagining the
sound of fireworks with
sounds from kitchens of
families across regions.
The campaign’s multi-
pronged approach
leveraged a user-
generated content
contest, an influencer
campaign and brand
film.

Fortune Ek, Rang Anek
(Holi campaign)

Holi is synonymous with
togetherness, emotions
and fun tied together
by two elements:
colors and food. Since
Holi enjoys a cultural
significance from
North to South India,
every region comprises
stories and food related
to celebration. The
foods eaten across the
country during Holi
change from region to

region, is highlighted

in this campaign. The
promotional highlighted
the message of Fortune
Ek, Rang Anek! The
Company collaborated
with 29 pan-India
influencers to introduce
the campaign, urging
their followers to
participate in the
#FortuneEkRangAnek
contest by submitting

a video of their favorite
Holi recipe.

Pickle season

Summer, particularly
May, is peak for the
preparation of pickles.
The Company launched
3 television commercial
that evoked a nostalgia
for pickles through

our Mustard Qil. The
commercial highlighted

the importance of good
pungent oil for making
a pickle special. The
commercial was aired in
Bihar and Uttar Pradesh
- 3 mix of free-to-air and
local Bhojpuri channels
- where mustard
consumption and pickle
preparation are key.



Alife soaps campaign

Alife soaps represent
lasting beauty and
freshness. Utilising

social media platforms,

communication

was built to make
consumers realise that
Alife soaps are what
they need. Through a

Association with
cooking show

Fortune associated with
the iconic MasterChef
India show (which
inspired a television
revolution in cooking).
The association
highlighted the benefits
of Fortune brand; it

Kohinoor spreading
Khushboo Kuchh Khaas

Kohinoor, India's leading
basmati rice brand,
was reintroduced by
Adani Wilmar. The
Company created an
identity in the market
and social media using
the 'Khushboo Kuchh
Khaas' tagline. The
brand made a social
media impact through
persuasive storytelling
and impactful features
(authenticity and
aroma). Influencers
helped market the

King's Oil campaign
Through relatable
storytelling, King's Oil
showcased how its
makes food delicious
and healthy. The brand
engaged with the
audience through a
campaign on the Moj
application, providing it

social media campaign
for Women'’s Day,
#KhoobsuratiKaSaathi, a
message was delivered
that Alife soaps support
women empowerment.
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showcased the range

of products from oils to
the food's portfolio. The
Company extended the
partnership to the OTT
format. The Company
promoted Soyabean Qil
to the mass audience on
television and Rice Bran
Oil on OTT.

Biryani Kit on social
media through
recommendations,
creative product
showcasing, offering
products review cum
testimonials, offering
giveaways and
promotions, creating
educational content and
participating in affiliate
marketing programs.

with the opportunity to
showcase its dancing
skill in line with the
peppy King's Oil tune.
The range of delicacies
using King's Oil was
showcased during the
Republic Day contest
and Eid campaign called
Swaad-e-Ramadan.
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New television commercial for
Fortune Soyabean Qil

In September 2022, the Company
launched a television commercial
for Fortune Soyabean Oil
endorsed by the cricket icon
Saurav Ganguly. The aim was to
build a local connect in the West
Bengal market. We also extended
beyond the stereotypes of a
woman being associated with a
cooking oil.

D2C engagement

In fiscal year 2022-23, the
Company was present in 25
cities and recorded 5.5 Lac+
app downloads, improving

Information technology

During the previous fiscal year,
Adani Wilmar made significant
investments in various areas.
The focus was primarily on
infrastructure consolidation,
migrating to the Public Cloud,
enhancing digital presence
across key functions, and
establishing the Analytics Center
of Excellence (CoE).

During the last financial year, we
modernised our infrastructure

to ensure better scalability and
availability. We took initial steps
in setting up an Analytics CoE;
we identified and implemented
Robotic Process Automation
(RPA) processes to improve
productivity. We expanded

our utilization of cloud-based
technologies to enhance
collaboration, data sharing, and
remote working capabilities. We
emphasised data security and
privacy, with robust cybersecurity
measures being implemented to
safequard against data breaches
and cyber threats.

Food safety and quality

In terms of food safety

and quality, Adani Wilmar
implemented measures, including
the identification of peanut

Influencer marketing

Fortune Foods executed
influencer-led regional campaigns
during key festive occasions
(Janmashtami, Diwali, Holi, and
Mother's Day), and by engaging
with MasterChef contests. These
campaigns involved collaborating
with more than 50 influencers.
The initiative enhanced audience
engagement, brand awareness,

its social media visibility and

enhancing the user experience.
The Fortune Mart initiative has
been successful, with 35 stores

Our key capabilities were
strengthened through the
integration of technology in
various areas:

Manufacturing: Increasing
implementation of the Internet
of Things (loT) in manufacturing,
enabling real-time monitoring

of production processes and
equipment performance.

Sales enablement; Leveraging IT
tools and applications to enhance
productivity and reduce operating
costs in the sales function. This
includes the implementation of
solutions such as the B2B app

for bulk pack distributors to

place orders and view balances,
improving transparency.
Moreover, the Company
implemented analytical tools

to improve sales - Distributor
Ranking, Auto Replenishment
Model, Beat Optimization, and
Inventory Optimization at the
distributor level. These tools
enable the Company to make
data-driven sales decisions.

allergens in soy products, the
use of QR codes on labels for
clean labeling in compliance
with regulations, and the

three-fold increase in views and a
ten-fold expansion in reach.

Awards

Fortune Foods received the Silver
award at the Sammies Awards for
the Best Use Of Video Content for
Hilsa 2021 television commercial.
The Sounds of the Kitchen Diwali
campaign was adjudged runner-
up for the Best Use of Influencers
on Social Media category by Mad
Over Marketing.

spread across 29 cities. These
stores, featuring live bakeries, are
thriving and contributing to the
Company's growth.

Supply chain process
optimization: Significant
investments have been made in
technologies to optimise supply
chain management processes
including logistics optimization,
demand forecasting, inventory
management, to optimise
operations and reduce costs.

Looking ahead, Adani Wilmar
will continue to focus on
consolidating applications,
modernizing legacy systems, and
adopting cloud-based solutions
to streamline IT infrastructure
and reduce complexity. There
will be a greater emphasis on
leveraging advanced analytics
across all business functions to
enhance decision-making. The
aim is to use data to identify
trends, optimise processes, and
improve customer experiences.
The Company remains committed
to adapting and innovating in
response to changing market
dynamics and evolving customer
needs.

implementation of laser coding
on wheat flour and associated
products to prevent misuse of
expired goods in the value chain.



In FY'23, the Company's plants
received certifications from ClI
for excellence in production,
manufacturing, quality, and food

safety. In FY'23, most plants were
certified by Cll for Production,
Manufacturing, Quality and Food
safety.

Cll (Confederation of Indian Industry) Awards
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Hazira plant

Received Award Trophy for Outstanding Performance in Food Safety in the Category of

‘Large Manufacturing Food Businesses, Rising Star - Fats and oils’, for the year 2022.

Kadi unit

Nimrani

Received the award for Winner of Commendation for significant Achievement in Food
Safety - Large manufacturing food business oil and fat.

Received award for winner of Commendation Certificate for Strong Commitment to

Food Safety to Adani Wilmar Ltd. Nimrani in the Category of ‘Large Manufacturing Food
Businesses, Rising Star - Cereals and cereal products, for the year 2022.

Alwar

Received award for Winner of Commendation for Significant Achievement in Food Safety

- Small and Medium Food Manufacturing Business: General Manufacturing.

Ferozpur plant

Received Cll Food safety award in 2022

Other awards

Bundi Plant
Alwar plant
Hazira plant
Kakinada plant

Silver medal in the National Awards for Manufacturing Competitiveness (NAMC 2022)
Silver medal in the National Awards for Manufacturing Competitiveness (NAMC 2022).
OHSSAI Award for safety
OHSSAI 7" Annual HSE Excellence & Sustainability Awards 2022: OHES Award

OHSSAI 7" Annual HSE Excellence & Sustainability Awards 2022: Leadership Award
OHSSAI 7t Annual HSE Excellence & Sustainability Awards 2022: HSE&S Mentor of the

Year

The Fortune brand continued to
achieve remarkable recognition
and accolades, solidifying its
position as a leader in the
industry. It was honored with

the esteemed '‘Brand of the Year
Award 2022’ by Team Marksmen,
based on comprehensive industry
research and insights.

Additionally, Fortune achieved
a notable milestone by ranking

We are dedicated to pursuing our
social and environmental agenda
with increased determination.
One of our flagship programs,
Fortune SuPoshan, launched in
2016 by the Adani Foundation,
aims to combat malnutrition in
India. To date, the project has

among the top 40 in the
esteemed Fortune 500 list. The
brand's flagship Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) initiative,
Fortune SuPoshan, received the
prestigious CSR Project of the
Year Award at the 8% CSR Impact
Awards 2022.

Fortune was recognised and
appreciated for its excellence
in best practices in managing

reached a population of 1.5 Mn
across 3,51,985 households,
spanning 1,081 villages and 177
slums, with the assistance of 535
SuPoshan Sanginis.

In addition to our nutrition
intervention program, we have
actively undertaken various

plastics and packaging waste
under Extended Producer
Responsibility (EPR) at the 7t
International Conference on
Waste-to-Worth, jointly organised
by the Confederation of Indian
Industry (Cll) and the Office of
the Principal Scientific Adviser
(PSA) of the Government of India.

initiatives to contribute to

plastic waste management,
water conservation, recyclable
packaging, and the utilization

of renewable energy sources.
Complying with the guidelines set
by the Central Pollution Control
Board (CPCB) under the Plastic
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Waste Management Rules 2016,
Adani Wilmar has consistently
increased the amount of plastic
collected as part of our Extended
Producer Responsibility (EPR)
target. We have seen rise from
60% of the Company’s plastic
waste collection in FY 2021-22
to 70% in FY 2022-23. Moreover,
as one of the largest edible oil
sellers in the country, we have
achieved a remarkable milestone

by ensuring that 98% of our
packaging is recyclable, setting
an industry benchmark.

We take pride in zero liquid
discharge (ZLD) systems across
eight effluent treatment

plants (ETPs). We implemented
rainwater harvesting facilities
at four plants. With a collective
capacity of 2,800 Kl per day
(KLD), our focus has been on

economically and efficiently
reducing wastewater while
generating reusable clean water.
We mitigated carbon emissions by
harnessing solar energy across six
processing units, which currently
has a generation capacity of
3,040 kilowatts peak (KWp).

Financial review

Segment mix and performance

Volume Mix
61%

Revenue Mix

79%

M Food & FMCG M Industry Essentials M Edible Qil
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Revenue from Operations 58,185 54,155

Cost of goods sold 52,183 48,771 7
Gross Profit 6,002 5,383 1
Employee Benefits Expense 394 392 0
Other Expenses 3,947 3,255 21
EBITDA 1,661 1,736 -4
Depreciation and amortisation 358 309 16
Other Income 261 172 52
Finance cost 775 541 43
PBT 789 1,059 -25
Tax 235 284 -17
PAT (before joint venture) 554 774 -29
Share of joint venture Profit 28 29 -3
PAT 582 804 -28
EPS 4.48 6.89 -35
Key Ratios

Fixed Asset Turnover (x Times)
Gearing (TOL / TNW)

Interest Coverage

Return on Equity (ROE) %

11.8% 11.0x
1.6x 1.8x
2.1x 3.2%

7% 15%

Sales

The Company’'s volume and

value growth were robust, led

by a strong growth in the Food

& FMCG and industry essentials.
The Company achieved a

7% growth in revenue from
operations, amounting to 358,185
Crore in FY'23, driven by a strong
volume growth of 14%. Volume
sales has also crossed the
milestone of 5 Mn Metric Tonnes,
reaching 5.5 Min Metric Tonnes.
Adani Wilmar is among few FMCG
companies to have clocked
revenues more than 350,000
Crore.

Sales growth was attributed to
an increase in product reach by
expanding distribution in terms
of towns, distributors, and retail
outlets. The productivity of
existing outlets also improved.
The Company focused on

enhancing direct distribution
coverage in rural towns, resulting
in better growth rates in rural
areas. The Company added new
client accounts for institutional
and export sales during the

year. New products and variants
were introduced during the year,
contributing to additional growth
prospects in the future..

Profits

Profitability faced several
challenges during the year,
impacting the Company's EBITDA
and PAT. EBITDA, including other
income of 3261 Crore, amounted
to 1,922 Crore, reflecting a

1% increase compared to the
previous year. Operating EBITDA
stood at %1,661 Crore, declining
by 4% YoY. The 5-year compound
annual growth rates (CAGR) of
operating EBITDA until FY 2022-
23 was 10%.

Factors impacting profits

= The Company faced an
unfavorable Tariff Rate Quota
that was implemented in June
2022 for the duty-free imports
of crude soyabean oil and crude
sunflower oil by importers. The
Company was allocated only
10% quota of the total duty-
free imports allowed in both
soyabean oil and sunflower oil.
This was against our actual
imports of around 30% and 15%
of total imports of soyabean and
sunflower oils respectively in
India. This led to higher import
duties for the Company relative to
the rest of the industry.

= Declining edible oil prices
throughout the year, particularly
after Q1FY 2022-23, resulted in
high-cost inventory impacts on
the profit and loss statement.,
The Company's robust risk
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management processes mitigated
the impact to a significant extent.

= |nflationary pressures on
packaging costs at the gross
profit level, as well as inflation in
logistics, chemicals, and power
& fuel costs at the EBITDA level,
affected profitability.

= Finance costs increased due
to rising benchmark interest rates

following a hike in Fed interest
rates.

= The Company's wholly step-
down in Bangladesh incurred

a loss of 63 Crore in FY'23,
attributed to government-
imposed price caps on edible oils,
currency-related issues, and the
unavailability of counterparties
for forex hedging. This resulted in

lower consolidated PAT compared
to standalone PAT.

= Profit after tax (PAT) amounted
to 3582 Crore, declining 28%
compared to the previous year,
resulting in an earnings per share
(EPS) 0f ¥4.48, as opposed to
36.89 in the previous year.

Segment-wise revenue

Fy'22 FY'23 Fy'22 § Volume Value § Volume
Edible Oil 3.4 3.3 46,104 45342 3% 2% 61% 79%
Food & FMCG 0.9 0.6 4,053 2,621 39% 55% 16% 7%
Industry essentials 1.2 0.9 8,028 6,192 34% 30% 23% 14%
Total 5.5 4.8 58185 54155 14% 7% 100% 100%
Edible oil Food & FMCG Industrial Essential

The largest segment, edible oil,
grew by 2% driven by 3% volume
growth. Branded sales grew by
8% YoY volume growth in FY '23.
However, overall oil sales volume
was dragged down due to lower
demand from the bakery and
frying industry.

Food & FMCG grew by 55% YoY,
driven by 39% volume growth.
Strong volume & value growth
across all our products. Both
Wheat flour and Rice businesses
crossed 1,000 cr. in revenue in
FY'23

Industry essentials grew by 30%,
driven by 34% volume growth.
Strong growth in Oleochemicals,
Castor oil & derivatives and
De-oiled cakes. Oleochemicals
business has been growing well
on the back of new capacity that
got commissioned in Q3 FY 2020-
21, along with the stable demand

Outlook and future plans

Edible oils, foods and FMCG

We will continue to stay focused
on our core business and extend
our leadership position in edible
oil. We have built 3 momentum
in the Food business, where we
will drive significant penetration
in the coming years. We will
leverage our capabilities to enter
more Food & FMCG categories to
widen our offerings, primarily with
forward integration linkages.

Post Covid-19, with rising edible
oil prices, consumers shifted
to cheaper brands that led to

the growth of local players with
operational presence limited

to select geographies. With
improving affordability driven by
reduced vegetable oil prices, we
are expecting organised players
to gain market share because
of improving premiumization
and health consciousness. With
a reduction in edible oil prices,
we are expecting demand to
increase for our premium brand
Fortune which could lead to an
improvement in margins.

Our addressable market is large,
thanks to the product categories
that we have chosen. With

our large portfolio of products,
presence across India and export
markets and catering to all kind
of customers and addressing
many customer segments, we
have multiple opportunities
available to grow our sales, along
with opportunity to continuously
improve profitability, as outlined
below



Strong execution

We will continue investments
in brand building to strengthen
our brand equity to command
brand-premium and gain share
of un-organised and regional
players. Regional focus to cater
to the varying consumption
patterns. In channels, we will
continue to develop the high-
growth alternate channels. In
general trade, we will expand
our distribution networks and
enhance our sales productivity.
Besides, the Company will grow
the manufacturing network to
increase capacity and increase
proximity to customers to ensure
product freshness.

Gain new customers

We will gain share with a new
level-playing field created by

the introduction of GST on
unregistered labels. We will
continue to drive the conversion
of consumers from loose, while
ensuring value-for-money for
them. We will gain market share
from regional players, through
better quality and brand trust.
We will break into under-
indexed markets with localised
capacities, better distribution,
and strategic promotions. We
will cross-sell products with
high-velocity products in the
branded consumer segment. We
will cross-sell products that have
a low penetration to existing
institutional customers. We will
build our network of institutional,
HoReCa and export clients. We
will cater to the Indian diaspora in
export markets.

Rice specific growth levers

We will continue scaling the
Kohinoor brand. We will increase

our share in rice exports from
India. In Middle East, we will place
products in major retail chains
and build our distribution for the
retail and HoReCa channels. We
will develop Europe, Australia

and other export markets using
Wilmar's network.

New product launches

We will launch more products
and variants through R&D and
leverage our Fortune brand to
introduce them to the market.
We will continue to launch high
margin value-added products
and will support those launches
with up-front marketing
investments. We will develop the
portfolio of higher margin health-
focused edible oils. To cater to
institutional customer needs,
we will build application-based
products.

Enhance margins

We have multiple opportunities
to enhance margins. We will
enhance margins in products
where customers are less
sensitive to price increases. We
will enhance the mix of premium
brands. We will grow margin-
accretive value-added products.
We will enhance R&D capabilities
for blending & cost optimization.
We will set up integrated
manufacturing units to drive
revenue synergies and reduce
cost.

Sales & distribution

General Trade

= |nurban areas, we will
significantly increase our
direct reach and increase sales
productivity.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Company possesses robust
internal control systems and top-
tier processes that align with its
size and operational scope. These
include:

= The Company has well-crafted
policies and procedures that
cover all significant activities,
and their effectiveness is tested,
including financial closure,
automated controls, and entity
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= Inrural areas, we will double
the coverage of towns and
cover most towns above a 5,000
population.

HoReCa

We will increase our direct
coverage in all large towns. We
will build direct relationships with
more buyers for direct purchase
from AWL.

We expect our packaged oil

& food business to continue
growing with the expansion of
the economy, increasing incomes,
increasing education, higher
consciousness for health &
hygiene and urbanization. With
market-leading food brands, an
extensive distribution network,
state-of-the-art manufacturing
facilities and superior sourcing
capabilities, AWL is positioned to
tap the huge opportunity in India.

Industry essentials

Castor

= We will set up castor
derivatives plant as a stepping
stone for value-addition and
widen the product portfolio

= Increase the share of value-
added products like high-value oil
and derivatives in total oil sales

= (et near consumers by setting
ex-tank operations beyond
Europe

Oleochemicals

= Expand capacities periodically
in basic oleochemicals to
maintain market share.

= Focus on basic surfactants.

= Enter new chemistries and new
products.

level controls. Adherence to these
policies and procedures is a vital
component of the management
review process. These protocols
promote effective business
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operations within a framework of
governance.

= The Company has a

clearly defined delegation of
authority, with limits on the
power to approve revenue and
expenditures that are regularly
reviewed and adjusted as
needed. This facilitates seamless
decision-making in both day-
to-day operations and in the
development of long- and short-
term business strategies.

= The Company formulates
comprehensive business plans

for each segment, with year-
on-year evaluations, annual
financial and operating plans, and
monthly monitoring being integral
components of its established
procedures across all functions.

= The Company utilises a
cutting-edge SAP4 HANA system
to capture data for accounting,
consolidation, and management
information purposes, and for
efficient exchange of information
across multiple locations.

To minimise deviations and
exceptions, the Company strives
to integrate automated controls
into its processes whenever
feasible. Furthermore, the
Company remains committed

to aligning all of its processes
and controls with global best
practices.

Human resources

The Company recognises that the
competence of its workforce is
crucial to achieving success and
is dedicated to providing them
with the skills necessary to keep
up with continuous technological
advancements. Throughout the
year, the Company hosted training
initiatives in various domains,
including technical skills,
interpersonal skills, operational
excellence, general and advanced
management, leadership
qualities, customer focus, safety,
values, and ethical standards. The

= The Company has a firmly
established online compliance
management system that
features seamless integration of
technology and laws. The system
offers comprehensive coverage
of all laws that apply to the
business and provides compliance
updates for each of the operating
units through a management
dashboard.

= The Company has a well-
established multidisciplinary
Management Audit & Assurance
Services (MA&AS) team
comprising professionally
qualified accountants and SAP-
experienced executives. This
team conducts comprehensive
audits throughout the year across
all functional areas and provides
reports to the Audit Committee
on internal control compliance,
operational efficiency and
effectiveness, and key process
risks.

= The Company's MAEAS team
follows a risk-based annual
internal audit plan that is
reviewed and approved by the
Audit Committee. The internal
audit processes are web-enabled
and managed through the Audit
Management System (AMS),
providing greater efficiency and
transparency.

number of employees working
for the Company as of 31t March,
2023, was 2,600 Employees.

The Company's workforce has
been enriched through a culture
based on enthusiasm, exposure
to various market conditions,
emotional involvement, and
empowerment over the years.

Talent acquisition: In the last
financial year, AWL hired 552
employees, a 70% growth in hiring
over the previous financial year.
Attrition in FY 23 was 15%, well
below the industry average of

= The Internal Audit team
conducts audits in accordance
with standard auditing practices
to review the effectiveness of

the Company's internal control
systems and procedures for
managing risks, monitoring
control operations, and complying
with relevant policies. They then
recommend improvements to
processes and procedures to
ensure compliance and efficiency.

= The Audit Committee
conducts regular evaluations of
the execution of the audit plan,
the sufficiency and efficiency
of internal audit systems, and
oversees the implementation
of internal audit suggestions,
including those related to
enhancing the Company’s

risk management policies and
systems.

= The Company has established
several Board Committees

that are mainly composed of
Independent Directors to oversee
and govern the effectiveness of
internal controls, as part of its
corporate governance framework.
The Corporate Governance
Report, which is included in

this Annual Report, provides
further information about these
Committees.

21%. Employer branding initiatives
increased LinkedIn page visitors.
Induction programs for freshers
and laterals ensured that new
hires were seamlessly integrated
in the AWL culture.

Digitization: The Company's
HR technology platform

was transformed through
automation and digitization,
covering the employee lifecycle
from manpower requisition

to separation.



Cautionary statement

The Management Discussion and
Analysis sections contains the
Company's objectives, projections,
estimates and expectation may
constitute certain statements,
which are forward looking within
the meaning of applicable laws
and regulations. The statements

in this management discussion
and analysis report could differ
materially from those expressed
or implied. Important factors that
could make a difference to the
Company’s operation include raw
material availability and prices,
cyclical demand and pricing in
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the Company's principal markets,
changes in the governmental
regulations, tax regimes, forex
markets, economic developments
within India and the countries
with which the Company
conducts business and other
incidental factors.

Risk management

Commodity Price Risk

Risk description: Agri-commodities are our raw-
material, and their prices are volatile. Sudden
increases in commodity price can impact

our profitability

Raw-material supply Risk

Risk description: In our edible oil business, majority
of raw material comes from imports. Geo-political
events can cause supply disruptions, exporting
countries government can put restrictions

on exports. Weather conditions can result in
reduction of crop production.

Regulatory Risk

Risk description: There can be increase in taxes on
import of crude edible oil. There can be restriction
on the quantity that any Company can import. This
can put a large Company like us at a disadvantage
compared to our competitors.

Inflation Risk

Risk description: A high inflation environment can
increase our operating expenses, reducing our
profitability. High inflation also generally results in
increase in interest rates.

Human safety Risk

Risk description: The Company's employee and
contractors are exposed to some risk in factories
due to moving machinery parts, risk of fire,
accidents at time of loading/ unloading boxes in
storage or trucks.

Risk mitigation: We use hedging instruments to
hedge the price risks. Our sales contracts with
our customers act as a natural hedge to the
commodity risk.

Risk mitigation: In edible oil business, our long-
term partnerships with the key suppliers allow

us to source supplies. Qur co-promoter, Wilmar
International, can also help us in securing supplies.
In Food business, we procure a good amount of
requirement during the harvest season when the
supply is abundant.

Risk mitigation: The Company has flexibility in
procurement. It will increase procurement from
domestic sources. Increase in taxes leads to
increase in prices of raw material for all companies.

Risk mitigation: The Company can quickly change
orincrease its product prices to compensate for
the higher cost to serve. A strong brand equity of
our flagship brand 'Fortune’ allow us to take up
our prices.

Risk mitigation: Factories are designed to
segregate the walking area from risky areas.
Regular safety training is imparted, continuous
monitoring of risk zones, through installed
cameras, at local premise and central tower,
regular review of safety incidents by top
management, incorporate learnings from risk
incidents, availability of fire-hydration systems.
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Food-safety Risk

Risk description: Food in raw material form or
finished good form can deteriorate causing
wastage of material. Regulatory agencies can take
an action against us if samples of our products
don't pass their safety norms. In case, an unsafe
food gets delivered to our customers, it can
damage our brand reputation

Low Return on Investment in acquisitions

Risk description: An acquired company may
perform below our expectations on sales or profits,
resulting in lower Return on Investment.

Delay in capacity expansion

Risk description: Capacity expansion by greenfield
or brownfield projects have long lead times.

Unavailability of capacity can restrict our ability to
fulfill customer demand. It can also delay our entry
in new products or markets for business expansion.

Higher competitive intensity

Risk description: Competition can be aggressive on
prices or trade promotions. Competition can invest
more in advertising to gain consumer mindshare.
Competition can launch superior products. More
players can enter in the market.

Risk mitigation: We have extensive safety
measures in place to regularly monitor the quality
of our raw material and products at every stage of
processing and delivery.

Risk mitigation: An extensive analysis and

due diligence is undertaken to evaluate every
opportunity. The opportunity is thoroughly
debated internally and with the Board. The
Company generally pursue opportunities where
we have good understanding of the business and
have upside potential of revenue synergy with
our business.

Risk mitigation: All business leaders prepare
long-range plans to anticipate the capacity
requirements. The Company has strong project
team for planning and execution of expansion
projects. Third-party units are also available for an
exclusive leases to augment our own capacities.

Risk mitigation: Our products have good price-
value equation and has a long-term trust of our
customers, enabling us to defend our market. Our
sales team is close to the ground, quickly picking
new developments in the market. We believe we
are an agile organization to provide an appropriate
response to competitive maneuvers. The market is
also large enough that multiple players can have a
profitable growth in the branded segment.
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Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 25" Annual Report along with the Audited Financial Statements of
your Company for the financial year ended 31t March, 2023.

Financial Performance

The Audited Financial Statements of your Company as on 31t March, 2023 are prepared in accordance with
the relevant applicable Ind AS and Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

The summarized financial highlights are depicted below: (% in crore)
Particulars Consolidated Standalone
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
Revenue from operations 58,184.81 54,154,.82 55,262.45 52,302.27
Other Income 261.35 172.34 256.70 168.94
Total Income 58,446.16 54,327.16 55,519.15 52,471.21
Expenditure other than Depreciation and Finance cost 56,523.86 52,418.55 53,646.27 50,576.88
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 358.46 309.06 319.30 284.74
Finance Cost 774.92 540.79 728.93 525.21
Total Expenditure 57,657.24 53,268.40 54,694.50 51,386.83
Profit before share of Profit/ (Loss) from joint 788.92 1,058.76 824.65 1,084.38
ventures, exceptional items and tax
Total tax expense 235,35 284.41 217.42 276.44
Profit after Tax and before share of Profit from joint 553.57 774.35 607.23 807.94
Venture entities
Share of profit from joint ventures 28.55 29.38 = -
Profit for the year 582.12 803.73 607.23 807.94
Other Comprehensive income (net of tax) (22.73) (3.49) 3.20 (3.94)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) 559.39 800.24 610.43 804.00
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 559.39 800.24

Non-controlling interests = - — _

Notes:
1. There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your Company, which
have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

2. Further, there has been no change in the nature of business of your Company.

FY 2022-23 At a Glance: its profitability, including TRQ (Tariff Rate Quota)
On a standalone business, your Company’'s volume disparity, decline in edible oil prices leading to high-
grew by 13% and revenue stood at T 55,262 crore cost inventory, inflation in operating expenses and
with a3 6% YoY growth. Your Company faced higher interest cost as a result of increase in interest
several headwinds during the year that impacted rates.



Your Company has been focused on improving the
profitability of its businesses. The 5-year CAGR of
EBITDA stands at 8%.

Your Company made good progress in all its business
segments during the year. The largest business
segment, edible oil witnessed 3% YoY volume growth.
Food & FMCG and Industry Essentials segment also
witnessed very strong volume growth of 39% and 34%
YoY, respectively.

In edible oils, packaged edible oil grew by 8% YoY. In
Foods, both wheat flour and rice businesses crossed
the 31,000 crore mark in sales. In Industry essentials,
Oleochemicals registered strong double digit growth
rates.

In rice business, your Company launched premium
regional variants in West Bengal to capture Non-
Basmati market. Your Company also acquired the
rights to the premium basmati rice brand, "Kohinoor”
in India and swiftly re-introduced the brand in the
market and has already crossed ¥ 100 crore of sales
in FY'23. The brand is positioned in the premium to
super premium segment and has a good brand recall
in the market.

Your Company continued to bring value-added
products to address the strong demand for Health
and Convenience foods. It launched two new variants
of Superfood Khichdi and two variants of Poha viz.,
Indori Poha and Thick Poha. It also launched a new
product Fortune Xpert Total Balance Oil with three
blended oils.

Your Company continued to invest in its branding
activities across various advertisement media, both in
the traditional and digital media. It launched two new
TVCs - Fortune Soyabean Oil with Akshay Kumar and
Fortune Sunlite Sunflower Oil with Samantha Prabhu
as its brand ambassadors. Consumers were also
engaged on social media by various contextual paid
and organic campaigns, many of which were timed to
coincide with various festivals in India.

Your Company is focused on increasing the
distribution reach of its products, both in the existing
markets as well as to cover all rural towns having a
population above 5000. As your Company's brand
equity is well established and the Company already
has a pan-India presence, the improved reach can be
a key growth driver. Your Company is also investing
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in expanding its manufacturing facilities, both
greenfield and brownfield, particularly in the Food
business. Your Company will also be expanding its
capacity in oleochemicals and castor oil business.
In terms of the supply chain, your Company is taking
steps to reduce its carbon footprint by promoting
usage of CNG vehicles and use of railways and water
as supplementary mode of transport.

Your Company stays focused on the key financial
areas, including cost management, financial controls
and strength of its balance sheet and closely monitors
and manages the commodity price risk, working
capital, liquidity, debt levels and ROl of its capex.

Your Company firmly believes in giving back to the
communities in which it operates and its CSR initiative.
Fortune SuPoshan stands true to this philosophy. The
project won the prestigious 'CSR Project of the Year
Award’ at the 8" CSR Impact Awards 2022 organized
by CSRBOX, a Dalmia Bharat Foundation initiative.

The detailed operational performance of your
Company has been comprehensively discussed in the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report which
forms part of this Annual Report.

Credit Rating

Your Company's financial discipline and prudence is
reflected in the strong credit rating ascribed by rating
agency. The details of the credit rating are disclosed
in Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of
the Annual Report.

Dividend

Your Company is rapidly expanding in the direction
from being an edible oil company to an integrated
leading food FMCG company. Towards attainment of
thisgoal,yourCompanyisincurring capital expenditure
on an ongoing basis for upgradation of its existing
facilities and acquisition of new brands/plants. The
internal accruals are ploughed back to partly fund the
ongoing expansion and investment projects. Under
the circumstances, the Directors do not recommend
any dividend for the financial year under review and
do not propose to carry any amount to reserves.

The Dividend Distribution Policy,interms of Regulation
43A of the SEBI Listing Regulations is available on the
Company's website on — https://www.adaniwilmar.
com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20
Governance/Dividend%20Distribution%20Policy
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Fixed Deposits

There were no outstanding deposits within the
meaning of Section 73 and 74 of the Act read with
rules made thereunder at the end of the FY23 or the
previous financial years. Your Company did not accept
any deposits during the year under review.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments
During the year under review, your Company has
granted inter-corporate loans in compliance with the
provisions of Section 186 of the Act, the details of
which have been provided in the notes to the financial
statements.

No investment was made and no guarantee was
provided by your Company during the year under
review.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate
Companies
As on 31* March 2023, your Company had the

following subsidiaries and joint ventures:

A. Subsidiaries:
1) Golden Valley Agrotech Private Limited, India

2) AWL Edible Qils and Foods Private Limited,
India

3) Adani Wilmar Pte. Ltd., Singapore

4) Leverian Holdings Pte. Ltd., Singapore

5) Bangladesh Edible Oil Limited, Bangladesh
6) Shun Shing Edible Oil Limited, Bangladesh

B. Joint Ventures:
1) Vishakha Polyfab Private Limited, India

2) AWN Agro Private Limited, India
3) K.T.V. Health Food Private Limited, India

There has been no change in the nature of business of
these subsidiaries and joint ventures. Your Company
does not have any material subsidiaries pursuant
to the provisions of Regulation 16(1) (c) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129, 134 and
136 of the Act read with rules made thereunder
and Regulation 33 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
your Company has prepared consolidated financial
statements and a separate statement containing the
salient features of financial statements of subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in Form AOC-1, which
forms part of the Annual Report.

The Annual Financial Statements and related detailed
information of the subsidiary companies shall be
made available to the shareholders of the holding and
subsidiary companies seeking such information on
all working days during business hours. The financial
statements of the subsidiary companies shall also be
kept for inspection by any shareholders during the
working hours at your Company's registered office
and that of the respective subsidiary companies
concerned. In accordance with the provisions
of Section 136 of the Act, the audited financial
statements, including consolidated financial
statements and related information of your Company
and audited accounts of each of its subsidiaries, are
available on website of your Company https://www.
adaniwilmar.com/Investors/other-downloads.

Your Company has formulated a policy for determining
Material Subsidiaries. The policy is available on your
Company's website and the link for the same is given
in Annexure A of this report.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the
Act read with rules made thereunder, the details of
developments of subsidiaries of your Company are
covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis
Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for
the year under review, as stipulated under the SEBI
Listing Regulations, is presented in a section forming
part of this Annual Report.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnels

As of 31t March, 2023, your Company's Board had
8 (eight) members comprising of one executive
director, three non-executive and non-independent
directors and four independent directors. The Board
has one woman director. The details of the Board and
committee composition, tenure of directors, areas
of expertise and other details are available in the
Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of
this Annual Report.

Inaccordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the
Act, read with rules made thereunder and the Articles
of Association of your Company, Mr. Kuok Khoon
Hong (DIN: 00021957) and Dr. Malay Mahadevia
(DIN: 00064110) are liable to retire by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being


https://www.adaniwilmar.com/Investors/other-downloads

eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The
Board recommends the re-appointment of the above
Directors for your approval. Brief details of Directors
proposed to be appointed/re-appointed, as required
under Regulation 36 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
are provided in the Notice of the ensuing AGM.

Your Company has received declarations from all the
Independent Directors confirming that they meet
with the criteria of independence as prescribed both
under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
there has been no change in the circumstances which
may affect their status as an Independent Director.

Key Managerial Personnel:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 203 of the Act,
Mr. Angshu Mallick, Managing Director & CEO, Mr.
Shrikant Kanhere, Chief Financial Officer and Mr.
Darshil Lakhia, Company Secretary are the Key
Managerial Personnels of your Company as on 31
March, 2023.

Committees of Board

The details of various committees constituted by the
Board, including the committees mandated pursuant
to the applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations, are given in the Corporate Governance
Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

Number of meetings of the Board

The Board met 4 (four) times during the year under
review. The details of the board meetings and the
attendance of the Directors are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of
this Annual Report.

Independent Directors’ Meeting

The Independent Directors met on 21t March, 2023,
without the attendance of the Non-Independent
Directors and members of the management. The
Independent Directors reviewed the performance of
the Non-Independent Directors, the Committees and
the Board as a whole along with the performance of
the Chairman of your Company, taking into account
the views of Company's Executive Director and Non-
Executive Directors and assessed the quality, quantity
and timeliness of flow of information between the
management and the Board that is necessary for the
Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.
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Board Evaluation and Familiarization Programme
Board Evaluation

The Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating
its performance and as well as that of its Committees
and individual Directors, including the Chairman of
the Board. Mr. Chirag Shah, Partner of M/s. Chirag
Shah & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries,
Ahmedabad was engaged, to facilitate the evaluation
and effectiveness of the process of the Board, its
Committees and Individual Directors for the financial
year 2022-23.

A detailed Board effectiveness assessment
questionnaire was developed based on the criteria
and framework adopted by the Board.

The results of the evaluation confirmed a high level
of commitment and engagement of the Board,
its various Committees and the senior leadership.
The recommendations arising from the evaluation
process were discussed at the Independent Directors’
meeting held on 271t March, 2023, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee meeting held on 28%
April, 2023 and the Board meeting held on 3 May
2023. The same were considered by the Board with a
view to optimize the effectiveness and functioning of
Board and its Committees.

Familiarization Programme

Your Company has an orientation
familiarization programme for its
Directors with an emphasis on:

process/
Independent

* Roles, Rights and Responsibilities - Board dynamics
& functions

* Strategy, Operations and functions of the Company

Additionally, all the new Directors are taken through
3 detailed induction and familiarization program
when they join the Board. The induction program
is an exhaustive one that covers the history and
culture of Adani and Wilmar Group, background of
the Company and its growth, various milestones in
the Company's existence since its incorporation, the
present structure and an overview of the businesses
and functions.

The details of the familiarization programme are also
availableonthewebsite of your Company https://www.
adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/
Corporate%20Governance/ID%20Familiarization%20
Programme.
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Policy on Directors’
Remuneration

Your Company's policy on directors’ appointment and
remuneration and other matters (“Remuneration Policy”)
pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act
is available on the website of your Company at https://
www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Policy%20
on%20Directors%20Appt%20and%20Remuneration.

Appointment and

The Remuneration Policy for selection of directors
and determining directors’ independence sets
out the gquiding principles for the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee for identifying the
persons who are qualified to become the directors.
Your Company's Remuneration Policy is directed
towards rewarding performance based on review
of achievements. The Remuneration Palicy is fully
aligned with the existing industry practice.

The remuneration paid to your Company’s Directors is
as per the terms laid out in the Remuneration Palicy.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the
Act, the Board, to the best of their knowledge and
based on the information and explanations received
from your Company, confirm that:

a. in the preparation of the Annual Financial
Statements, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed and there are no material
departures from these statements;

b. they have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the end of the financial year
2022-23 and of the profit of the Company for that
period;

c. they have taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d. they have prepared the annual financial
statements on a going concern basis;

e. they have laid down internal financial controls to

be followed by the Company and such internal

financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively;

f.  they have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all the
applicable laws and that such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.

Internal Financial control
adequacy

The details in respect of internal financial controls
and their adequacy are included in Management
Discussion and Analysis Report, which forms part of

this Annual Report.

system and its

Risk Management

The Company has a structured Risk Management
Framework, designed to identify, assess and
mitigate risks appropriately. The Board has formed
a Risk Management Committee (RMC) to frame,
implement and monitor the risk management
plan for the Company. The RMC is responsible for
reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its
effectiveness. The Audit Committee has additional
oversight in the area of financial risks and controls.
The major risks identified by the businesses are
systematically addressed through mitigation actions
on a continuous basis. Further, details on the Risk
Management activities, including the implementation
of risk management policy, key risks identified and
their mitigations, are covered in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section, which forms part of
this Annual Report.

Board policies

The details of various policies approved and adopted
by the Board as required under the Act and the SEBI
Listing Regulations are provided in Annexure - A to
this report.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The CSR activities and programs undertaken by your
Company are in accordance with the provisions of
Section 135 of the Act and rules made thereunder.
The CSR initiatives of the Company during the year
under review focused on eradicating malnutrition
and anemia, community and preventive health,
sustainable livelihood, rural development and
promoting education.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Act,


https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Policy%20on%20Directors%20Appt%20and%20Remuneration

your Company was required to spend X 16.36 crore
representing 2% of the average qualifying net profits
of the last three financial years on CSR activities
during the FY 2022-23. During the year under review,
the Company has spent316.03 crore on CSR activities,
% 0.59 crore towards administrative overheads and
¥ 0.13 crore towards impact assessment, which is
permissible under the CSR Rules. As such, the total
spending on CSR activities for the FY 2022-23 taking
into account the foregoing is% 16.75 crore against the
CSR obligation of ¥16.36 crore. The excess amount of
% 0.39 crore shall be carried forward and available for
set off in the succeeding financial years.

The annual report on CSR activities is annexed and
forms part of this report as Annexure-B. The brief
details of the CSR Committee are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of
this Annual Report. The CSR policy is available on the
website of your Company https://www.adaniwilmar.
com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20
Governance/CSR%20Policy.

Pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 the
Company has undertaken an impact assessment of
its Fortune Suposhan project at 6 (six) sites through
an independent agency, lotalytics Research and
Analytics Solutions Private Limited. The impact
assessment report for the FY 22-23 is available on the
website of your Company https://www.adaniwilmar.
com/Investors/other-downloads.

Further, the Chief Financial Officer of your Company
has certified that the CSR spends of your Company
for the FY2022-23 have been utilized for the purpose
and in the manner approved by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

Corporate Governance Report

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest
standards of corporate governance practices. The
Corporate Governance Report, as stipulated by the SEBI
Listing Regulations, forms part of this Annual Report
along with the required certificate from a Practicing
Company Secretary, regarding compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated.

In compliance with the Corporate Governance
requirements as per the SEBI Listing Regulations,
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your Company has formulated and implemented a
Code of Conduct for all Board members and Senior
Management Personnel (“Code of Conduct”), who
have confirmed their compliance thereto. The Code of
Conduct is available on the website of your Company
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/
Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Code%20
of%20conduct%200f%20B0OD%20SMP.

Business Responsibility
Report (BRSR)

In accordance with the Listing Regulations, the
Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report,
describing the initiatives taken by your Company from
an environment, social and governance perspective
for the year ended 31t March, 2023 forms part of this
Annual Report.

and Sustainability

Annual Return

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (a) of
the Act, the draft annual return as on 31t March,
2023 prepared in accordance with the provisions
of Section 92(3) of the Act is made available on the
website of your Company and can be assessed using
the link https://www.adaniwilmar.com/Investors/
other-downloads.

Transactions with Related Parties

All the transactions with related parties are placed
before the Audit Committee for its approval. An
omnibus approval from the Audit Committee is
obtained for the related party transactions which are
repetitive in nature.

All the transactions with related parties entered
into during the financial year under review were at
an arm'’s length basis and in the ordinary course of
business and in accordance with the provisions of the
Act and the rules made thereunder, the SEBI Listing
Regulations and your Company’'s Policy on Related
Party Transactions.

Your Company has not entered into any transactions
withrelated partieswhich couldbeconsidered material
in terms of Section 188 of the Act. Accordingly, the
disclosure of related party transactions as required
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act, in Form AOC 2, is
not applicable.

The Directors / members of the Audit Committee
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abstained from discussing and voting in the
transaction(s) in which they were interested. Your
Company has obtained prior approval of shareholders
for material transactions entered into with its
related parties for the financial year ended on 31
March, 2023 as per Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations in the 24™ Annual General Meeting held
on 30" August, 2022.

Your Company did not enter into any related
party transactions during the year which could be
deemed to be prejudicial to the interest of minority
shareholders.

No loans / investments to / in the related party have
been written off or classified as doubtful during the
year under review.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions is available
on your Company's website and can be assessed
using the link https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/
Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/
RPT%20Policy.

Statutory Auditors & Auditors’ Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the
Act read with rules made thereunder, as amended,
M/s. S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003) and M/s.
Dharmesh Parikh & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 11204W/W100725) have been
appointed as the Joint Statutory Auditors of your
Company, for a term of five years till the conclusion of
29™ Annual General Meeting (AGM) of your Company
to be held in the year 2027. In accordance with the
provisions of the Act, the appointment of Statutory
Auditors is not required to be ratified at every AGM.

The Statutory Auditors have however confirmed that
they are not disqualified to continue as Statutory
Auditors and are eligible to hold office as Statutory
Auditors of your Company.

Representatives of the Statutory Auditors of your
Company attended the previous AGM of your
Company held on 30™ August, 2022.

The Notes to the financial statements referred in
the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory. There are
no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks
or disclaimers given by Statutory Auditors of your

Company and therefore do not call for any comments
under Section 134 of the Act. The Auditors’ Report is
enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual
Report.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act,
read with the rules made thereunder, the Board had
re-appointed M/s. SPANJ & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries, to undertake the Secretarial
Audit of your Company for the FY 2022-23. The
Secretarial Audit Report for the year under review
is provided as Annexure-C of this report. There are
no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or
disclaimers in the said Secretarial Audit Report.

Cost Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the
Act, M/s Dalwadi & Associates, Practicing Cost
Accountants have been appointed as Cost Auditors
of the Company for the FY 2023-24. Pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 the
cost audit report for the FY 2022-23 will be filed with
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) within the
statutory time frame.

Secretarial Standards

During the year under review, your Company has
complied with all the applicable provisions of
Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

Reporting of frauds by auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors
and secretarial auditor of your Company have not
reported any instances of fraud committed in your
Company by its officers or employees, to the Audit
Committee under section 143(12) of the Act.

Particulars of Employees
Your Company had 2,600 employees on roll as of 31
March, 2023.

The percentage increase in remuneration, ratio of
remuneration of each Director and key managerial
personnel (KMP) (as required under the Act) to the
median of employees’ remuneration, as required
under Section 197 of the Act, read with rule 5(1) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration


https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/RPT%20Policy

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are set out in
Annexure-D of this report.

The statement containing particulars of employees,
as required under Section 197 of the Act, read
with rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
is provided in a separate annexure forming part of
this report. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the
Annual Report is being sent to the shareholders and
others entitled thereto, excluding the said annexure,
which is available for inspection by the shareholders
at the Registered Office of your Company during
business hours on working days of your Company.
If any shareholder is interested in obtaining a copy
thereof, such shareholder may write to the Company
Secretary in this regard.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace
As per the requirement of The Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, your
Company has constituted an Internal Complaints
Committees (ICs) at all relevant locations across India
to consider and resolve any complaints related to
sexual harassment.

During the year under review, your Company has
not received any complaint pertaining to sexual
harassment.

All new employees go through a detailed orientation
and sign-off on the anti-sexual harassment policy
adopted by the Company.

Vigil Mechanism

Your Company has adopted a whistle blower palicy
and has established the necessary vigil mechanism
for Directors and employees in confirmity with the
provisions of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation
22 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, to facilitate the
reporting of genuine concerns about unethical or
improper activity, without any fear of retaliation.

The vigil mechanism of your Company provides
for adequate safeguards against victimization of
directors and employees who avail of the mechanism
and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

The said palicy is uploaded on the website of your
Company https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/
Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/
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Vigil%20Mechanism%20Policy. During the year under
review, your Company had received 1(one) complaint
under the whistle blower mechanism and the same
was suitably resolved by the Company.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption,
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Theinformation onconservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read
with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
as amended is provided as Annexure-E of this report.

General Disclosures

Neither the Non- Executive Chairman nor the CEO
of your Company received any remuneration or
commission from any subsidiary of your Company.

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting
is required in respect of the following items, as there
were no transactions/events of similar nature during
the year under review:

1. lIssue of equity shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise.

2. Issue of Shares (Including Sweat Equity Shares) to
employees of your Company under any scheme.

3. Significant or material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact
the going concern status and your Company's
operations in future.

4, \Voting rights which are not directly exercised
by the employees in respect of shares for the
subscription/ purchase for which a loan was
given by your Company (as there is no scheme
pursuant to which such persons can beneficially
hold shares as envisaged under section 67(3)(c)
of the Act).

5. Application made or any proceeding pending
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

6. One time settlement of loan obtained from the
Banks or Financial Institutions.

7. Revision of financial statements and Directors’
Report of your Company.

Disclosure about utilization of initial public
offer (IPO) proceeds

Your Company discloses to the Audit Committee
the uses/application of proceeds/funds raised from
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the initial public offer (IPO) as part of the quarterly
review of financial results. Your Company has
appointed HDFC Bank Limited as the Monitoring
Agency in terms of Regulation 41 of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2018 (“ICDR
Regulations”), as amended from time to time, to
monitor the utilization of IPO proceeds. The Company
has obtained monitoring reports from the Monitoring
Agency on a quarterly basis confirming no deviation
orvariation in the utilization of IPO proceeds from the
objects stated in the Prospectus dated 1t February,
2022.The Company has submitted the statement(s)
and Monitoring Agency Report as required under
Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulations to
both the exchanges where the equity shares of
the Company are listed, namely the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited
(BSE).

Insurance
Your Company has taken adequate insurance for all its
assets and its operations against foreseeable perils.
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Annexure - A to the Directors’ Report

Sr. No. | Name of Policies Legislation Weblink
1 Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Regulation 22 of the SEBI https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/
Blower Policy Listing Regulations and as Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Vigil%20
defined under Section 177 of Mechanism%20Palicy
the Act
2 Policy concerning procedure | Regulation 9A of the SEBI https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
of inquiry in case of leak or (Prohibition of Insider Trading) | Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Policy%20for%20
suspected leak of unpublished | Regulations Procedure%200f%20Inquiry%20in%20Case%200f%20
price sensitive information Leak%200f%20UPSI
3 Code of Practices and Regulation SA of the SEBI https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Procedures for Fair disclosure | (Prohibition of Insider Trading) | Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Code%200f%20
of unpublished price sensitive | Regulations fair%20disclosure
information
4 Code of Internal Procedures Regulation 8 of the SEBI https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/
and Conduct for regulating, (Prohibition of Insider Trading) | Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Code%20
monitoring and reporting of Regulations 0f%20Conduct%20for%20Regulating%20and%20
trading by Insiders Monitoring%20Trading%20by%20Insiders
5 Terms of Appointment of Regulation 46 of the SEBI https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Independent Directors Listing Regulations and Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Terms%20and%20
Section 149 read with conditions%200f%20appointment%200f%201D
Schedule IV to the Act
6 Familiarization Program Regulations 25(7) and 46 of https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/
the SEBI Listing Regulations Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/ID%20
Familiarization%20Programme
7 Related party transactions Regulation 23 of the SEBI https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Listing Regulations and as Investors/Corporate%20Governance/RPT%20Policy
defined under the Act
8 Policy on Material Regulation 24 of the SEBI https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Subsidiaries Listing Regulations Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Material%20
Subsidiaries%20Policy
9 Material Events Policy Regulation 30 of the SEBI https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Listing Regulations Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Material%20
Events%20Policy
10 Website content Archival SEBI Listing Regulations https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Policy Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Website%20
content%20archival%20policy
1 Policy on Preservation of Regulation 9 of the SEBI https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Documents Listing Regulations Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Preservation%20
of%20documents%20policy
12 Nomination and Regulation 19 of the SEBI https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Remuneration Policy of Listing Regulations and as Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Policy%200n%20
Directors, KMP and other defined under Section 178 of Directors%20Appt%20and%20Remuneration
Employees the Act
13 CSR Policy Section 135 of the Companies https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Act Investors/Corporate%20Governance/CSR%20Palicy
14 Dividend Distribution Policy Regulation 43A of the SEBI https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Listing Regulations Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Dividend%20
Distribution%20Palicy
15 Code of Conduct for Board Regulation 17 of the SEBI https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
of Directors and Senior Listing Regulations Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Code%200f%20
Management of the Company conduct%200f%20BOD%20SMP
16 Policy on Board Diversity Regulation 19 of the SEBI https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/

Listing Regulations

Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Board%20
Diversity%20Policy
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https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Policy%20for%20Procedure%20of%20Inquiry%20in%20Case%20of%20Leak%20of%20UPSI
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Code%20of%20fair%20disclosure
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20Regulating%20and%20Monitoring%20Trading%20by%20Insiders
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Terms%20and%20conditions%20of%20appointment%20of%20ID
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/ID%20Familiarization%20Programme
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/RPT%20Policy
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Material%20Subsidiaries%20Policy
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Material%20Events%20Policy
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Website%20content%20archival%20policy
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Preservation%20of%20documents%20policy
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Policy%20on%20Directors%20Appt%20and%20Remuneration
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/CSR%20Policy
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Dividend%20Distribution%20Policy
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Code%20of%20conduct%20of%20BOD%20SMP
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Board%20Diversity%20Policy
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Annexure - B to the Directors’ Report
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
ACTIVITIES AS PER SECTION 135 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company has framed a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR) which encompasses its philosophy

and guides its sustained efforts for undertaking and supporting socially useful programs for the welfare and
sustainable development of the society. The Company carried out /implemented its CSR activities / projects
through the Adani Foundation. The Company has identified Education, Community Health, Sustainable
Livelihood and Community Infrastructure as the core sectors for CSR activities.

Composition of the CSR Committee:

Sl. | Name of Director Designation / Nature of Directorship No. of No. of
No meetings meetings
of CSR of CSR
Committee | Committee
held during | attended
the year | during year
.| Mrs. Dipali H. Sheth Chairman, Non- Executive, Independent 3 3
2. | Mr. Madhu Ramachandra Rao | Member, Non- Executive, Independent 3 3
Dr. Malay Mahadevia Member, Non- Executive & Non- 3 3
Independent
4. | Mr. Angshu Mallick Member, Executive & Non- Independent 3 2

Provide the web-link(s) where Composition
of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed
on the website of the company.

Composition of CSR Committee:

https://www.adaniwilmar.com/Investors/board-
and-committee-charters

CSR Policy:

https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/
Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/
CSR%20Policy

CSR Projects: https://www.adaniwilmar.com/csr

A brief of CSR projects approved by the Board and
implemented by the Company during the FY 22-
23 are as under:

Overview

Since 1996, the Adani Foundation (“Foundation”),
the community engagement arm of the Adani
Group, has been active in the core areas of
Education, Health, Sustainable Livelihoods, Skill
Development and Community Infrastructure. Its
strategies are rooted in national priorities and

global Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

By building institutions of people and focusing on
sustainability, the Foundation contributes to the
dignity, well-being and wealth of the communities
surrounding the Adani group’s businesses and
beyond. It is currently operating in 5,753 villages
across 19 states, positively impacting 7.3 million
lives.

CSR Activities in FY 2022-23:

The Company has spent ¥ 16 crore towards
CSR activities in FY 2022-23 through Adani
Foundation, which was utilized for:

FORTUNE SUPOSHAN

Fortune SuPoshan is a community-based project
for addressing the issues of malnutrition and
anemia among children of 0-5 years of age,
adolescent girls, pregnant/lactating mothers as
well as women in the reproductive age group.
The project adopts a life cycle approach, with
an equal emphasis on curative and preventive
interventions for behavioural change.

A 'SuPoshan Sangini' is a village health volunteer
who plays a pivotal role in spreading awareness,


https://www.adaniwilmar.com/Investors/board-and-committee-charters
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/CSR%20Policy
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/csr

referrals and promoting behavioural change
among the target groups to achieve the project
objectives. Presently, 535 trained Sanginis are
working with 3,51,985 households in 1081 villages
and 177 slums covering 13 States. Collectively,
the Sanginis have reached out to 129,982
malnourished children, 83,745 adolescent girls
and 2,25,952 women.

Key strategies adopted to achieve project

objectives:

e Adaptation of first 1000 Days concept to
strengthen core areas of Infant and Young Child
Feeding (IYCF), Water Sanitization and Hygiene
(WASH), and inculcation of healthy food habits
through a life cycle approach.

® |ntegrated community-based approach towards
prevention and management of malnutrition.

e Facilitating access to services by strengthening
Government of India's flagship program
like  POSHAN Abhiyan, Integrated Child
Development Services (ICDS).

Awareness building:

e Family/individual counselling: This is done with
the objective of identification of children with
any form of undernutrition, IYCF, promoting
dietary diversity and other health & nutrition
related issues. The Sanginis counsel on dietary
requirements of the child, prevention from
illness/diseases and signs of malnutrition.
This year a total of 87,662 family or individual
counselling sessions were carried out.

e Focused Group Discussion (FGD): FGDs
are effective to spread information in the
community or specific group or targeted
people. A Sangini leads the FGD by initiating
the discussion from general to core topics. This
year a total of 94,999 FGDs were carried out on
various topics associated with health, nutrition,
WASH & IYCF.

e Special Days celebration: The project supports
the Prime Minister's overarching scheme for
holistic nutrition i.e., POSHAN Abhiyaan also
known as the National Nutrition Mission.
During the year, efforts as part of Poshan Maah
celebration, Breastfeeding Week, Newborn
Care Week, Global Handwashing-day, World
Menstrual Hygiene Day, Environment Day &
World Food Day, and Poshan Pakhwada, were
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celebrated and cumulatively reached over
2,22,420 beneficiaries.

Identification and Treatment of Children with
Severe Acute Malnutrition:

Project Fortune SuPoshan is determined
towards identification and treatment of severe
malnourished children. Sanginis do regular
screening and anthropometry of children below
5 years and identify the children with different
categories of malnutrition i.e., wasted, stunted
and underweight. In the FY 2022-23 more than
one lakh registered (in the project) children were
screened. The Sanginis do follow-ups with SAM
children twice a month, MAM once a month and
healthy children every quarter.

On identification of SAM children with medical
complications like fever, diarrhea, vomiting, loss
of appetite, hypothermia, dehydration etc. they
are immediately referred to the nearest facility
(MTC/NRC) where the child is admitted for a
minimum of 14 days and receives the treatment
under observation of medical professionals. Post
discharge the Sangini and local ASHA worker
follow-up with the child till the child turns normal.
1204 complicated SAM children were admitted in
NRC centers.

On Identification of SAM & MAM children without
Medical Complications, the Sangini still refers the
SAM child without medical complication to the
nearest Anganwadi center or sub health center for
better diagnosis of any complication in the child.
The Sangini keeps tracking the child twice a month
on necessary screening criteria like MUAC tape,
weight for height and weight gain. Also, the family
is counselled on the selection of the right food
for the child and adequate care required for the
child. 12245 SAM children were shifted to MAM
category.

Impact:

In FY 2022-23, a total of 27181 children were
shifted to the Healthy category through rigorous
follow-up made by SuPoshan Sanginis and by
involving the community in various awareness
building and practical sessions.

Infant & Young Child Feeding (IYCF) Practices
Improved: IYCF contributes to reduced child
morbidity, stunting and mortality. IYCF approaches
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are specifically targeted to the age range of 0-24
month and are composed of immediate, exclusive,
and continued breastfeeding practices for well
and sick children. Breastfeeding is recognized
as the most effective preventable public health
interventions for child survival. 445 SuPoshan
Sanginis were trained directly or virtually on
IYCF practices. The knowledge is shared among
adolescent girls, pregnant-lactating women, and
otherwomeninthereproductiveagegroup through

family counselling, FGD, IEC demonstration,
interactive sessions, demonstrations, and
trainings.

Promoting Kitchen Garden Towards Ensuring
Nutritional Security at the Household Level:
Developing a Nutri Garden at the household
level is an excellent way to ensure nutritional
security throughout the year for the family. More
than 6000 plus nutri -gardens were developed
in the vulnerable families. Process followed -
identification of family, preparation of land by
adding local available organic manure; providing
seeds of different nutrient rich leafy vegetables
and fruits; regular monitoring visits, and cooking
demo of harvested crops in a way to preserve the
nutrition in the recipes.

SuPoshan Project Launched in Six New Sites
- New sites were identified based on nutrition
indicators of NHFS-5. District level officials
including District Collector, Women & Child
Development Officer, Chief Medical & Health
Officer, District Development Officers, media
personnel, NGO representatives and local AWL
team including plant head, HR head were part
of the launch programs. The new sites include
Haldia 2 in West Bengal, Mangalore in Karnataka,
Nimrani and Neemuch in Madhya Pradesh, Alwar
in Rajasthan and Medadraj in Gujarat.

Fortune SuPoshan Web Application Revamped -
The previous version of the web application was
developed in 2018 with the technology used
at that point of time and less coverage data.
The application was getting heavier with the
additional number of sites, users and multiple
output features. With the limitation to renew the
same application on new indicators, it was decided
to create the application with a lighter version and
less data inputs. At present the development has

taken place in two stages; one is APK and other
is web portal. Both Web App & APK are actively
used by the SuPoshan Sanginis and the SuPoshan
Officers.

Education

Adani Foundation's resolve to make quality
education available and affordable to as many
children as possible has taken the form of several
free schools as well as subsidized schools across
India. Many smart learning programs as well as
projects to adopt government schools are being
run in remote areas to ensure the realization of
the children’s true potential.

Adani Vidya Mandir, Krishnapatnam:

Adani Vidya Mandir schools create a happy, secure,
and stimulating learning environment by providing
free, high-quality education to meritorious
students from economically weaker sections of
the society.

Adani Vidya Mandir, Krishnapatnam is an English
Medium School running from Play Class to class
10" with the state government curriculum of
Andhra Pradesh. It is facilitating the education
of 804 students from socially and economically
backward fishermen families.

Utthan Learning Initiative Centers (ULIC): The
children of fishermen families are mostly studying
in Government’s Primary Schools (1% to 5" Class)
in the villages namely Muthukuru, Indukurupeta,
Thotapalli Gudur and Chillakuru Mandals. Such
students are identified by After School Remedial
Assistance (ASRA) volunteers and further
supported by helping them to complete the
homework, provide joyful learning experience, and
taking care of them till their parents return home
after finishing work for the day. (most of them
work on daily wage basis).

« ASRA is benefitting 1496 students in 32 ASRA
Centres with 35 volunteers. ASRA students are
also given special coaching by the volunteers to
make them successful in competitive admission
tests conducted by Navodaya Residential
Schools, Gurukula Pathasalalu, Kasturbha
Gandhi Balika Vidhyalayas (KGBVs), Social
Welfare and other Government Schools.

e The initiative is helping the learning levels of
the students and in turn tackling issues like



child marriages, child labour and illiteracy. In the
process, these students also gain knowledge on
discipline, hygiene practices and healthy habits

Project Udaan:

Project Udaan is geared towards motivating
the students of our country and encouraging
the entrepreneurial spirit in their lives. It is
a3 learning-based initiative focusing on UN's
fourth Sustainable Development Goal - Quality
Education. Under this project, exposure tours are
organized wherein students visit the Adani Port,
Adani Power & Adani Wilmar facilities at the Adani
Group sites.

During the FY 2022-23, 456 institutes have visited
and gained practical knowledge about various
aspects of Port, Power & Adani Wilmar business
operations, at Mundra location. The institutes
included 29097 students (including 11347 female)
from 263 Schools, 154 Colleges, 26 ITI & 13 other
institutes.

Community Health:

The Adani Foundation is investing in community
health through deployment of resources and
services on the ground. The aim is to reach out
to the most needy and vulnerable section of the
population at the grassroots. The impetus is on
pan India projects - Mobile Health Care Units for
doorstep delivery of healthcare, running wellness
centres and rural clinics, organising health
camps, and building and running multi-speciality
hospitals.

Healthcare Facilitiesinand Around Krishnapatnam
The existing healthcare facilities around
Krishnapatnam site was inadequate to meet
the growing needs of the people. The Adani
Foundation established Adani Chikistalayam,
Adani Medical Centre, Adani Dental Care, and
Adani Homoeopathy Clinic. The services in these
centres are provided free-of-cost through the
Adani Community Empowerment Foundation.
During FY 23, 32,506 treatments were provided
through these healthcare initiatives.

Outreach Health Programs:

With inclusive healthcare at their core, the Apollo
Foundation and the Adani Foundation announced
3 two-year tie-up for healthcare programmes
at the Adani Krishnapatnam Port. The social
partnership named Total Health Program will be
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from 5 February 2022 to 31 March 2024.

The Adani Foundation intends to infuse holistic
quality healthcare services into their CSR activities
in Krishnapatnam. Total Health will support more
than 50,000 residents in and around the port
town.

Itiscovering all 8 community villagesin Muthukuru,
SPSR Nellore District and Chillakuru of Tirupati
District.

1 mega and 4 General Health Screening Camps
were conducted during 2022-23. The 64
suspected Carcinoma cases were identified from
2447 community women screened (Age Group
25 - 55 Years). The identified patients were then
helped to get follow up medical management in
the Indian Red Cross Society Cancer Hospital.

* All necessary tests are conducted free in
screening camps. Medical Team with Arrjava
Warriors are regularly giving awareness to
community women to maintain their quality
of health. Yoga classes are promoted in the
community for the age group between 18 to 60
years.

Mobile Health Camps — Mobile health services are
provided to the community families in 8 villages
fortnightly: once in each village and 16 Camps in a
month. The patient response per camp is 40 to 50
and totally 5701 individuals received treatment for
their ailments during this year.

Ambulance Services — Emergency medical services
are provided to critical cases by two ambulances
free of cost. 355 highrisk cases were supported by
the Foundation.

Fog Operation — Towards tackling the mosquito
menace causing diseases like Malaria, Filaris,
Dengue etc. regular fogging operation is
conducted. 6482 families have been benefitted.

Medical Reimbursement - The Foundation
supported the poorest of the poor families (R & R
colony), who incurred medical expenses for major
surgeries such as heart, accidents, fractures etc.
by means of reimbursement. 17 poor families were
supported by this initiative.

RO Water Plants: 6 RO Water Plants are operating
in Krishnapattanam’s R & R Colony, Chalivendram,
Narikellapalli, Ramnagar and Arcotpalem locations
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to provide drinking water to 5602 families every
day. This is a crucial intervention as TDS of
underground water in these villages are above
2000 mg/litre.

Village Sanitation Program: Lack of proper solid
waste disposal and poor sanitary conditions are
major health concerns faced by the people living
in the surrounding villages of Krishnapatam,
The Adani Foundation is facilitating sanitation
initiatives in all 8 core villages towards enabling
healthy environment. 136 community workers are
carrying out sanitation work benefitting 17960
families.

Sustainable Livelihood Development:

Through Sustainable Livelihood Development,
the Foundation offers a bouquet of initiatives
like water conservation, organic farming, dairy
development through strategic animal husbandry
projects, and augmentation of women's
enterprises by supporting them with knowledge,
skills, and market linkages.

Women Empowerment and other Livelihood
Activities at Krishnapatanam:

Sustainable Livelihood Development is a8 new
initiative during this Financial Year 2022-23 at this
site and the following projects have been initiated
on a pilot basis:

Promotion of Community-Based Livelihood
Activities for Women: Awareness sessions were
conducted that benefited 5,869 economically
weak women from 8 core villages. Identified and
mentored 3 group units and 8 individual units
in exploring livelihood opportunities through
business.

Promotion of Kitchen Garden: The Foundation
is creating awareness about Kitchen Gardening
in core villages. 500 families came forward to
develop kitchen gardens. Each family were given 2
coconut plants and 11 varieties of vegetables' seed
packets.

Farmers’ Clubs: 288 marginal farmers in 8 villages
and 20 farmer groups (10 members per group)
were identified and given training on the latest
agriculture techniques and methods. The training
was provided through Krishi Vigyan Kendra. The
farmers were supported with groundnut seeds,
bio fertilizers and sprayers towards encouraging

organic farming.

Promotion of Rural Sports: The Foundation is
instrumental in engaging with youths through
various sports initiatives. It is creating awareness
among community youth in 8 core villages to
play sports. 523 youths have been identified as
players for Cricket, Volleyball and Kabaddi. 15
Cricket Teams, 15 Volleyball Teams and 15 Kabaddi
Teams have been formed. The Foundation is also
encouraging the teams by providing sports Kits
and sportswear. The talents were recognized
through tournaments and felicitated.

Youths are also involved in village level cultural
programs & celebrations. 2545 youths were
involved in different events such as International
Women's Day, International Girl Child Day, Farmers
Day, Fisheries Day, Pongal Celebration and Youth
Day.

Grass Land Development, Mundra, Gujarat:

The Adani Foundation has helped convert 205
acres of denuded village common pastureland
(Gochar) into fertile and productive grassland
in Zarpara and Siracha villages. The objective
was to transform these villages into fodder self-
sustaining villages with community participation.
Out of these 205 acres of Gochar land, 18 acres
are fenced and sowed with multispecies green
fodder with enhanced nutritive value. As a result:

* More than 2250 cattle will have improved
quality and quantity of milk.

e Average 2450 cattle received green fodder for
72 days which in turn increased 0.5 litre daily
milk quantity of 50% cattle.

o Monetary benefit calculation - 1225 cattle
x 0.5-liter milk quantity increase x 40 % per
liter=31592000.

o Open grazing saved farmers cost as they did
not have to purchase fodder - 2450 cattle x
7kg /Day X 72 Days =¥ 37,04,400 (% 3 per kg)

The project has the potential to become replicable
in many other villages.

Individual Fodder Cultivation:

The Adani Foundation played a critical role in
spreading awareness among farmers and training
them to cultivate Super Napier Grass. It is an
upgraded variety of grass and can be harvested
three timesin a year.



e 192 farmers have adopted and cultivated Super
NAPIER Grass in 190-acres and produce 3800
tons fodder, leading to a saving of approx. ¥ 52
Lakhs.

Apart from the above, the Company has directly
contributed % 0.62 crore towards various CSR
projects around its plant locations.

Provide the executive summary along with
web-links of Impact assessment of CSR
projects carried out in pursuance of Sub-rule
(3) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable :

During the year under review, your Company
carried out an impact assessment of the
Fortune Suposhan Project at 6 (six) sites namely
Tharad (Gujarat), Godda (Jharkhand), Raigarh
(Chhatisgarh), Dhamra 2 (Odisha), Haldia 1 (West
Bengal) and Bundi (Rajasthan). The assessment
was carried out by an independent agency,
lotalytics Research and Analytics Private Limited.
A summary of the assessment report is as under:

Executive Summary:

The burden of malnutrition persists as a major
health and development concern in India, despite
several flagship programs and initiatives such as
Integrated Child Development Services (ICDS)
scheme, Mid-day meal scheme, Pradhan Mantri
Matru Vandana Yojna, POSHAN Abhiyaan, which
addresses the problem of undernutrition and
its determinants through direct action on food
supplementation as well as enhancing the level
of knowledge and awareness about appropriate
dietary practices in the community. To supplement
the efforts made through these programs, the
Adani Foundation implemented Project Fortune
SuPoshan, which adopted a lifecycle approach
with greater focus on the first 1000 days to break
the intergenerational cycle of malnutrition.

As a3 CSR initiative by Adani Wilmar Ltd., the
Fortune SuPoshan project was initiated in 2016
to support and strengthen the community level
efforts to promote child and women health
care practices, nutrition, WASH practices and to
combat malnutrition in children below 5 vyears
of age, pregnant and lactating women, women
in reproductive age group and adolescent girls
by leveraging existing platform of ICDS. The
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program identified local community volunteers,
known as SuPoshan Sanginis, who supported
in implementation of the program activities in
six districts namely - Tharad (Gujarat), Godda
(Uharkhand), Raigarh (Chhattisgarh), Dhamra
2 (Odisha), Haldia 1 (West Bengal), and Bundi
(Rajasthan).

In order to measure the impact of the program, an
endline evaluation was conducted externally by
lotalytics Research and Analytics Private Limited
The evaluation used mixed method approach
and utilized data from both primary survey on
knowledge, behaviour and nutritional aspects and
secondary review, particularly districts report of
NFHS-4 & 5 for interpretation of results.

The achievements of the program were measured
by comparing the major program indictors
with NFHS-4 & 5 results and by comparing the
knowledge, awareness and practices on health
care, nutrition and WASH of beneficiaries who
were exposed to the program intervention with
those without exposure.

Program Significance:

* The assessment findings showed significant
improvement in receiving of four or more ANC,
consumption of IFA tablets for 100 days or more,
institutional births, nutritional status of women
and children, early initiation of breastfeeding
etc. in most of the intervention geographies as
compared to NFHS-4 & 5.

* The exposure of the program made significant
improvements in knowledge and practices
related to diet during pregnancy, infant and
child care, and child complementary feeding.

* Improvement in maintaining hygiene before
feeding the children was also observed among
those who had exposure to the programme
interventions.

* Counselling and capacity building activities
under the program helped to improve the dietary
diversity among women and adolescent girls.
There were considerable proportion of women
who were able to attain an adequate diet.

* Behaviour change activities led to increased
utilization of ICDS and health services among
respondents who were exposed to the program
intervention.
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* Health check-ups of adolescent girls and
consumption of IFA and deworming tablets
improved significantly.

e Improvement in utilization of nutritional
rehabilitation  centres (NRC) or child
malnutrition treatment centres (CMTC) was
observed through improved referral and
awareness.

Reach of Program Activities:

* Nearly, 80% respondents attended the
education sessions/events under the program.
Cooking demonstration sessions helped
beneficiaries to learn food recipes to make
food with more nutritional value along with
the practical information about hygienic and
healthy cooking practices. The intervention
approach was practical and easy to adopt as
reported by the beneficiaries.

* SuPoshan vatika/ Kitchen Garden under the
program promoted to improve dietary diversity
and practices helped the beneficiaries in many
ways. SuPoshan vatika helped them in getting
fresh and organic vegetables at very reasonable
cost. It supported a few beneficiaries to
generate additional income by selling extra
vegetables.

« Involvement of SuPoshan Sangini (a community
volunteer) assisted in  the community
ownership of the program. The program was
also instrumental in empowering Sanginis
on multiple fronts. Working as SuPoshan
Sangini built their confidence, improved their
communication skills, earned them respect at
community and family level and made them
financially independent.

* Overall, the efforts made via Fortune SuPoshan
program were instrumental in bridging the gaps
in knowledge and creating a more informed,
motivated and engaged community. The
comprehensive approach adopted for behaviour
change along with one-to one interaction,
cooking demonstration and kitchen garden
was able to create a sustainable impact in the
target population effectively.

Conclusions and Recommendations:
Overall, the efforts made via Fortune SuPoshan

program were instrumental in bridging gaps
in information availability and creating a more
informed, motivated and engaged community.
The community has observed a positive impact
of the SuPoshan program, in which SuPoshan
Sangini, the community volunteer played a
vital role in raising awareness and stimulating
mothers and adolescent girls to adopt healthy
dietary and hygiene practices. A multi-pronged
360 degree approch for behaviour change and
communication, including one-to one interaction,
cooking demonstration and kitchen garden were
able to create a sustainable impact in the target
population effectively. Also, with a focused
approach and comprehensive service delivery, the
project had been able to strengthen Integrated
Child Development Services (ICDS) and WASH
and increase the utilization of Health and ICDS
services.

Despite the improved knowledge and practices
among the beneficiaries exposed to the
intervention, the rates were low for a few
indicators. This suggests that there is a need to
further intensify the counselling sessions/event.
A barrier analysis may be conducted to identify
the key factors that prevented the adoption of the
suitable practices.

Overall from the analysis it can be concluded
that SuPoshan Sangini was a real game changer
and was responsible for sustainable impact on
the key health and nutrition indicators. Looking
at the success of the project, it is suggested to
scale up the interventions in wider geographies
for improved health and nutrition outcomes. The
effectiveness of the program could be further
improved by raising awareness on family planning,
child marriage and adolescent health issues.
Public-private partnership has strengthened
the existing health and nutrition services and
improved access to healthcare for underserved
and poor communities.

The detailed impact assessment report for the FY
22-23 is available on the website of your Company
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/Investors/other-
downloads.
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5. (3) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): ¥818.24 crore
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): %16.36 crore
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the | Nil
previous financial years.
(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any. Nil
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+ (c )+ (d)] 716.36 crore

6. (3) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing | ¥ 16.03 crore

Project)
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads Z0.59 crore
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable % 0.13 crore
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(3)+ (b )+ (c)] ¥16.75 crore

(e ) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in %)
Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Financial Year Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section
(% In crore) section 135(6) 135(5)
Amount Date of transfer Name of the Amount Date of
Fund transfer
Nil

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

SI. | Particulars Amount

No

(i) ' Two percentage of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) ¥16.36 crore
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 316.75 crore
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] ¥ 0.39 crore
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Nil

Financial Years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in the succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] ¥ 0.39 crore

7. Details of unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:

Q) () (3) 4) (5) (e ) €))
SI. | Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount transferred Amount Deficiency,
No. | Financial transferred Amount in spent to a Fund as specified remaining to if any
Year(s) to unspent Unspent in the under Schedule VIl as per | be spent in
CSR Account | CSR Account | Financial | second proviso to Section | succeeding
under Section | under Section | Year (in ?) 135(5), if any Financial
135(6) (in3) | 135(6) (in?) Amount Date of Years (in 3).
(in3) Transfer

Nil
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8. Whether any capital asset have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsi-
bility amount spent in the Financial Year:

‘O Yes ENO

If yes, enter the number of capital assets created/ acquired:

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year:

Q)] (2 (3) (4) (5) (6)

SI. | Short particulars Pin code of Date of Amount of Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary

No. of the property or the property creation CSR amount of the registered owner
asset(s) [including or asset(s) spent CSR Name Registered
complete address Registration address
and location of the Number, if
property] applicable

Not Applicable

(All fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/
Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as
well as boundaries)

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per sub section (5) of section 135:

Not Applicable

Dipali H. Sheth Angshu Mallick
Director & Chairman- CSR Committee Managing Director & CEO & Member - CSR Committee
(DIN:07556685) (DIN: 002481358)
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Annexure - C to the Directors’ Report
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of
The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

ADANI WILMAR LIMITED

CIN : L15146GJ1999PLC0O35320
Regd. Off: Fortune House,

Near Navrangpura Railway crossing,
Ahmedabad - 380009

Gujarat, India

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Adani
Wilmar Limited [CIN:L15146GJ1999PLC035320]
(hereinafter called the Company). The Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorised representatives during the conduct of the
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the
Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper board-processes
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the Financial Year ended on
March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of;

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the rules
made there under;

V)

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act,
1956('SCRA") and the rules made there under;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations
and bye-laws framed there under;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the rules and regulations made there under to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas

Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;
The following regulations and guidelines

prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act):

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2017;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capitaland Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity ) Regulations, 2021;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Non Convertible
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Securities) Regulations, 2021;

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations,
2018;and

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations,
2018

vi) For review of Other sector specific laws as
applicable to the Company, in view of the
manufacturing units at diverse locations across
the country, it was not feasible to review
compliance management system prevailing in the
Company.

Moreover, it was noted that there were no instances
requiring compliance with the provisions of the
laws indicated at point (d), (e), (g) and (h) of para
(v) mentioned hereinabove during the period under
review as said regulations were not applicable to the
Company.

We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreement entered into by the
Company with the Stock Exchange and The SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

During the period under review the Company has
generally complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, mentioned
hereinabove. However, we have been informed that
the Companyisinthe process of filling certain e-forms
on MCA portal which had become due for filing.
We have relied on the representations made by the
Company and its officers for systems and mechanisms
formed by the Company for compliances under laws
and regulations applicable to the Company.

We further report that, the Board of Directors of the
Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of the Executive Directors and the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board that took place during
the period under review as mentioned below were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act.

(A) During the period under review, The Board of
Directors of the Company at its meeting held
on November 3, 2022 , re-designated Mr. Dorab
Erach Mistry (DIN : 07245114) Non Executive
and Independent Director, as Chairman of
the Company w.e.f. November 4, 2022 and
re-designated Mr. Khoon Hong Kuok (DIN
00021957) existing Chairman of the Company as
Non- Executive Vice Chairman of the Company
with effect from November 4, 2022.

Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to
schedule the Board meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days
in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining furtherinformation and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the
dissenting Members' views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes, wherever required.

We further report that there are adequate systems
and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with the applicable sector
specific laws, rules, regulations and guidelines
referred hereinabove.

We further report that during the audit period of
the Company there were no specific events / actions
having a major bearing on the Company's affairs
in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. except the
following:

(A) During the period under review, the Company
had signed an IP Assignment Agreement with
MCCORMICK SWITZERLAND GMBH, a company
incorporated under the laws of Switzerland and
acquired domestic intellectual property rights,
title and claims under the trademark "KOHINOOR”



B)

(©)

and various other trademarks along with goodwill
by passing resolution by circulation on April 22,
2022 and said resolution is noted by the Board
in their Board Meeting held on May 2, 2022. The
Company had also released press release on May
3, 2022 for acquisition of renowned Basmati
Rice Brand "KOHINOOR" from MCCORMICK
SWITZERLAND GMBH.

During the period under review, the Company had
passed ordinary resolution relating to approval of
Material Related Party Transactions to be entered
into with Wilmar Trading Pte. Ltd, being a related
party of the Company during the financial year
2022-2023 not exceeding % 1,000 crore or 10% of
the annual consolidated turnover as per the last
audited financial statements of the Company,
whichever is lower, or such other materiality
threshold, as may be prescribed from time to
time, provided however, that the said contract(s)/
arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) shall be carried
out at an arm’'s length basis and in the ordinary
course of business of the Company on May 17,
2022 through postal ballot.

During the period under review, the Company had
passed Special resolution relating to Approval
and ratification of special rights available to
the Promoters of the Company as stated in
Article Nos. 102, 115 and 156 of the Articles of
Association of the Company on May 17, 2022
through postal ballot , pursuant to observations
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India ("SEBI") letter dated October 14, 2021 on
Draft Red Herring Prospectus ("DRHP")in relation
to the Initial Public Offer (IPO) of the Company
and in accordance with the Second Amendment
and Termination Agreement dated July 30,
2021 to the Shareholders’ Agreement entered
into between Adani Commodities LLP, Adani
Enterprises Limited and Lence Pte. Ltd. (“the
Promoters”) and the Company.

During the period under review , the Company
had transferred 20,80,000, 0% Non — Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of 10/- each fully
paid up held in Gujarat Agro Infrastructure Mega
Food Park Private Limited (GAIMFPL) at par to Mr.
Ashish Doshi and Mr. Pranav Doshi, one of the

(E)

(F)

()

CORPORATE OVERVIEW
STATUTORY REPORTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 127

promoters of GAIMFPL on August 25, 2022.

During the period under review, the Company had
appointedSRBCE&Co, LLP,Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Firm Registration No: 324982E/E300003)
as one of the Joint Statutory Auditors for a period
of 5 years by passing Ordinary Resolution at the
24" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders
of the Company held on August 30, 2022.

During the period under review, the Company had
appointed Dharmesh Parikh & Co, LLP, Chartered
Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No: 112054W/
W100725) as Joint Statutory Auditors for a period
of 5 years in place of Shah Dhandharia & Co,
LLP who completed their first term of 5 years by
passing Ordinary Resolution at the 24™ Annual
General Meeting of the Shareholders of the
Company held on August 30, 2022.

During the period under review, the Company had
passed ordinary resolution relating to approval
of Material Related Party Transactions entered
into with Wilmar Trading Pte. Ltd, being a related
party of the Company for the financial year 2021-
2022 at the 24" Annual General Meeting of the
Shareholders of the Company held on August 30,
2022,

During the period under review, the Company had
passed ordinary resolution relating to approval of
Material Related Party Transactions to be entered
into with Wilmar Trading Pte. Ltd, being a related
party of the Company during the financial year
2023-2024 not exceeding ¥ 1,000 crores or 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover as per the
last audited financial statements of the Company,
whichever is lower, or such other materiality
threshold, as may be prescribed from time to
time, provided however, that the said contract(s)/
arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) shall be carried
out at an arm's length basis and in the ordinary
course of business of the Company at the 24
Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
the Company held on August 30, 2022,

During the period under review, the Company
has revised and enhanced borrowing powers of
Board of Directors of the Company under Section
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 upto an
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aggregate amount of ¥ 20,000 crore (Rupees
Twenty Thousand crore only) by passing Special
Resolution at the 24" Annual General Meeting of
the Shareholders of the Company held on August
30, 2022.

During the period under review, the Company
has revised and enhanced limits for creation of
charge over the assets of the Company under
Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 up
to value not exceeding the limits approved by
shareholders under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act
by passing Special Resolution at the 24" Annual
General Meeting of the Shareholders of the
Company held on August 30, 2022.

During the period under review, the Company has
approved revision in payment of remuneration to
Mr. Angshu Mallick (DIN: 02481358), Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)of the
Company with effect from April 01, 2022 to the

effect that his remuneration shall not exceed X 10
crore by passing Ordinary Resolution at the 24t
Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
the Company held on August 30, 2022,

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 03, 2023

Signature:

Name of practicing C S:
Nirali Patel, Partner
SPANJ &ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
ACS/FCS No. : F9092
CP No:10644

Peer Review Certi No. : 702/2020
UDIN Number : FOO9092E000243909

Note : This report is to be read with our letter of even
date which is annexed as Annexure | and forms an
integral part of this report.
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Annexure - |

The Members

ADANI WILMAR LIMITED

CIN : L15146GJ1999PLC0O35320
Regd. Off: Fortune House,

Near Navrangpura Railway Crossing,
Ahmedabad - 380009

Gujarat, India

Sir,

Sub : Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial recordsisthe responsibility of the management of the Company. Ourresponsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Ahmedabad Signature:

Date: May 03, 2023 Name of practicing C S: Nirali Patel, Partner

SPANJ &ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

ACS/FCS No. : F9092

CP No:10644

Peer Review Certi No. : 702/2020
UDIN Number : FO0O9092E000243909
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Annexure - D to the Directors’ Report
Information pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financial year 2022-23 and the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director,
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary in the financial year 2022-23:

Name of Directors/ KMP Ratio of remuneration to median | % increase in remuneration
remuneration of Employees in the financial year

Executive Director

Mr. Angshu Mallick (MD & CEQ) 66.28:1% 14.56

Non-Executive and Independent

Directors

Mr. Kuok Khoon Hong' - -
Mr. Pranav V. Adani’ - -
Dr. Malay Mahadevia’ - -
Mr. Madhu Ramachandra Rao? 2.66:1 1.23

Mr. Dorab Erach Mistry? 2.63:1 1.25
Mrs. Dipali Sheth? 2.66:1 1.23
Dr. Anup Pravin Shah? 2.63:1 1.25
Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Shrikant Kanhere 28.17:1* 23.51
Mr. Darshil Lakhia 4.66:1* 29.23

#This has been computed taking into account performance linked variable pay as per the approved policy of the Company.
This however does not include one-time special incentive on account of initial public offer (IPO) of the Company.

1. Mr. Kuok Khoon Hong, Mr. Pranav V. Adani and Dr. Malay Mahadevia are not drawing any remuneration from the
Company.

2. Reflects sitting fees and commission
ii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 21.85%
iii) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 2,600

iv) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel
in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration
and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration:

- Average increase in remuneration of employees excluding KMPs: 20.07%

Average increase in remuneration of employees other than KMP is in line with industry practice and within
normal range.

- Average increase in remuneration of KMPs: 22.43%

KMP salary increases are decided based on the Company's performance, individual performance, inflation,
prevailing industry trends and benchmarks.

v) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company:

The Company affirms that remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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Annexure - E to the Directors’ Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information as required under Section 134(3)(m) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out as

under:

A. Conservation of Energy:

a) The steps taken or impact on conservation of
energy:

- Process optimisation to improve operational
efficiency.

- Installed the control loops in heating circuits to
optimize the energy uses

- Installation of ice condensation and chilled
water vacuum system to reduce the steam and
water consumption.

- Variable frequency drives to conserve electrical
power.

- Installation of energy saving equipments /
devices.

- Energy audit and its implementation.

- Improved heat recovery through condensate
recycling.

- Saving of electricity through installation of LED
lighting.

b) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing
alternate sources of energy:

- The Company added 1.5 MW roof top solar
plants at Kadi and Hazira, Gujarat to reduce the
carbon food print.

- The Company is saving energy to upgrade the
process by means of automation in the various
sections.

c) The capital investment on energy conservation

equipment:

- Adopting new technology is an ongoing process
for the Company. During the year, electrical
power was reduced by replacing conventional
lights with LED lights and installation of energy
efficient equipments replacing the old ones.

- The Company has upgraded/ installed efficient

heat recovery system, steam traps, load designer
motors, VFDs and 02 analysers, 5-star electrical
appliances & motion sensors in process to
conserve energy.

Technology Absorption:

The efforts made towards technology absorption:

e The Company has installed the robotic arms
and carton erector in pouch filling line at Alwar
and Hazira to automate the secondary filling.
This has reduced dependency on labour.

e Safety and environment are paramount to
the Company. The Company has upgraded
its existing firefighting system at Mundra
Oleo plant by putting the foam based fire
suppression system which is more effective and
environment friendly.

e Atthe castor plantlocated at Pragapar, Mundra,
the Company installed the bulk container
loading system to load the castor meal. This
system consists of one Electrical Overhead
Travelling (EOT) crane which picks up the
container from truck and puts it in a platform
and this platform tilts it vertically and dumps
the material from the top. This has reduced the
manual efforts and has increased efficiency.

e During the financial year, the Company
commissioned  the Process Information
Management System (PIMS) in nine of its
plants. The PIMS dash board shows the real
time Overall Equipment Effectiveness (OEE)
and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) e.g.
per MT steam, water, power and chemical

consumption, control loops, etc.

* In continuation of its efforts to improve
operational efficiency, integrity, and reliability,
the Company has installed an Automated Tank
Gauging System (ATGS). The ATGS shows the
real-time inventories of crude oil, refined oil and
by products.

* As an organization, the Company is committed
to reduce the carbon footprint. To achieve it,
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this year it has commissioned one 1.3 MW solar
power plant at Hazira and another 0.2 mw solar
plant at Kadi.

« The Company has installed a zero liquid
discharge (ZLD) plant at Saoner. The recovered
water shall be used in the process and
consequently this will help in reducing the
overall water consumption.

Benefits derived like product improvement,
cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:

Improvementin process efficiency and substantial
direct cost saving.

in case of imported technology (imported during

the last three years reckoned from the beginning

of the financial year)

a) the details of technology imported: The
Company has not imported any technology
during the last 3 financial years.

b) theyear of import: Not Applicable

c) whether the technology been fully absorbed :
Not Applicable

d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof :
Not Applicable

Expenditure incurred and initiatives taken on

Research and Development (R&D):

* The Company has incurred expenditure of ¥
2.20 crore on R&D during the FY 22-23.

* Formore details on the initiatives taken on R&D,
please refer page no. 66 of this annual report.

(v) Initiatives pertaining to Occupational Health and

Safety and Environment Management System:
The Company has maintained reasonable
performance towards key environmental, health,
and safety goals for the benefit of its customers,
employees, and neighbours. Some of the
initiatives taken are as under:

(a) Occupational Health and Safety:

* Engaged the leadership team to drive the
change required to the Company's safety
culture through training safety walks,
developing site safety champions and
auditing sites to determine implementation
effectiveness.

* Focus on high risk work and broaden the

scope to align and reduce the major injury
circumstances that the Company faces
in its business. This includes establishing
engineering controls, contractor safety

management, emergency preparedness
and OHS audits.
e The Company has developed a risk

management culture where risk s
consistentlyidentified and controlled. Focus
for EHS is the Contractor Management
Standard, Incident Investigation and the
High-Risk Work standards.

* The Company has also introduced Enablon-
an online incident reporting system at all
sites and controls for high-risk areas like
fall from height and strengthening of traffic
safety management system by maintaining
prescribed high standards in respective
areas.

* EHS Modules: Rolled out EHS modules in
Enablon like Management of change and
Audit Module. It is also continued rolling
out Warehouse Self assessments and Risk
module.

* In conjunction with the technical team, the
Company has initiated the drive towards
implementation of the Process Safety
Management (PSM) system to all identified
hazardous sites having hydrogenation
process, solvent  extraction  process,
ammonia system set up and petroleum
product stored.

Learning Management system - The
Company is using SAP Litmos, an online
training platform for employees across all
the Company’s sites.

* Managing and implementing the 1SO
45001:2018 standards phase wise across
all the Company’s sites.

(b) Environment Management System:

* Increased the environmental profile by
trainings, developing environment friendly
initiatives like energy saving via solar, waste
reduction by process enhancement and
having environmental campaigns.

* Increased the participation rates in
environmental campaigns with a focus on



Wilmar Based Environment Standards and
Spill Prevention Containment and counter
measures. These standards help to reduce
the environment impact by its operational
activities.

* Meeting and monitoring Legal compliances.

* Developed group and regional strategies
to improve the quality of data and improve
environmental performance.

* Managing and implementation of ISO 1400:
2015 standard across all the Company's
sites.

* Incident Management System: Reporting
of all incidents and closure of the same.
Monitoring of all incident parameters via
EHS dashboard.

* Monthly Webinars — Continued delivery of
monthly webinars to build user capability.
Delivered region specific webinars to build
regional network capability.

* Green belt development initiatives across
all the Company’s sites.

* Implementation of waste management
system and promoting circular economy.
(Waste recycling and reusing).

(vi) Other Initiatives:

e Developing Green Belt using own effluent
treated water.

Scarcity of water is a concerning reality and the
environmental aspectin this regard has become
3 major priority that leads industries towards
adoption of various methods that can reduce
the generation of waste water or can reuse this.
The Company is committed towards minimising
the environmental impact of its operations
through adoption of sustainable practices and
continuous improvement in environmental
performance. To achieve this objective, the
Company has installed "Zero Liquid Discharge”
plants at Mundra, Hazira, Vidisha, Mangalore,
Krishnapatnam Unit-1, Krishnapatnam-2, Saoner
(Nagpur), Kadi & at Kakinada.

Besides, the Company has also been
considering the importance of technical
performance standardization by recording &
analysis of technical performances of plants.
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The Company has initiated the implementation
of Manufacturing Execution System (MES),
Process Information Management System
(PIMS) & PLC - SAP Integration to take a real
stride of recording & analysing real time data
to understand the technical performances &
achieve targeted operational excellence with
authentic data management.

At Bundi plant, to optimize the utilization of
the soya silos and project cost, the Company
converted two of them to store wheat and
mustard by adding the desired conveying
equipment. This has helped to meet the wheat
flour mill and oil mill raw material storage
demand.

(vii) Capacity Expansions:

The Company has commissioned a state-of-
the-art wheat milling plant at Bundi, Rajasthan.
It consists of 350 TPD refined flour mill to
produce maida, suji, rawa, and 3 150 TPD chakki/
stone mill to produce chakki atta to meet the
growing consumer and institutional demand
with matching packing lines. It also consists of

15,000 MT wheat storage facility.

The Company has expanded the oil refining
capacity at Mantralayam from 70 MT/day to 100
MT/day to meet the growing market demand.
It has also expanded the sunflower refining
capacity at Kakinada from 300 MT to 450 MT/
day.

At the Mundra oleochemical plant, the
Company has installed a Multipurpose Reactor
of 8 kIl capacity to produce various oleo
chemicals derivatives. It has also expanded the
hydrogenation capacity by adding a new 300
TPD continuous hydrogenation plant.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
The particulars relating to foreign exchange
earnings earned during the year and the foreign
exchange outgo during the year are as under:

(Zin crore)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Foreign exchange 5,204.92 3,402.29
earned
Foreign exchange 30,136.60 29,540.41

outgo
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Company’'s Philosophy on Corporate
Governance

Corporate Governance is about meeting our
strategic goals responsibly and transparently,
while being accountable to our stakeholders.
Adani Wilmar Limited (“the Company/ AWL") is
equipped with a robust framework of corporate
governance that considers the long-term
interest of every stakeholder as we operate
with a commitment to integrity, fairness, equity,
transparency, accountability and human values.
The framework lays down procedures and
mechanisms for enhancing leadership for smooth
administration and productive collaboration
among employees, value chain, community,
investors and the Government.

Courage, Trust and Commitment are the main
tenets of our Corporate Governance Philosophy:

» Courage: we shall embrace new ideas and
businesses.

* Trust: we shall believe in our employees and
other stakeholders.

* Commitment: we shall stand by our promises
and adhere to high ethical standard of business.

The Company believes that sustainable and
long-term growth of every stakeholder depends
upon the judicious and effective use of available
resources and consistent endeavour to achieve
excellence in business along with active
participation in the growth of society, building
of environmental balances and significant
contribution to economic growth.

The Companyisin compliance with the conditions
of corporate governance as required under
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”), as applicable.

Board of Directors (“Board”)
The Board, being the trustee of the Company
and responsible for the establishment of cultural,

ethical, sustainable and accountable growth of
the Company, is constituted with a high level
of integrated, knowledgeable and committed
professionals. The Board is at the helm of the
Company's Corporate Governance practice. It
provides strategic guidance and independent
views to the Company's senior management
while discharging its fiduciary responsibilities.
The Board also provides direction and exercises
appropriate control to ensure that the Company
is managed in a manner that fulfils stakeholder’s
aspirations and societal expectations.

Composition of the Board:

The Company has a balanced Board with optimum
combination of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors, including independent professionals,
who play a crucial role in the Board processes
and provide independent judgment on issues of
strategy and performance.

The Board currently comprises of 8 (Eight)
Directors out of which 1(one) is an Executive
Director, 3 (three) are Non-Executive, Non-
Independent Directors and remaining 4 (four)
are Independent Directors , including one woman
Director. The Independent Directors are Non-
Executive Directors, as defined under Regulation
16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations .

The maximum tenure of the Independent
Directors is in compliance with the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act”). All the Independent Directors
have confirmed that they meet the criteria as
mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and Section 149 of the Act.

The present strength of the Board reflects a
judicious mix of professionalism, competence
and sound knowledge which enables the Board to
provide effective leadership to the Company.

The Independent Directors have included their
names in the data bank of Independent Directors
maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act read
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with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment &
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,

Independent Directors and the Board of Directors
of the top 1,000 listed companies, effective 1
April, 2020 shall have at least one independent

None of the Directors on the Company's Board is i
woman director.

related to each other.
The composition of the Board as on 31t March,

In compliance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI )
2023 is as under:

Listing Regulations, none of the Directors is a
director of more than 10 (ten) public companies
or acts as an independent director in more than
7 (seven) listed companies. Further, none of the
Directors on the Company's Board is a member of
more than 10 (ten) committees and chairperson of
more than 5 (five) committees (committees being,
audit committee and stakeholders’ relationship
committee) across all the companies in which
he/she is a director. All the Directors have made
necessary disclosures regarding Committee
positions held by them in other companies.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board is in conformity
with the Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, which requires that for a company
with a chairman, who is a non-executive director,
at least one-third of the Board shall consist of

[ Executive Director
B Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors
[ Non-Executive Independent Directors

The details of the Board of Directors and the number of other directorship and committee positions held by
them as on 31t March, 2023 are as under:

Name, Designation & DIN of Director Age & Date of Category No. of other | Details of Committee?
Appointment Directorships (other than AWL)
held' in which Chairman/
(other than Member
AWL) Chairman | Member
Mr. Dorab Erach Mistry, Chairman 70 years Non-Executive - - -
DIN: 07245114 10.06.2021 | (Independent)
Mr. Kuok Khoon Hong, Vice-Chairman 74 years Non-Executive 1 - -
DIN: 00021957 27.12.1999
Mr. Angshu Mallick, Managing 62 years Executive 1 - -
Director & CEO 01.04.2021
DIN: 02481358
Mr. Pranav V. Adani, Director 44 years Non-Executive 7 - 1
DIN: 00008457 01.04.2008
Dr. Malay Mahadevia, Director 59 years Non-Executive 5 - -
DIN: 00064110 17.06.2019
Dr. Anup Pravin Shah, Director 47 years Non-Executive 5 3 2
DIN: 00293207 20.07.2021 | (Independent)
Mr. Madhu Ramachandra Rao, 72 years Non-Executive 3 4 2
Director 10.06.2021 | (Independent)
DIN: 02683483
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Name, Designation & DIN of Director | Age & Date of Category No. of other | Details of Committee?
Appointment Directorships (other than AWL)
held" in which Chairman/
(other than Member
AWL) Chairman | Member
Mrs. Dipali Hemant Sheth, Director 58 years Non-Executive 5 - 4
DIN: 07556685 10.06.2021 | (Independent)

Notes:

1. Excluding private limited companies, which are not the subsidiaries of public limited companies, Section 8
companies and alternate directorships

2. Includes only audit committee and stakeholders’ relationship committee

Board Age Profile and Board Age Experience is as under:

Board Age Profile (in years)

M 40-50 [ 51-65

Board Experience (in years)

[l 66-75

H 15-20

B >20

Profiles of the Directors are available on the website of the Company at https://www.adaniwilmar.com/about-

us/Board-of-Directors.

Details of names of other listed entities where Directors of the Company are Directors and the category of
Directorship, as on 315 March, 2023 are as under:

Name of Director

Name of other Listed entities in which
the concerned Director is a director

Category of Directorship

Mr. Dorab Erach Mistry

Non-Executive & Independent

Mr. Kuok Khoon Hong

Shree Renuka Sugars Limited

Non- Executive & Non- Independent

Mr. Angshu Mallick

Mr. Pranav Adani

Adani Enterprises Limited

Executive

Adani Total Gas Limited

Non- Executive & Non- Independent

Dr. Malay Mahadevia

Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone
Limited

Non- Executive & Non- Independent

Mr. Madhu Ramachandra Rao

Shree Renuka Sugars Limited

Non-Executive & Independent

Mrs. Dipali Hemant Sheth

DFM Foods Limited

Non-Executive & Independent

UTI Asset Management Company
Limited

Non-Executive & Independent

Latent View Analytics Limited

Non-Executive & Independent

Dr. Anup Pravin Shah




Board Meeting and Procedure

The internal guidelines for Board / Committee
meetings facilitate the decision making process at
the meetings of the Board/Committees in an informed
and efficient manner.

The Board Meetings are governed by a structured
agenda. All major agenda items are backed
by comprehensive background information to
enable the Board to take informed decisions. The
Company Secretary, in consultation with the Senior
Management, prepares the detailed agenda for the
meetings.

Agenda papers and Notes on Agenda are circulated
to the Directors, in advance, in the defined agenda
format. All material information is circulated along
with Agenda papers for facilitating meaningful
and focused discussions at the meeting. Where it
is not practicable to attach any document to the
Agenda, the same is tabled before the meeting with
specific reference to this effect in the Agenda. In
special and exceptional circumstances, additional or
supplementary item(s) on the Agenda are permitted.
In order to transact some urgent business, which
may come up after circulation of agenda papers,
the same is placed before the Board by way of Table
Agenda or Chairman’s Agenda. Frequent and detailed
deliberations on the agenda provides the strategic
roadmap for the future growth of the Company.

A minimum of 4 (four) pre-scheduled Board meetings
are held every year. Apart from the above, additional
Board meetings are convened by giving appropriate
notice to address the specific needs of the Company.
In case of business exigencies or urgency of matters,
resolutions are also passed by way of circulation.

Detailed presentations are made at the Board /
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Committee meetings covering finance and operations
of the Company, global business environment, all
business areas of the Company including business
opportunities, business strategy and the risk
management practices before taking on record the
quarterly / half yearly / annual financial results of the
Company.

The required information as enumerated in Part
A of Schedule Il to the SEBI Listing Regulations is
made available to the Board for discussions and
consideration at every Board Meeting. The Board
periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws
applicable to the Company as required under
Regulation 17(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The important decisions taken at the Board /
Committee meetings are communicated to the
departmentsconcerned, promptly. Action taken report
on the decisions taken at the meeting(s) is placed at
the immediately succeeding meeting of the Board /
Committee for noting by the Board/Committee.

The option to participate in the meeting through
video conferencing is made available to the Directors,
in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the rules made thereunder.

During theyearunder review, the Board met fourtimes
i.e. on 2" May, 2022, 39 August, 2022, 3 November,
2022 and 8™ February, 2023.The Board meets at
least once in every quarter to review the Company'’s
operations and financial performance. The maximum
time gap between any two meetings is not more than
120 days. The necessary quorum was present in all
the meetings.

The details of attendance of Directors at the Board

Meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting,
held on 30% August, 2022 are as under:

Name of Directors No. of Meetings Attendance at % of
Held during Attended last AGM Attendance
the tenure

Mr. Dorab Erach Mistry 4 4 Yes 100

Mr. Kuok Khoon Hong 4 3 No 75

Mr. Pranav Vinod Adani 4 4 Yes 100

Mr. Angshu Mallick 4 4 Yes 100

Dr. Malay Mahadevia 4 4 Yes 100

Mr. Madhu Ramachandra Rao 4 4 Yes 100

Dr. Anup Pravin Shah 4 4 Yes 100

Mrs. Dipali Hemant Sheth 4 4 Yes 100




ADANI WILMAR LIMITED
138 ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

During the vyear, the Board accepted all the
recommendations of the Committees of the Board,
which were statutory in nature and required to be
recommended by the Committee and approved by the
Board . Hence, the Company is in compliance with the
conditions of clause 10(j) of schedule V of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

During the year under review, the Board adopted
various policies as per the provisions of the Act and
SEBI Listing Regulations and approved the changes
in the Policy for entering into transaction(s) with its
related parties pursuant to Regulation 23 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, as amended by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment)
Regulations, 2021, effective 1° April, 2022.

Skills / expertise competencies of the Board of
Directors

The following is the list of core skills / competencies
identified by the Board as required in the context
of the Company’'s business and the said skills are
available within the Board Members:

Business
Leadership

Leadership experience including
in areas of business development,
strategic planning, succession
planning, driving change and
long-term growth and guiding the
Company and its senior management
towards its vision and values.
Knowledge and skills in accounting,
finance, treasury management, tax
and financial management of large
corporations with an understanding
of capital allocation, funding and
financial reporting processes.
Risk Ability to understand and assess
Management |the key risks to the organization,
legal compliances and ensure that
appropriate policies and procedures
are in place to effectively manage
risks.
Global Global mindset and staying updated
Experience on global market opportunities,
competition experience in driving
business  success around the
world with an understanding of
diverse  business  environments,
economic conditions and regulatory
frameworks.

Financial
Expertise

Mergers &
Acquisitions

Ability to assess 'build or buy' &
timing of decisions, analyze the fit of
a target with the company's strategy
and evaluate operational integration

plans.
Corporate Experience in implementing
Governance & | good corporate governance
ESG practices, reviewing compliance

and governance practices for a
sustainable growth of the company
and protecting stakeholder’s
interest.

Experience  or  knowledge  of
emerging areas of technology such
as digital, artificial intelligence, cyber
security, data centre, data security
etc.

Technology &
Innovations

In the table below, the specific areas of focus or
expertise of individual director have been highlighted.

Mr. Dorab Mistry Mr. Kuok Khoon Hong

* Business Leadership * Business Leadership
» Financial Expertise * Financial Expertise
* Risk Management * Risk Management

* Global Experience * Global Experience

* Mergers & Acquisitions |+ Corporate Governance &
* Technology & Innovation ESG

Mergers & Acquisitions
Technology & Innovation

Mr. Angshu Mallick Mr. Pranav V. Adani

* Business Leadership * Business Leadership

» Financial Expertise * Financial Expertise

* Risk Management * Risk Management

* Global Experience * Global Experience

+ Corporate Governance & ¢ Corporate Governance &
ESG ESG

* Mergers & Acquisitions * Mergers & Acquisitions
» Technology & Innovation

Dr. Malay Mahadevia

» Business Leadership

Dr. Anup P. Shah

e Business Leadership

* Global Experience * Financial Expertise
* Corporate Governance ¢ Risk Management
& ESG e Corporate Governance
* Mergers & Acquisitions & ESG
* Technology & * Mergers & Acquisitions

Innovation




Mr. Madhu Ramachandra  Ms. Dipali H. Sheth
Rao

* Business Leadership » Financial Expertise

* Financial Expertise * Risk Management

* Risk Management * Global Experience

* Corporate Governance & |« Corporate Governance &
ESG ESG

* Global Experience * Technology & Innovation

* Mergers & Acquisitions

Note - Each Director may possess varied combinations
of skills/ expertise within the described set of
parameters and it is not necessary that all Directors
possess all skills/ expertise listed therein.

Directors’ selection, appointment, induction
and familiarisation

As per the delegation of authority given by the Board
to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) of the Company, consisting of a majority of
Independent Directors, the NRC screens and selects
suitable candidates, based on the defined criteria
and makes recommendations to the Board on the
induction of new Directors. The Board then appoints
the Director, subject to the shareholders’ approval.

All the new Directors are taken through a detailed
induction and familiarization program when they join
the Board. The induction program is an exhaustive
one that covers the history and culture of Adani and
Wilmar Group, background of the Company and its
growth, various milestonesin the Company’'s existence
since its incorporation, the present structure and an
overview of the businesses and functions.

The details of the familiarization programme are also
available on the website of the Company https://www.
adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/
Corporate%20Governance/ID%20Familiarization%20
Programme.

Meeting of Independent Directors

The Independent Directors met on 21 March,
2023, without the attendance of Non- Independent
Directors and members of the management. The
Independent Directors reviewed the performance
of Non-Independent Directors, the Board and its
committees , the performance of the Chairman
of the Company, taking into account the views of
Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors and
assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow
of information between the Management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively
and reasonably perform its duties.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW
STATUTORY REPORTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 139

Confirmation as regards
Independent Directors

In the opinion of the Board, all the existing
Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified
in the SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent
of the management.

independence of

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Company is directed
towards rewarding performance, based on review
of achievements on a periodic basis. The Company
endeavors to attract, retain, develop and motivate
high-caliber executives and to incentivize them to
develop and implement the Company's Strategy,
thereby enhancing the business value and maintain
a high performance workforce. The policy ensures
that the level and composition of remuneration of the
Directors and management is optimum.

i) Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

The Members at the Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on 371t July, 2021 approved the
payment of remuneration by way of commission
to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company,
of a sum not exceeding 1% per annum of the net
profits of the Company, calculated in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for a period of 5
years commencing from 1 April, 2021. Based
on this, the remuneration by way of commission
to the non-executive directors is decided by
the Board from time to time. In addition to the
commission, the Non-Executive and Independent
Directors are paid sitting fees of ¥ 50,000 for
attending Board and Audit Committee meetings
and % 25,000 for attending other Committee
meetings along with actual reimbursement of
expenses, incurred for attending each meeting of
the Board and its Committees.

The Company has also taken a Directors’ &
Officers’ Liability Insurance Policy.

ii) Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent
Directors
The performance evaluation criteria for
Independent Directors are determined by the NRC.
An indicative list of factors that may be evaluated
include participation and contributions by a
director, commitment, effective deployment of
knowledge and expertise, effective management
of relationship with stakeholders, integrity and
maintenance of confidentiality and independence
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of behaviour and judgement. of salary, perquisites and allowances (fixed
component), incentive (variable components)
to the Executive Director(s) is approved by the
Board within the limits prescribed under the Act
and is also approved by the shareholders in the
Remuneration to Executive Director(s) General Meeting.

The remuneration of the Executive Director(s)
is recommended by the NRC to the Board based
on criteria such as industry benchmarks, the

Details of the methodology adopted for Board
evaluation have been provided at page no. 109 of
the Directors’ Report.

The Executive Director(s) is not being paid sitting
fees for attending meetings of the Board and its

Company's performance vis-a-vis the industry, Committees.
responsibilities shouldered, performance/  petails of Remuneration
track record and macro-economic review on i) Non-Executive and Independent Directors
remuneration packages of heads of other The details of sitting fees and commission paid/
organisations. On the recommendation of the payable to Non-Executive and Independent
NRC, the remuneration paid/payable by way Directors during the FY 2022-23 are as under:

(Z in Lakhs)
Name Commission Sitting Fees Total
Mr. Dorab Erach Mistry 15.00 5.25 20.25
Mr. Madhu Ramachandra Rao 15.00 5.50 20.50
Mrs. Dipali Hemant Sheth 15.00 5.50 20.50
Dr. Anup Pravin Shah 15.00 5.25 20.25
During the period under review, no remuneration or transactions by the Company with any of the
was paid to Mr. Kuok Khoon Hong, Mr. Pranav V. Non-Executive and Independent Directors of the
Adani and Dr. Malay Mahadevia as Non-Executive Company. The Company has not granted stock
Directors of the Company. They are also not being options to the Non-Executive Directors.

paid any sitting fees for attending meetings of

) ii) Executive Directors
the Board of Directors.

Details of remuneration paid/payable to Mr,

Otherthansitting feesand commission paid/payable Angshu Mallick, Managing Director and Chief
to the above Non-Executive and Independent Executive Officer during the FY 2022-23 is as
Directors, there were no pecuniary relationships under:

(Fin crore)
Name Salary Perquisites, Allowances & other Benefits Total*
Mr. Angshu Mallick 1.32 6.46" 7.78*

M Includes one-time special incentive on account of initial public offering (IPO) of the Company.

* Remuneration payable to Mr. Angshu Mallick as Managing Director of the Company not to exceed ¥10.00
crore p.a. as approved by the shareholders of the Company.

Details of shares of the Company held by not have any Employees’ Stock Option Scheme
Directors as on 315t March, 2023 are as under: and there is no separate provision for payment of
Name No. of shares held severance fees.

Mr. Angshu Mallick 2,468 Note on appointment/re-appointment of
Mrs. Dipali Hemant Sheth 2,340 Directors

Mr. Kuok Khoon Hong (DIN: 00021957), Director
and Dr. Malay Mahadevia (DIN:00064110),
Director are liable to retire by rotation at the

Except the above, none of the other Directors of
the Company hold equity shares of the Company
in their individual capacity. The Company does



ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

Brief resume(s) of Directors proposed to be re-
appointed and other information required to be
disclosed under this section is provided in the
Notice convening the ensuing AGM.

Change of Chairman:

The Board of Directors of the Company at its
meeting held on 3 November, 2022 appointed
Mr. Dorab Mistry- Non Executive and Independent
Director as Chairman of the Company with effect
from 4" November, 2022. Mr. Kuok Khoon Hong,
the existing Chairman, was then designated as
Non- Executive Vice Chairman of the Company
with effect from 4™ November, 2022.

Code of Conduct

The Board has laid down a Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics (the “Code”) for all the
Board Members and Senior Management of the
Company. The Code is available on the website
of the Company https://www.adaniwilmar.com/.
All the Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel have affirmed compliance with the
Code. A declaration signed by the Managing
Director & CEO to this effect, is attached to this
report.

The Board has also adopted a separate code of
conduct with respect to duties of Independent
Directors as per the provisions of the Act.

Committees of the Board

The Board Committees play a vital role in ensuring
sound Corporate Governance practices. The
Committees are constituted to handle specific
activities and ensure speedy resolution of the

A)
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diverse matters. The Board Committees are set up
under the formal approval of the Board to carry
out clearly defined roles which are considered
to be performed by members of the Board, as a
part of good governance practice. The Board
supervises the execution of its responsibilities by
the committees and is responsible for their action.
The minutes of the meetings of all the committees
are placed before the Board for review.

As on 31* March, 2023, the Board has constituted
the following Committees:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee acts as a link between the
Management, the Statutory Auditors, the Internal
Auditors and the Board of Directors to oversee
the quality and integrity of accounting, auditing
and financial reporting process including review
of the internal audit reports and action taken
reports. A detailed charter of the Audit Committee
is available on the website of the Company
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/Investors/board-
and-committee-charters.

The Audit Committee comprises, of majority of
Independent Directors to facilitate independent
and transparent review of financial reporting
process and internal control mechanism with an
objective to further strengthen the confidence of
all the stakeholders.

Terms of reference:

The powers, role and terms of reference of
the Audit Committee covers the areas as
contemplated under SEBI Listing Regulations
and Section 177 of the Act. The brief terms of
reference of Audit Committee, as approved by the
Board, are as under:

SN Terms of Reference Frequency

1. ' To oversee the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial Q
information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

2. |To recommend for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of P

the Company.

3. | To review, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

A. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be A
included in the Board's report in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act,

2013.
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SN Terms of Reference Frequency
B. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. Q
C. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by Q

the management.
D. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. Q
E. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. Q
F. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and Q
G. Modified/qualified opinion(s) in the draft audit report A

4, | Toreview, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to Q
the board for approval.

5. To examine the financial statements and auditor's report thereon. Q
To monitor the end use of the funds raised through public offers and related matters. Q

7. | To review, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised Q
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus/
notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency, monitoring the utilisation of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the
Board to take up steps in this matter.

8. | To review and monitor the Auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness Q
of the audit process.

S. To approve existing or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with Q
related parties.

10. To scrutinise inter-corporate loans and investments. Q

11. | To initiate and approve valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it Q
is necessary.

12. | To evaluate internal financial controls and risk management systems. Q

13.| To review, with the management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors, Q
adequacy of the internal control systems.

14, To review the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the Q
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit,

15.| To discuss with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on. Q

16.| To review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters Q
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

17. | To discuss with statutory auditors, internal auditors and cost auditors before the audit P
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to
ascertain any area of concern.

18. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in the payment to the depositors, Q
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and
creditors.

19. | To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism. Q

20./ To approve appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, P

experience and background, etc. of the candidate.
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SN Terms of Reference Frequency

21.| To carry out any other function as may be required / mandated by the Board from time P
to time and/ or mandated as per the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Act,
the listing agreements to be entered into between the Company and the respective stock
exchanges on which the equity shares of the Company are proposed to be listed and/or
any other applicable laws.

22./To review the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding Q
company in the subsidiary exceeding 3100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary,
whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments.

23.|To consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving P
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the Company and its shareholders.

24, To review the Management Discussion and Analysis of the financial condition and results A
of operations.

25./To review the statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the P
management.

26./ To review the management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the P
statutory auditors.

27./ To review the internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.

28. To approve the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor.

29. To review the statement of deviations:
A) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Q

regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended.

B) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer A

document / prospectus / notice in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended

Frequency - A Annually Q Quarterly P Periodically

Meeting, Attendance and Composition of the Audit Committee
During the year under review, Audit Committee met four times i.e on 2" May, 2022, 2" August, 2022, 2™
November, 2022 and 7" February, 2023. The composition of Audit Committee and details of attendance of
the members at the meetings, during the FY 2022-23 are given below:

Name and designation Category No. of Meetings % of
Held during the tenure | Attended | attendance
Dr. Anup P. Shah, Non-Executive & 4 4 100%
Chairman of the Committee Independent
Mr. Madhu Ramachandra Rao, | Non-Executive & 4 4 100%
Member Independent
Mr. Dorab Erach Mistry, Non-Executive & 4 4 100%
Member Independent
Mrs. Dipali Hemant Sheth, Non-Executive & 4 4 100%
Member Independent
Mr. Angshu Mallick, Member Executive Director 4 3 75%
Mr. Pranav V. Adani, Member | Non-Executive & Non- 4 100%

Independent
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All members of the Audit Committee have
accounting and/or  financial ~management

knowledge and expertise / exposure. The Audit
Committee meetings are attended by the Chief
Financial Officer, representatives of Statutory
Auditors, Internal Auditor and Finance & Accounts
department.

Mr. Darshil Lakhia, Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer acts as the Secretary of the
Audit Committee.

The Board of Directors review the minutes of the
Audit Committee Meetings, at its subsequent
meetings.

B)

Dr. Anup P. Shah, Chairman of the Audit
Committee was present at the AGM held on 30t
August, 2022 to answer shareholders’ queries.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
The NRC comprises of six members, of which
majority are Independent Directors.

A detailed charter of the NRC is available on the
website of the Company https://www.adaniwilmar.
com/Investors/board-and-committee-charters.

Terms of reference

The powers, role and terms of reference of NRC
covers the areas as contemplated under the SEBI
Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Act.

The brief terms of reference of NRC, as approved by the Board, are as under:

SN | Terms of Reference

Frequency

1. |To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,

positive attributes and A

independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors.

To devise a policy on diversity of Board of Directors.

To Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed
in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to
the Board their appointment and removal and shall specify the manner for effective
evaluation of the performance of the Board, its committees and individual directors to
be carried out either by the Board, by the NRC or by an independent external agency and
review its implementation and compliance. The Company shall disclose the remuneration

policy and the evaluation criteria in its board report

5. ' To extend or continue the terms of appointment of the independent directors, on the A
basis of the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors.

6. To recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Senior A

Management.

7. ' To carry out any other function as may be required/mandated by the Board from time to P
time and/or mandated as per the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Act, the
listing agreements to be entered into between the Company and the respective stock
exchanges on which the equity shares of the Company are proposed to be listed and/or

any other applicable laws.

8. | To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance P

of its duties.

Frequency- A Annually P Periodically
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Meeting, Attendance and Composition of NRC
During the year under review, the NRC met three times on 2" May, 2022, 2" August, 2022 and 2" November,
2022,

The composition of the NRC and details of attendance of the members at the meetings held during the FY
2022-23 are given below:

Name and designation Category No. of Meetings % of
Held during the tenure | Attended | attendance

Mrs. Dipali Sheth, Chairperson | Non-Executive & 3 3 100%

of the Committee Independent

Mr. Dorab Erach Mistry, Non-Executive & 3 2 66.67%

Member Independent

Mr. Madhu Ramachandra Rao, | Non-Executive & 3 3 100%

Member Independent Director

Dr. Anup Pravin Shah, Member | Non-Executive & 3 3 100%
Independent

Mr. Kuok Khoon Hong, Non-Executive & Non 3 2 66.67%

Member -Independent

Mr. Pranav V. Adani, Member | Non-Executive & Non 3 3 100%
-Independent

Mr. Darshil Lakhia, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer acts as the Secretary of the NRC.
The minutes of the NRC Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (SRC)
The SRC comprises of 4 (four) members. A detailed charter of the SRC is available on the website of the
Company https://www.adaniwilmar.com/Investors/board-and-committee-charters.

Terms of reference

The powers, role and terms of reference of the SRC covers the areas as contemplated under the SEBI Listing
Regulations and Section 178 of the Act. The brief terms of reference of SRC, as approved by the Board, are
as under:

SN Terms of Reference Frequency

1. | To resolve the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints Q
related to transfer/ transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt
of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. and
assisting with quarterly reporting of such complaints.

To review the measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. A
To review adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of A
various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

4, | To review various measures and initiatives taken for reducing the quantum of unclaimed Q
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/ annual reports/ statutory
notices by the shareholders of the Company.

5. | To carry out such other functions as may be specified by the Board from time to time or p
specified/provided under the Act or the SEBI Listing Regulations, each as amended or by
any other regulatory authority.

Frequency- A Annually Q Quarterly P Periodically
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Meeting, Attendance and Composition of SRC :
During the year under review, the SRC met two times i.e. on 2" May, 2022 and 7" February, 2023.

The composition of SRC and details of attendance of the Members at the meetings held during the FY 2022-
23, are given below:

Name and designation Category No. of Meetings % of
Held during the tenure = Attended @ 3attendance

Mr. Pranav V. Adani, Chairman | Non-Executive & Non- 2 2 100

of the Committee Independent

Mr. Kuok Khoon Hong, Non-Executive & Non- 2 1 50

Member Independent

Mr. Angshu Mallick, Member Executive Director 2 2 100

Dr. Anup Pravin Shah, Member | Non-Executive & 2 2 100
Independent

The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company as per requirements of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Mr. Darshil Lakhia, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer acts as the Secretary of the SRC.
The minutes of the SRC are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Redressal of Investor Grievances

The Company and its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent address all complaints, suggestions and grievances
expeditiously and replies are sent usually within 7-10 days except in case of dispute over facts or other
legal impediments and procedural issues. The Company endeavors to implement suggestions as and when
received from the investors.

Status Report of investor complaints during the FY 2022-23

Pending at the beginning of the year NIL
Received during the year 17
Disposed during the year 17
Pending at the end of the year NIL

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR") Committee

The CSR Committee comprises of four members, with equal representation of independent directors and
non-independent directors. A detailed charter of the CSR Committee is available on the website of the
Company https://www.adaniwilmar.com/Investors/board-and-committee-charters.

Terms of reference:

The powers, role and terms of reference of the CSR Committee covers the areas as contemplated under
Section 135 of the Act. The brief terms of reference of CSR Committee, as approved by the Board, are as
under:

SN Terms of Reference Frequency

1. | To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility ("“CSR") A
Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in
Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and review thereof,

2. ' To recommend to the Board the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR A
activities.
3, | To institute a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of CSR projects/ H

activities undertaken by the Company.
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SN | Terms of Reference Frequency

4. | Tomonitor the CSR policy from time to time and issue necessary directions as required for A
proper implementation and timely completion of CSR programmes.

5. | To identify CSR policy partners and CSR policy programmes.
To identify and appoint CSR team of the Company including CSR Manager, wherever
required.

7. | To perform such other duties and functions as the Board may require the CSR committee P
to undertake to promote CSR activities of the Company or as may be required under the
applicable laws.

Frequency- A Annually H Half Yearly P Periodically

Meeting, Composition and Attendance of the CSR Committee:
During the year under review, the CSR Committee met three times i.e. on 2™ May, 2022, 2" November, 2022
and 7" February, 2023,

The composition of CSR Committee and details of the attendance of the Members at the meetings held
during the FY 2022-23 are given below:

Name and designation Category No. of Meetings % of
Held during the tenure Attended | 3attendance

Mrs. Dipali Hemant Sheth, Non-Executive & 3 3 100%

Chairperson of the Committee |Independent

Mr. Madhu Ramachandra Rao | Non-Executive & 3 3 100%

Member Independent

Dr. Malay Mahadevia Non-Executive & Non 3 3 100%

Member Independent

Mr. Angshu Mallick Executive 3 2 66.67%

Member

Mr. Darshil Lakhia, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer acts as the Secretary of the CSR Committee.
The minutes of the CSR Meetings are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Risk Management Committee (RMC):
The RMC comprises of four members. A detailed charter of the RMC is available on the website of the
Company https://www.adaniwilmar.com/Investors/board-and-committee-charters.

Terms of reference
The powers, role and terms of reference of RMC covers the areas as contemplated under Regulation 21 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations. The brief terms of reference of RMC, as approved by the Board, are as under:

SN Terms of Reference Frequency

1. | To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include: A

A. A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by
the listed entity, in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability
(particularly, ESG related risks), information technology, cyber security risks or any
other risk as may be determined by the Committee.

B. Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of
identified risks.

C. Business continuity plan.
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SN | Terms of Reference Frequency

2. ' To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor Q
and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company

3. |To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including Q
evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems.

4. | To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by P
considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity.

5.  To keep the Board of Directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, P
recommendations and actions to be taken.

6. | To appoint, remove and fix terms of reference of the Chief Risk Officer, if any and review P

the same.

Frequency- A Annually Q Quarterly

Meeting, Attendance and Composition of the RMC :

P Periodically

During the year under review, the RMC met two times i.e. on 2" May, 2022 and 18" October, 2022.

The composition of RMC and details of attendance of the Members at the meetings held during the FY

2022-23, are given below:

Name and designation Category No. of Meetings % of
Held during the tenure = Attended  3ttendance

Mr. Kuok Khoon Hong, Non-Executive & Non- 2 2 100

Chairman of the Committee Independent

Mr. Pranav V. Adani, Member | Non-Executive & Non- 2 2 100
Independent

Mr. Angshu Mallick, Member Executive 2 100

Mr. Dorab Erach Mistry, Non-Executive & 2 100

Member Independent

The Company has a risk management framework to identify, monitor and minimize mitigate risks.

Mr. Darshil Lakhia, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer acts as the Secretary of the RMC.

The minutes of the RMC are reviewed by the Board at its subsequent meetings.

Subsidiary Companies

The Company does not have any material
subsidiary, and hence, the Company is not
required to nominate an Independent Director
of the Company on the Board of any subsidiary.
The subsidiaries of the Company function with
an adequately empowered board of directors and
sufficient resources.

For more effective governance, the Company
monitors the performance of its subsidiary
companies, inter alia, by the following means:

1. Financial statements, in particular
investments made by subsidiary companies,
are reviewed quarterly by the Company's
Audit Committee.

2. Minutes of subsidiary companies are placed
before the Board of the Company regularly.

3. A statement, wherever applicable, of all
significant transactions and arrangements
entered into by the Company's subsidiaries is
presented to the Board at its meetings.

4, Presentations are made to the Company’'s
Board on business performance of major
subsidiaries of the Company by the Senior
Management.

The Companyhasapolicy fordetermining ‘material
subsidiaries’ which is uploaded on the website of
the Company https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/
media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20
Governance/Material%20Subsidiaries%20Policy.


https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Material%20Subsidiaries%20Policy

5. Whistle Blower Policy
The Company has adopted a whistle blower
policy and has established the necessary vigil
mechanism for employees and directors to
report any concerns about unethical or improper
activity. No person has been denied access to the
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isuploaded onthe website of the Company https://
www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Vigil%20
Mechanism%20Policy. The Audit Committee
monitors and reviews the investigations of the
whistle blower complaints.

Chairman of the Audit Committee. The said policy

6. General Body Meetings
a) Annual General Meetings:
The date, time and location of the Annual General Meetings held during the preceding 3 years and special
resolutions passed thereat are as follows:
Financial Date Location of Meeting Time No. of No. of special
Year special resolutions passed
resolutions
passed
2021-22 | 30-08-2022 Through Video Conferencing/ 11.00 2 1. Approval of
Other Audio-Visual Means a.m. enhancement of
borrowing limits of
the Company under
Section 180(1)(c) of
the Companies Act,
2013
2. Approval of limits
for security creation
on the assets of
the Company under
Section 180(1)(a) of
the Companies Act,
2013
2020-21 | 10-07-2021 Fortune House, Nr. Navrangpura | 10.00 - -
Railway Crossing, Ahmedabad - a.m.
380 009, Gujarat, India
2019-20 | 25-06-2020 | Fortune House, Nr. Navrangpura | 10.00 - -
Railway Crossing, Ahmedabad — a.m.
380 009, Gujarat, India
All the resolutions proposed by the Directors to shareholders in last three years were approved by the
shareholders with adequate majority.
Transcript of the last AGM is available on the website of the Company https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/
media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Notices/Transcript%200f%20AGM-%202022
Voting results of the last AGM are available on the website of the Company https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/
media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Notices/AGM%20Results%202022
b) Whether special resolutions were put through postal ballot last year, details of voting pattern:

The following business was transacted by way of a special resolution passed by means of postal ballot on
171 May, 2022:-

To approve and ratify Article Nos. 102, 115 and 156 of the Articles of Association of the Company.
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Result of voting through Postal Ballot by remote e-voting was as follows:

Particulars No. of Postal No. of % of Total % of total
Ballot Forms shares Paid Up votes polled
/E voting Equity
Capital
3) Voting exercised through E-Voting 1234 | 1161567602 89.37% 100.00%
b) E-Voting ballot with assent (favour) for the 1163 | 1161562677 89.37% 100.00%
Resolution
c) E-Voting ballot dissent (against) for the 67 4606 0.00% 0.00%
Resolution
d) E-Voting ballot Abstained from voting 4 319 0.00%
e) valid votes exercised (b+c) 1230 1161567283 89.37% 100.00%
Total Ballot with ASSENT in Electronic mode 1163 | 1161562677 89.37% 100.00%
Total Ballot with DISSENT in Electronic mode 67 4606 0.00% 0.00%

Whether any resolutions are proposed to be conducted through postal ballot:
There is no immediate proposal for passing any resolution through postal ballot. None of the businesses
proposed to be transacted at the ensuing AGM of the Company require the passing of a resolution through

postal ballot.

Procedure for postal ballot:

The prescribed procedure for postal ballot as per the provisions contained in this behalf in the Act read with
rules made there under as amended from time to time shall be complied with, whenever necessary.

Means of Communication:

Financial Results:

The quarterly/half-yearly and annual results
of the Company are normally published in the
Indian Express (English) and Financial Express
(a regional daily published from Gujarat). These
results are also uploaded on the website of the
Company.

The Company's financial results, press release,
official news and presentations to investors
are displayed on the Company's web site www.
adaniwilmar.com.

Intimation to Stock Exchanges:

The Company also regularly intimates to the
Stock Exchanges all price sensitive and other
information which are material and relevant to
the investors.

Earnings Calls and Presentations to Analysts:
Atthe end of each quarter,the Company organizes
meetings / conference calls with analysts and
investors and the presentations made to analysts
and transcripts of earnings calls are uploaded on
the website of the Company thereafter.

a)

b)

c)

The Company has maintained consistent
communication with investors at various forums
organized by investment bankers.

General Shareholders Information

Company Registration details:

The Company is registered in the State of Gujarat,
India. The Corporate Identification Number
allotted to the Company by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs is L15146GJ1999PLC0O35320.

Annual General Meeting (AGM):

Day and Time Venue

Date

200 July, 12.00 | The Companyisconducting

2023 P.M. the AGM through VC /
(IST) | OAVM. Pursuant to the

MCA Circular, there is no
requirement to have a
venue for the AGM.

Registered Office:
Fortune House, Near Navrangpura Railway
Crossing, Ahmedabad — 380009, Gujarat, India.
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Financial Calendar for 2023-24: (tentative f) Dividend Distribution Policy:
schedule, subject to change) The Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company
The financial year is from 1% April to 31% March is available onthe Wet@te of the Compény https://
: ) ) https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/
and the financial results will be declared as per }
) Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/
the following schedule. o o .
Dividend%20Distribution%20Policy.
Particulars Tentative Schedule o
Quarter ending on 15t week of August, 2023 g) Listing on Stock Exchanges:
30% June, 2023 The Company’s shares are listed on the following
Quarter and half 1t week of November, stock exchanges:
year ending on 307 2023 Name of Stock | Address Scrip
September(,j?OZB 4 Cof | Exchange Code
;ffgere”b'”gzogﬂ Zozvgee or Jenuary. BSE Limited Floor 25, P. J Towers, 543458
A elcgm eltr TEy [ < of Mav 2024 (BSE) Dalal Street, Mumbai
nnual Result of F.Y. week of May, - 400001
2023-24 :
National Stock | Exchange Plaza,| AWL
Book closure date: Exchange of Bandra Kurla
The Register of Members and Share Transfer India Limited Complex, Bandra (E),
Books of the Company will be closed from (NSE) Mumbai - 400051
Thursday, 13™ July, 2023 to Thursday, 20 July,
2023 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of 25" o
) Annual listing fees for the year 2023-24 have
Annual General Meeting. )
been paid by the Company to BSE and NSE.
Market Price Data:
Month BSE NSE
High }) Low () Volume High }) Low () Volume
(No. of shares) (No. of shares)
April, 2022 878.35 520.65 4,21,97,227 878.00 521.00| 36,76,91,000
May, 2022 782.90 542.70 1,21,39,770 783.00 540.20 7,00,36,000
June, 2022 694.00 534.00 40,83,295 690.05 532.65 3,21,31,000
July, 2022 672.00 553.35 21,24,980 667.00 558.10 2,37,31,000
August, 2022 761.55 652.75 71,88,271 761.60 652.00 6,54,42,000
September, 2022 841.90 665.10 1,350,374 841.70 665.00 10,59,32,000
October, 2022 765.00 630.55 59,51,840 764.95 630.20 6,12,02,000
November, 2022 730.00 616.00 49,31,271 730.00 615.05 4,70,54,000
December, 2022 668.00 492.30 62,33,624 668.40 492.55 6,15,76,000
January, 2023 622.70 466.90 39,17,916 623.30 466.45 3,30,90,000
February, 2023 488.95 327.00 1,72,74,332 488.70 327.25 11,75,04,000
March,2023 484.20 356.25 1,03,24,369 484.45 357.40 9,49,49,000

[Source: This information is compiled from the data available from the websites of BSE and NSE].
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i) Performance in comparison AWL Share Price and BSE Sensex Movement

)

k)

AWL Share Price and BSE Sensex Movement
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Note: AWL share price and BSE Sensex values on 31t March 2022 have been baselined to 100.

Registrar & Transfer Agent:

M/s. Link Intime India Private Ltd. is appointed
as Registrar and Transfer (R&T) Agent of the
Company for both Physical and Demat Shares.
The registered office address of the RET Agent is
given below:

C-101, 247 Park, L B S Marg,

Vikhroli West, Mumbai-400083

Tel: +91-22-4918 6270 | Fax: +91-22-4918 6060
E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Website: https://linkintime.co.in/

The Shareholders are requested to correspond
directly with the R&T Agent for transfer/
transmission of shares, change of address, queries
pertaining to their shares, dividend etc.

Transfer to Investor Education and Protection
Fund (IEPF):

In terms of the Section 125 and 124(6) of the Act
read with Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Auditing, Transfer and
Refund) Rules, 2016 (IEPF Rules), the dividend
amount that remains unclaimed for a period of
seven years or more is required to be transferred
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF) administered by the Central Government,

)

along with the corresponding shares to the demat
account of IEPF Authority.

Since the Company has not declared any dividend
on its equity shares since it got listed on BSE
Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE) on February 8, 2022, the
provisions of the above section are not applicable
to the Company, for the year under review.

Share Transfer System:

In terms of Regulation 40(1) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, as amended, securities can be
transferred only in dematerialized form w.e.f. 15
April, 2019, except in case of requests received
for transmission or transposition of securities.
Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to consider converting their holdings
to dematerialized form. Transfers of equity
shares in electronic form are effected through
the depositories with no involvement of the
Company. The Board has delegated the authority
for approving transfers, transmissions etc. to the
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

The Company obtained following certificate(s)
from a Practising Company Secretary and
submitted the same to the stock exchanges
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within the stipulated time: All share transfer and other communication
regarding share certificates, change of address,
dividend etc. should be addressed to R & T Agent
of the Company at the address given above:-

1. Certificate confirming due compliance of the
share transfer formalities by the Company
pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI

Listing Regulations for the vyear ended M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited
March 31, 2023 respectively with the Stock C-101, 247 Park, L B S Marg,
Exchanges; and Vikhroli West, Mumbai-400083

Tel: +91-22-4918 6270 | Fax: +91-22-4918 6060
E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
Website: https://linkintime.co.in/

2. Certificate regarding reconciliation of the
share capital audit of the Company on a
quarterly basis.

m) Shareholding as on 31t March, 2023:
(a) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31t March, 2023:

No. of shares Equity Shares in each category Number of shareholders
Total Shares % of total Holders % of total

1-500 6,46,18,727 4,98 11,22,653 56.88
501-1000 1,49,80,828 1.15 20,135 1.74
1001-2000 1,30,87,390 1.00 9,119 0.79
2001-3000 71,01,939 0.55 2,862 0.25
3001-4000 42,77,712 0.34 1,210 0.10
4001-5000 35,44,562 0.27 765 0.06
5001-10000 92,43,870 0.71 1,298 0.1
10001 & above 118,28,23,577 91.00 825 0.07
Total 1,299,678,605 100 11,58,867 100

(b) Category wise Shareholding Pattern as on 31t March, 2023:

Category Total No. of % of holding
Shares
Promoter and Promoter Group 1,14,29,48,860 87.94"
Foreign Institutional Investors / Portfolio Investor 1,65,26,590 1.27
Insurance Companies 88,565 0.01
Mutual Funds/Banks/Financial Institutions /Alternate Investment 13,36,117 0.10
Funds /NBFC
NRI/Foreign Nationals 30,76,336 0.24
IEPF/Clearing Member 417,529 0.03
Bodies Corporate 51,86,026 0.40
Trusts/ HUF 40,85,776 0.31
Directors and their relatives (excluding independent directors and 2,533 0.00
nominee directors)
Key Managerial Personnel 4,680 0.00
Indian Public and others 12,60,05,593 9.70
Total 1,29,96,78,605 100.00

"The equity shares of the Company got listed on the BSE and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE) on 8™ February, 2022. The Company shall ensure compliance with the provisions of Regulation
19A of the Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957 pertaining to minimum public shareholding
within the statutory time frame.
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Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

The Equity Shares of the Company are tradable in
compulsory dematerialized segment of the Stock
Exchanges and are available in the depository
system of National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL). The demat security (ISIN) code
for the equity share is INE699HO1024.

The equity shares of the Company representing
100% of the Company's share capital are
dematerialized as on 31 March, 2023.

The Company's shares are regularly traded on the
BSE and NSE.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any
convertible instrument, conversion and likely
impact on equity:

There were no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants
or any convertible instruments as at 31* March,
2023,

Commodity Price Risk/Foreign Exchange Risk
and Hedging:

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is
exposed to risks resulting from Commodity price
fluctuation, foreign currency rate fluctuation and
interest rate movements. The Company manages
its exposure to these risks through derivative
financial instruments. The Company's risk
management is governed under the framework of
Risk Management Policy approved by the Board.

The Company operates internationally, and a
portion of its business is transacted in several
currencies and consequently the company is
subjected to foreign exchange risk through its
exports sales and purchase of raw materials from
overseas customers / suppliers in various foreign
currencies. The Company evaluates the exchange
rate exposures arising from foreign currency
transactions and uses derivatives like foreign
exchange forward and future contracts to hedge
its exposure. It is the Company's policy that no
trading in derivatives for speculative purposes
may be undertaken.

The prices of agricultural commodities are subject
to wide fluctuations due to unpredictable factors
such as weather, Government policies, change in

P)

Q)

global demand and global production of similar
and competitive crops. To the extent thatits open
sales and purchase commitments do not match
at the end of each business day, the Company is
subjected to price fluctuationsinthe commodities
market. While the Company is exposed to
fluctuations in agricultural commodities prices,
its policy is to minimize risks arising from such
fluctuations by hedging its underlying purchase
commitment/inventory either through sale of
future contracts on the commodity exchanges
or through over the counter sale contracts with
suppliers or through firm commitment contracts
of sale.

The Company has in place a risk management
system to manage such risk exposure.

Address for Correspondence:

Mr. Darshil Lakhia,

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Fortune House,

Near Navrangpura Railway Crossing,
Ahmedabad - 380 00S.

Tel.: +91-79-2645 5650

Fax: +91-79-2645 5621

E-mail: investor.relations@adaniwilmar.in

For transfer/dematerialization of shares, change
of address of members and other queries.

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

C-101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West,
Mumbai - 400083

Tel.: +91-22-4918 6270

Fax.: +91-22-4918 6060

E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Plant Locations:
* Taluka- Mundra, District: Kutch, Gujarat

* Village: Pragapar, Taluka- Mundra, District:
Kutch, Gujarat

* Chhatral- Kadi Road, Taluka: Kadi District:
Mehsana, Gujarat

« P.O. Tungabhadra, Mantralayam, District:

Kurnool, Andhra Pradesh
* Silor Kota Road, District: Bundi, Rajasthan
* Haldia, District: Purba Medinipur, West Bengal
* Mouza Debhog, J. L. No. 149, P.S. Bhabanipur,


mailto:investor.relations@adaniwilmar.in
mailto:rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

r)

s)

District: Purba Medinipur, West Bengal

* Village Malegaon, Tehsil Saoner, District:
Nagpur, Maharashtra
e Village Dehndi, Tehsil Shujalpur, District:

Shahjapur, Madhya Pradesh

* Village Jamunia Kala, Bhatkheda and Dalawada
, District: Neemuch, Madhya Pradesh

* Villlage Partala, Tehsil and District: Chindwara,
Madhya Pradesh

* Village Roondh Dhooninath, Tehsil Ramgarh,
District Alwar, Rajasthan

e Near Light House, Industrial Park, Kakinada
Rural Mandal, Suryaraopet Grampanchayat,
Thammavaram Village, East Godavari District,
Kakinada, Andhra Pradesh

* Baikampady Industrial Area, Baikampady Village,
Surathkal Hobli, Taluka: Mangalore, Karnataka

e Soya Complex, Sanchi Road, Vidisha, Madhya

Pradesh

» Gudur Registration District, Muthukur Mandal,
Pantapalem Village, Krishnapatnam, Andhra
Pradesh.

e Village: Bhitaragarh, Thana: Paradip, District:
Jagatsinghpur, Odisha

« Village: Waan, Near Saiyanwala, Faridkot Road,
Ferozepur, Punjab

e Food Processing Park, Village Nimrani, Taluka
Kasarwad, District Khargone, Madhya Pradesh

* Mouza Jaugram, Amrah, P.O.-Reorae Gopalpur,
Jamalpur, East Bardhaman, West Bengal

Credit Rating:

Rating Agency Type

Rating Assigned
FY 2022-23 FY2021-22

CARE Ratings | Long CARE AA- CARE A+
Limited term (Stable) (Stable)
CARE Ratings | Short CARE A1+ | CARE AT+
Limited Term (Stable) (Stable)

Non-mandatory Requirements:

The non-mandatory requirements have been
adopted to the extent and in the manner as stated
under the appropriate headings detailed below:

(i) The Board:
The Company
Independent

Non-Executive
Independent

has a
Chairman. An

a)
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Chairperson is instrumental in building
corporate credibility by instilling confidence
amongst the stakeholders’ community
while adhering to the highest standards of
corporate governance.

(ii) Shareholders Right:

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial
results of your Company, as applicable, are
published in newspapers and posted on the
Company's website www.adaniwilmar.com.
The same are also available on the websites
of stock exchanges where the equity shares
of the Company are listed i.e. www.bseindia.
com and www.nseindia.com.

(iii) Modified opinion(s) audit report:
The Company already has a regime of
unqualified financial statements. Auditors
have raised no qualifications on the financial
statements.

(iv) Separate posts of Chairperson and Chief
Executive Officer:
Mr. Dorab Mistry is the Non-Executive
Independent Chairman and Mr. Angshu
Mallick is the Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer (C.E.Q.) of the Company.
They are not related to each other. Both these
positions have distinct and well articulated
roles and responsibilities.

(v) Reporting of Internal Auditor:
The Internal Auditor of the Company is a
permanent invitee to the Audit Committee
meetings and regularly attends the said
meetings for reporting their findings of the
internal audit to the Audit Committee.

Other Disclosures:

There were no materially significant Related Party
Transactions and pecuniary transactions that
may have potential conflict with the interest of
the Company at large. The details of Related Party
Transactions are disclosed in financial section of
this Annual Report.

The Related Party Transaction Policy is uploaded
on the website of the Company https://www.
adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Investors/Corporate%20Governance/RPT%20
Policy.


www.bseindia.com
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/RPT%20Policy

156

d)

e)

f)

9)

h)
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The Register under Section 189 of the Act is
maintained and particulars of the transactions
have been entered in the Register, as applicable.

In the preparation of the financial statements, the
Company has followed the accounting policies
and practices as prescribed in the Accounting
Standards.

Details of compliances

The Company has complied with all the
requirements of the Stock Exchanges as well
as the regulations and guidelines prescribed by
the SEBI. There were no penalties or strictures
imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges
or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter
related to capital markets during the last three
years.

CEO/CFO Certificate

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have furnished a
certificate to the Board for the year ended on 371
March, 2023 in compliance with the provisions of
Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
They have also provided quarterly certificate
on the financial results while placing the same
before the Board pursuant to the provisions of
Regulation 33 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Company discloses to the Audit Committee
the uses/application of proceeds/funds raised
from the Initial Public Offer (IPO) as part of the
quarterly review of financial results as applicable.

The designated Senior Management Personnel of
the Company have not done any material, financial
and commercial transactions in which they have
personal interest, which may have a potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

The Company has adopted a Material Events
Paolicy which is uploaded on the website of
the Company https:.//www.adaniwilmar.com/-/
media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20
Governance/Material%20Events%20Policy.

The Company has in place an Information
Security Policy that ensures proper utilization of
IT resources.

As a part of good governance practice, the
Company has also adopted several policies from

m)

n)

0)

p)

ESG perspective and the same are available on
the Company's website.

Details of the familiarization programmes
imparted to the Independent Directors are
available on the website of the Company https://
www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Investors/Corporate%20Governance/ID%20
Familiarization%20Programme.

With a view to regulate trading in securities by the
Directors and Designated employees, the Company
has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prohibition of
Insider Trading (Code). The Code also covers the
policy and procedures for inquiry in case of a leak
of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI)
or suspected leak of UPSI. The Code is available
on the website of the Company at https://www.
adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/
Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Code%20
of%20Conduct%20for%20Regulating%20and%20
Monitoring%20Trading%20by%20Insiders.

The Company has put in place a succession
plan for appointment to the Board and to Senior
Management positions.

The Company complies with all

secretarial standards.

applicable

Disclosure with respect to demat suspense
account/unclaimed suspense account: Not
applicable.

During the FY 2022-23, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries have provided “loans
and advances in the nature of loans” to firms/
companies in which the Directors are interested.

During the year under review, the Company did
not raise any funds through preferential allotment
or qualified institutional placement as specified
under Regulation 32(7A) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

The Company has complied with all the
mandatory requirements specified in Regulations
17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2)
of the SEBI Listing Regulations. It has obtained a
certificate affirming the compliances from SPANJ
& Associates, Practising Company Secretaries and
the same is attached to this report.


https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Material%20Events%20Policy
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/ID%20Familiarization%20Programme
https://www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/Corporate%20Governance/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20Regulating%20and%20Monitoring%20Trading%20by%20Insiders

q) As required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI

)

s)

v

Listing Regulations, particulars of Directors
seeking re-appointment at the ensuing AGM are
given in the Annexure to the Notice of the 25t
Annual General Meeting to be held on 20 July ,
2023.

The Company has obtained a certificate from
SPANJ & Associates, Practising Company
Secretaries pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read
with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations
certifying that none of the Directors of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India /
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such authority
from being appointed or continuing as Director
of the Company. The said certificate has been
annexed with this report.

The Company has not made any contributions
to / spending for political campaigns, political
organizations, lobbyists or lobbying organizations,
trade associations and other tax-exempt groups.

Total fees for all services paid by the Company
and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to
the Joint Statutory Auditors and all entities in the
network firm/ network entity of which the Joint
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Statutory Auditors are a part, for the FY 2023 is
given below:

(Zin crore)
Payment to Statutory Auditors
Audit Fees 0.90
Limited Review 0.55
Certification Fees and Other Services 0.22
Total 1.67

u) As per the requirement of The Sexual Harassment

of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder,
your Company has constituted Internal
Complaints Committees (ICs), at all relevant
locations across India to consider and resolve
the complaints related to sexual harassment.
The ICs include external members with relevant
experience. The ICs, presided by a senior woman,
conduct the investigations and make decisions
at the respective locations. The ICs also work
on creating an awareness on the seriousness
of sexual harassment issues. During the year
under review, the Company has not received any
complaint pertaining to sexual harassment.

Declaration

[, Angshu Mallick, Managing Director & CEO of Adani Wilmar Limited hereby declare that as of 315 March, 2023,

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 3 May 2023

all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct
and Ethics for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel laid down by the Company.

For Adani Wilmar Limited

Angshu Mallick
Managing Director and CEO
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Members of

ADANI WILMAR LIMITED

CIN: L15146GJ1999PLC0O35320
Regd. Off: Fortune House,

Near Navrangpura Railway crossing,
Ahmedabad - 380009

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by ADANI WILMAR LIMITED (“the
Company”), for the year ended 31t March, 2023, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of
Regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘'SEBI Listing Regulations’), pursuant to
the Listing Agreement of the Company with Stock exchanges.

The compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on
the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us along with
documents & submissions for regulatory compliances provided for our verification and representation made
by the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

ASHISH C DOSHI, PARTNER
SPANJ & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
FCS No.: F3544
COP No.: 2356
Date: 3 May, 2023 P R Certificate No. : 702/2020
Place : Ahmedabad UDIN : FOO3544E000242508
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CERTIFICATE OF NON- DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

The Members of

ADANI WILMAR LIMITED

CIN: L15146GJ1999PLC0O35320
Regd. Off: Fortune House,

Near Navrangpura Railway crossing,
Ahmedabad — 380009

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
ADANI WILMAR LIMITED having CIN: L15146GJ1999PLC035320 and having registered office at Fortune House,
Near Navrangpura Railway Crossing, Ahmedabad - 380009 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced
before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read
with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31t March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. |Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1. Mr. Pranav Vinod Adani 00008457 01/04/2008
2. Mr. Khoon Hong Kuok 00021957 27/02/1999
3. Mr. Malay Ramesh Mahadevia 00064110 17/06/2019
4, Mr. Anup Pravin Shah 00293207 20/07/2021
5, Mr. Angshu Mallick 02481358 05/05/2021
6. Mr. Madhu Ramachandra Rao 02683483 10/06/2021
7. Mr. Dorab Erach Mistry 07245114 10/06/2021
8. Ms. Dipali Hemant Sheth 07556685 10/06/2021

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date: 3 May 2023
Place: Ahmedabad

For, Chirag Shah and Associates
Chirag Shah

FCS No.: 5545

CP No.: 3498

UDIN : FO0O3544E000242486
Peer Review Cert. No.: 704/2020
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CERTIFICATION BY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)

have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year ended 31t March, 2023
that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading.

These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended
371t March, 2023 which are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control system and that we have evaluated
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company and we have disclosed to the auditors and
the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control system, if any, of which
we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

We further certify that we have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee that:
a) There have been no significant changes in the internal control system during the year;

b) There have been no significant changes in the accounting policies during the year and that the same
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

c) There have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware, involving
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system.

Place : Ahmedabad Angshu Mallick Shrikant Kanhere
Date : 3" May, 2023 Managing Director & CEO Chief Financial Officer
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Business Responsibility & Sustainability Report

SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES
I. Details of the listed entity

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity -

L15146GJ1999PLC0O35320

Name of the Listed Entity

Adani Wilmar Limited

Year of incorporation

1999

HDIWIN| =

Registered office address

Fortune House,
Near Navrangpura Railway Crossing,
Ahmedabad 3800009.

Corporate address

Fortune House,
Near Navrangpura Railway Crossing,
Ahmedabad 3800009.

Financial year for which reporting is being done

6 | E-mail investor.relations@adaniwilmar.in
7 Telephone +9179 2645 5650

8 Website https://www.adaniwilmar.com/

9

01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023

-
o

Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares are listed

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
and BSE Limited (BSE)

11

Paid-up Capital

3 129.97 crore

12

Name and contact details (telephone, email address)
of the person who may be contacted in case of any
queries on the BRSR report

Mr. Abhik Das
Tel:+91-79-26455650
Email: abhik.das@adaniwilmar.in

13

Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this
report made on a standalone basis (i.e. only for the
entity) or on a consolidated basis (i.e. for the entity and
all the entities which form a part of its consolidated
financial statements, taken together).

Disclosures made in this report are on a
standalone basis and pertain only to Adani
Wilmar Limited.

Products/services

14 Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover):

Sl. | Description of Description of Business Activity % of Turnover
No | Main Activity of the entity
Manufacturing | Edible Qils and Food & FMCG (Food and Beverages & Tobacco Products) 87%

2 Manufacturing | Others (Industry Essentials) 13%

15. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover):

Sl. | Product/Service NIC Code | % of total Turnover
No contributed

1 | Manufacture of vegetable oils & fats excluding corn ail 10402 74%

2 | Manufacture of oil cakes & meals incl. residual products noodles, 10406 10%

glycerine, etc.

3 | Manufacture of hydrogenated oil & vanaspati ghee 10401 5%

4 | Flour Milling 1061 2%

5 | Rice Milling 10612 3%

6 Dal (pulses) milling 10613 1%



mailto:investor.relations@adaniwilmar.in
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Ill. Operations

16. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated:
Location Number of plants Number of offices Total
National 23 7 30

International - -

17. Markets served by the entity:
3. Number of locations

Locations Number
National (No. of States) 28 states, 10 Union Territories
International (No. of Countries) 53

b. What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?
9% of overall sales.

c. A brief on type of customers
The export customers consist of top industrial manufacturers and FMCG companies. We export a variety
of castor oil products and oleochemical products to industrial manufacturers, whereas FMCG products
such as edible oil, rice and other food products are exported to various FMCG companies and modern
retail chains across the globe.

IV. Employees
a. Employees and workers (including differently abled):

18. Details as at the end of Financial Year:
a. Employees and workers (including differently abled):

Sl. | Particulars Total Male Female
No (A) No.(B) % (B/A) No.(C) %(C/A)
EMPLOYEES
Permanent (D) 2,600 2,556 98.31% 44 1.69%
2. Other than Permanent (E) - - - - -
Total employees (D + E) 2,600 2,556 | 98.31% 44 1.69%
WORKERS
4, | Permanent (F) - - - - -
5. | Other than Permanent (G) 3,276 3,267 99.73% 9 0.27%
6. Total workers (F + G) 3,276 3,267 99.73% 9 0.27%

*Note: All off-role employees are classified as workers other than permanent

b. Differently abled Employees and workers:
Sl. | Particulars Total Male Female
No (A) No.(B) % (B/A) No.(C) %(C/A)
DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES
Permanent (D) - - - - -
2. Other than Permanent (E) - - - - -
Total differently abled employees (D + E) - - - - -
DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS
4. | Permanent (F) - - - - -
Other than Permanent (G) - - - - -
6. | Total differently abled workers (F + G) - - - - -

Ul
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Total No. and percentage of Females
(A) No. (B) % (B/A)
Board of Directors 8 1 12.50%
Key Management Personnel 3 - -
20. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers (Disclose trends for the past 3 years)
FY 2022-23 FY2021-22 FY 2020-21

(Turnover rate in current

(Turnover rate in previous

(Turnover rate in the year

FY) FY) prior to the previous FY)

Male Female | Total Male Female | Total Male Female | Total

Permanent 14.38% | 14.29% | 14.37% | 14.27% | 16.67% | 14.29% | 10.86% | 9.30% | 10.85%
Employees

Permanent Workers

V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies

(including joint ventures)

21. (3) Names of holding / subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures

SI. | Name of the holding / subsidiary / Indicate whether % of Does the entity
No | associate companies / joint ventures holding/ Subsidiary/ shares indicated at column
(A) Associate/ Joint held by A, participate in the
Venture listed | Business Responsibility
entity | initiatives of the listed
entity? (Yes/No)
1 |Golden Valley Agrotech Private Limited | Subsidiary 100
2 |AWL Edible Oils and Foods Private Subsidiary 100
Limited
3 | Adani Wilmar Pte. Ltd. Subsidiary 100 These entities do not
4 | Leverian Holdings Pte. Ltd. Step Down Subsidiary 100 participate in the BRSR
5 | Bangladesh Edible Qil Limited Step Down Subsidiary 100 initiatives of Adani
6 | Shun Shing Edible Oil Limited Step Down Subsidiary | 99.97 Wilmar Limited.
7 ' Vishakha Polyfab Private Limited Joint Venture 50
8 |K.T.V. Health Food Private Limited Joint Venture 50
9 |AWN Agro Private Limited Joint Venture 50
VI. CSR Details
22.
(i) 'Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: (Yes/No) Yes
(i) | Turnover (in ¥) ¥ 55,262 crore
(iii) | Net worth (in ) ¥7,988 crore
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VIl. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

23. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines on
Responsible Business Conduct:

Stakeholder Grievance Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
group from Redressal (FY 2022-23) (FY 2021-22)
whom o Mechanismin ' nymber of | Number of Remarks Number of | Number of Remarks
complaintis | Place (Yes/No) | complaints | complaints complaints | complaints
received (If Yes, then | filed during| pending filed pending
provide web-link | the year resolution during the | resolution

for grievance at close of year at close of

redress policy) the year the year
Communities Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Investors NA Nil Nil NA

(other than
shareholders)

Shareholders Yes 17 Nil All the 556 Nil All these
complaints complaints
received by pertaining to

the Company unblocking
have been of funds
resolved at and non
the end of allotment
the year. of shares
under the

IPO. These

have been

satisfactorily

resolved at

the end of

the financial

year

Employees Yes 7 0 All the Nil Nil No

and workers (Company has complains complaints

an employee received received
communication in the during the

platform to FY 23 from year.
encourage them employees
to give feedback & workers

and put up have been
grievances. The resolved.
portal is called

SETU.)

Customers Yes 3,528 9 The pending 3,598 1
complaints
are in the
process of
resolution.

Value Chain Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Partners

Other (please Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

specify)
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24. Overview of the entity’'s material responsible business conduct issues
Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental and
social matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same, approach
to adapt or mitigate the risk along-with its financial implications, as per the following format

165

Sr. | Material Indicate Rationale for identifying the  In case of risk, approach to Financialimplications
No. issue whether risk / opportunity adapt or mitigate of the risk or
identified risk or opportunity (Indicate
opportunity the positive/negative

(R/0) implications)

1  ESG Opportunity | A robust ESG governance | N/A N/A

Governance structure will enable
AWL in assessing its
policies and processes
from the perspective of
minimizing the impact on
the environment  while
empowering the society and
act as responsible corporate
citizen.

2 | Climate Risk Climatechangeisconsidered  AWL is guided by Adani group's | The process of
change as a strategic business risk. | Climate Change Policy which | identification and
adaptation Climate adaptation and defines a framework guiding to | quantification of the
and mitigation are  essential mitigate climate change and  financial implications
mitigation for an organisation to | adaptto itsimpact. of the identified risks

thrive in the future. We and opportunities is
focus primarily on extreme currently underway.
weather events, urban

water stress, air pollution,

waste ~management and

their effect on employee

wellbeing. Undertaking

conscious measures can

reduce operational costs and

drive greater efficiencies for

the business.

3 | Labor Risk By upholding human rights  The Company adheres to all  The process of

Practices and ensuring sound labour | applicable laws, pertaining | identification and
practices, the Company to human rights and Iabour | quantification of the
avoids disciplinary actions, | practices. AWLdoesnotengagein | financial implications
penalties, and empowers its | child labour forced or compulsory | of the identified risks
employees. labour. The policy framework and opportunities is
at AWL fosters a diverse, safe, currently underway.
empowered workforce.

4 | Innovation Opportunity | The  implementation of | N/A The process of
and new technologies and identification and
technology digitalization will enable quantification of the

the organization to be at
the forefront as market
leaders with better quality
products. It will also help
business to counter any
disruptive business models
that may pose a threat to our
business.

financial implications
of the identified risks
and opportunities is
currently underway.
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Sr. | Material Indicate Rationale for identifying the  In case of risk, approach to Financialimplications
No.  issue whether risk / opportunity adapt or mitigate of the risk or
identified risk or opportunity (Indicate
opportunity the positive/negative
(R/0) implications)
5 | Data Privacy | Risk Safeguarding the security The Company has established | The process of

6

7

8

and Security

Circular Opportunity
Economy

Waste Risk
Management

Ecological Risk

Impact

of the data and the entire

value chain, particularly
customers is important for
our business operations.

Any data breach may lead
to leakage the Company’s
sensitive data resulting into
frauds, business disruptions
and continuity.

For Responsible
consumption and
production, circular

economy plays a pivotal role
in operating the business
responsibly. Our business
adopts multiple initiatives
such as recyclable packaging
material which promotes
circular economy and
thereby plays a pivotal role
in operating the business
responsibly.

Responsible  disposal  of
waste and reducing its
generation, helps the

Company to comply with
environmental rules and
regulations  and ensure
environmental sustainability.
Any non-adherence to waste
management / pollution
control norms may lead to
stringent action from the
authorities such as NGT /
Pollution control boards. Any
severe violation can lead to
closure of manufacturing
facility.

Reduced ecological impact
of the Company is essential
to mitigate climate change

and the physical and
transition risks associated
with it.

a data security mechanism to
preventany possible cyber-attack,
data breach or any sabotage
attempt to disrupt business
processes. The Company has also
put in place a proper business
continuity plan which includes
building of redundancy for entire
IT infrastructure & network.

N/A

Our Company follows high
standards of waste management
in consultation with  Wilmar
Group. Most of the plants
are equipped with zero liquid
discharge systems (ZLD), which
ensures that effluent is not
released in the  environment
which can be hazardous. Besides
this, more than 97% of packing
material is recyclable, thereby
restricting non-biodegradable
waste. Additionally, we are
guided by Adani Group's Resource
Conservation Policy which
provides guidance to various
business units to incorporate
the principles of circularity in
processes and production.

The environment related
initiatives and policies have
been put in place to reduce the
impact on the environment. The
Company has taken initiatives
to reduce dependence on
thermal power as well as reduced
wastage of water at major plant
locations.

identification and
quantification of the
financial implications
of the identified risks
and opportunities is
currently underway.

The process of
identification and
quantification of the
financial implications
of the identified risks
and opportunities is
currently underway.

The process of
identification and
quantification of the
financial implications
of the identified risks
and opportunities is
currently underway.

The process of
identification and
quantification of the
financial implications
of the identified risks
and opportunities is
currently underway.
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Sr. | Material Indicate Rationale for identifying the  In case of risk, approach to Financialimplications
No.  issue whether risk / opportunity adapt or mitigate of the risk or
identified risk or opportunity (Indicate
opportunity the positive/negative

(R/0) implications)

9 | Diversity and | Opportunity Developing a diverse and | N/A The process of

Inclusion inclusive work culture identification and
enables an organization's quantification of the
position as an employer financial implications
of choice. Inclusive of the identified risks
environment also  helps and opportunities is
in  establishing efficient currently underway.
management processes.

10 | Employee Risk As the Company's most The Company emphasis on  The process of
Health, valuable resource, employee | placing safety as a pre-requisite | identification and
Safety, and safety and wellbeing are of | across all its operations. Further, | quantification of the
well-being paramount importance. This  the Company also takes various | financial implications

isaccomplished by assessing = measures to ensure the health | of the identified risks
and controlling health | and wellbeing of employees by and opportunities is
and safety risks across the | resorting to various interventions | currently underway.
operations. through health awareness

programs.

11 | Responsible Opportunity | AWL is guided by Wilmar | N/A The process of

Supply chain Group's ESG / NDPE identification and
policy which ensures that quantification of the
responsible procurement financial implications
practices reduces its of the identified risks
indirect environmental and opportunities is
impact and promotes good currently underway.
governance among partner
organizations.

12 | Human Risk Respecting human rights  We are guided by AdaniGroupand | The process of

Rights is essential to ensuring  Wilmar Group's policy on Human | identification and
the safety of communities, Rights, based on international | quantification of the
employees, and other | standards and frameworks, that | financial implications
stakeholders. ensures the wellbeing of its | of the identified risks
stakeholders. and opportunities is
currently underway.

13 | Water Risk Water is a shared resource,  Zero liquid discharge systems | The process of
Management making its responsible | or effluent treatment plants | identification and

consumption important | installed at all the plants ensures | quantification of the
to businesses. For the recycling of all the water waste,  financial implications
business to be socially and @ thereby ensuring reuse of water. | of the identified risks
environmentally responsible, and opportunities is
it must adhere to responsible currently underway.
consumption.

14 | Energy and Risk Mitigating climate change  Adani's Group level policy on | The process of
emission requires reduction in  Energy Management serves  identification and
Management energy consumption and | as a guidance to manage and quantification of the

emissions footprint through
implementation of carbon
reduction initiatives.

optimize energy consumption
and emissions and align with
India's goal to become Net zero.

financial implications
of the identified risks
and opportunities is
currently underway.
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Sr. | Material Indicate Rationale for identifying the  In case of risk, approach to Financialimplications
No.  issue whether risk / opportunity adapt or mitigate of the risk or
identified risk or opportunity (Indicate
opportunity the positive/negative
(R/0) implications)
15 | Training and | Opportunity  The Company can raise the = N/A The process of
Development bar on quality of its offerings identification and
and become increasingly quantification of the
future-ready by ensuring financial implications
that requisite technical and of the identified risks
behavioral skills are imparted and opportunities is
to its workforce through currently underway.

regular trainings.

SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES

Sr. No. Disclosure Questions

P1 [ P2 [ P3| Pa | P5 | P6| P7 | P8 | P9

Policy and management processes

a. Whether your entity's policy/palicies| Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
cover each principle and its core
elements of the NGRBCs. (Yes/No)

b. Has the policy been approved by the| Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

1

Board? (Yes/No)

c. Web Link of the Policies, if available https://www.adaniwilmar.com/investors

Whether the entity has translated the| N N N N N N N N N
policy into procedures. (Yes / No)

Do the enlisted policies extend to your N N N N N N N N N
value chain partners? (Yes/No)

Name of the national and international « FSSC 22000V 5.1
codes/certifications/labels/standards (e.g.| « BRCGS Issue 8.0

Forest Stewardship Council, Fairtrade, . |50 9001:2015

Rainforest Alliance, Truste) standards (e.g.
SA 8000, OHSAS, ISO, BIS) adopted by

* 1SO 14001:2015
* 1SO 45001:2018

your entity and mapped to each principle.

* RSPO SCC (For Palm refineries)
« US FDA (select plants)
* GMP+ (select plants)

Specific commitments, goals and targets The Company is cautious of undertaking business through
set by the entity with defined timelines, if sustainable practices. In line with this thought process, the

any.

Company endeavors to source edible oil and various other
raw materials through sustainable means. The Company
is also guided by Wilmar Group's NDPE (No Deforestation,
Peat or Child labour) policy. Besides this, the Company also
strives to minimize the impact of non-biodegradable waste
on the environment by using recyclable packing material.

Some of our ESG goals include:

« By FY26, ~95% of palm oil (self) sourced will be traceable
up to mills (TTM).

* By FY26, 99% of packing material will be recyclable.

Performance of the entity against the ¢ More than 90% of palm oil sourced is TTM
specific commitments, goals and targets . aj paim refineries are RSPO certified.

along-with reasons in case the same are

not met.

* ~98% of packing material is recyclable.
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Sr. No.

Disclosure Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

Governance, leadership and oversight

7. | Statement by director responsible for the The Company’s business clearly highlights its vision to
business responsibility report, highlighting | deliver safe and nutritious packaged food to its consumers.
ESG related challenges, targets and As one of the largest Food FMCG companies in India, we
achievements: do value the ESG principles and are committed to strong

adherence of environmental sustainability.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we ensure sustainability
across the value chain i.e. sourcing, manufacturing
and across supply chain. We are also mindful of our
responsibility towards the society and in this direction, we
do spend on various social cause one of which, is project
SuPoshan in which our efforts are directed for eradication
of malnutrition amongst 0-5 age group children and
lactating mothers. As we go forward, we will be doing more
on these sustainability and social causes.

8. |Detailsofthehighestauthority responsible | Mr. Angshu Mallick, Managing Director and CEO
for PmplementatloAn.;nd oyersyght of the DIN: 02481358
Business Responsibility policy (ies).

9. Doestheentity haveaspecified Committee | The Company does not have specified Committee for
of the Board / Director responsible for | decision making on sustainability related issues. However,
decision making on sustainability related the Directors and senior management monitor various
issues? (Yes/ No). If yes, provide details. | aspects of social, environmental, governance and economic

responsibilities of the Company on a continuous basis.
Sr. No. Subject for Indicate whether review was undertaken Frequency
Review by Director / Committee of the Board/ | (Annually/ Half yearly/ Quarterly/ Any
Any other Committee other - please specify)
P1 P2 P3 P4 PS5 P6 P7 P8 P9 P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

10. Details of Review
of NGRBCs by
the Company:

Performance The department heads and the leadership team examine the Company's Business
against above Responsibility policies on a regular basis or as needed. Efficacy of the policies is
policies and reviewed and necessary modifications to policies and processes are adopted during
follow up action | this assessment.
Compliance The Company is in due compliance with all the required regulations as applicable.
with statutory
requirements
of relevance to
the principles,
and rectification
of any non-
compliances

Sr. No. P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

11 Has the entity carried out independent | No, but the Company does have an internal process of

assessment/ evaluation of the working of  assessment in place. Going forward, the Company may
its policies by an external agency? (Yes/ engage with external agency to assess / evaluate the
No). If yes, provide name of the agency. policies.
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Sr. No.| Questions Pt | P2 | P3| Pa | P5 | P6 P7 | P8 | P9
12. | If answer to question (1) above is “No" i.e.
not all Principles are covered by a policy,
reasons to be stated:
The entity does not consider the Principles
material to its business (Yes/No)
The entity is not at a stage where itisin a
position to formulate and implement the
policies on specified principles (Yes/No)
The entity does not have the financial or/ Not Applicable
human and technical resources available
for the task (Yes/No)
It is planned to be done in the next
financial year (Yes/No)
Any other reason (please specify)

SECTION C: Principle WISE PERFORMANCE

Principle 1:

Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that is Ethical, Transparent
and Accountable.

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the principles during the financial

year:
Segment Total number | Topics / principles covered under the Percentage of persons
of training training and its impact in respective category
and awareness covered by the
programs held awareness programs
Board of Directors 3 * Awareness session on the provisions 75%
of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading
Regulations).
* ESG related training
Key Managerial 3 * Awareness session on the provisions 100%
Personnel of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading
Regulations).
* ESG related training
Employees other 413 * Product related trainings ~84%
than BoD and « OHS & other employee wellbeing
KMPs related trainings.

Stakeholder-related trainings like
customer, suppliers etc.

* Human rights trainings
* Environment related trainings

* Customer engagement related
trainings
e Consumer complaints related
trainings
Workers 413 Same as above ~52%
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Details of fines / penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement amount paid in proceedings
(by the entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ Iaw enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, in the
financial year, in the following format (Note: the entity shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality
as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Obligations) Regulations, 2015
and as disclosed on the entity’'s website):

MONETARY
NGRBC Name of regulatory/ Amount | Brief of Has an appeal
Principle enforcement agencies/ (In3) the Case | been preferred?
judicial institutions (Yes / No)
Penalty/Fine Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Settlement Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Fee Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

NON-MONETARY

NGRBC Name of regulatory/ Amount  Brief of Has an appeal
Principle enforcement agencies/ (In3) the Case | been preferred?
judicial institutions (Yes / No)
Imprisonment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases where
monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed.

Not applicable

Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if available,
provide a web-link to the policy.

The Company has an anti- corruption and anti-bribery policy. The policy has been developed in alignment
with the company’'s Code of Conduct, various other policies including whistle blower policy and rules and
regulations on anti-bribery and anti-corruption in India. The policy reiterates the Company's stance of zero
tolerance towards bribery and corruption. The policy is available on the website of the Company at https://
www.adaniwilmar.com/-/media/Project/Wilmar/Investors/ESG%20Policies/Anti%20Bribery%20%20Anti%20
Corrpution%20Policy.

Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any law
enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/ corruption:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
(Current Financial Year) | (Previous Financial Year)
Directors Nil Nil
KMPs Nil Nil
Employees Nil Nil
Workers Nil Nil
Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
(Current Financial Year) (Previous Financial Year)
Number Remarks Number Remarks
Number of Complaints received in relation to Nil Nil Nil Nil
issues of Conflict of Interest of the Directors
Number of complaints received in relation to Nil Nil Nil Nil
issues of Conflict of Interest of the KMPs
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Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines / penalties / action
taken by regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption and conflicts
of interest.

Not Applicable

Principle 2:
Businesses should provide goods and services in @ manner that is sustainable and safe

Essential Indicators

1.

Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to improve the
environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&€D and capex investments made by
the entity, respectively.

Current Previous Details of improvements in environmental and social
financial Year | financial Year impacts
(FY 2022-23) (FY 2021-22)
RE&D ¥ 2.2 crore 7 1.8 crore The Company has a product application center at Hyderabad

and Kakinada for R&D of various new products. The Company
also leverages the global R&D of its joint venture partner-
Wilmar Group.

Capex 328.2 crore 3 63.2 crore The Company has installed ZLD at 2 additional locations and
also installed and upgraded solar power at 2 locations.

3. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No) Yes

c. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

The Company has a proper mechanism in place to ensure that palm oil is sourced sustainably. The
Company is guided by Wilmar Group's NDPE policy such that more than ~90% of palm oil sourced is
traceable up to the mill (TTM). Besides this, the Company has also deployed green energy to draw power
from renewable sources.

Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at the
end of life, for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste (c) Hazardous waste and (d) other waste.

The Company has a well-defined process in place for reuse and recycling of plastic / e-waste / hazardous
waste (used oil, spender etc.).

98% of packing material of the Company is in the form of recyclable material, all of the plants are equipped
with Effluent Treatment Plant to treat hazardous waste. All e-waste are disposed off with authorized
e-waste recyclers.

Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s activities (Yes / No). If
yes, whether the waste collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan
submitted to Pollution Control Boards? If not, provide steps taken to address the same.

Yes. The waste collection plan is in line with the EPR plan submitted to CPCB / SPCBs.

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company follows the government’s mandate of EPR in the case of
packing material by collecting plastic waste from different regions. In FY23, the Company has collected
~70% of the total plastic produced for recycling. Our endeavor and aim is to collect 100% of the plastic
packaging produced.
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PRINCIPLE 3

Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including those in their value chains
1. 3. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:

% of employees covered by

Category Total Health Accident Maternity Paternity Day Care
(A) Insurance Insurance Benefits Benefits facilities
Number % Number % Number % Number % Number %
(8) (B/A) © (/A (D) | (o/A) (E) (E/A) (F) (F/A)
Permanent employees
Male 2,556 2,556 100% 2,556 100% NA NA 2,556 100% 0 0%
Female 44 441 100% 441 100% 44 100% NA NA 0 0%
Total 2,600 2,600 100% 2,600 100% 44 100% 2,556 100% (0] 0%
Other than Permanent employees
Male NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Female NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Total NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:
% of employees covered by
Category Total Health Accident Maternity Paternity Day Care
(A) Insurance Insurance Benefits Benefits facilities
Number| %  Num